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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Good morning. We

          3  are about to start our hearing. Anyone wishing to

          4  testify that has not already signed up, or who has

          5  not been already invited to testify, please see one

          6  of the Sergeant-At-Arms and they will allow you to

          7  sign up and testify.

          8                 Before I begin, I want to acknowledge

          9  that this is a hearing of the Governmental

         10  Operations Committee, in conjunction with the

         11  Contracts Committee.

         12                 Chairing our Contracts Committee is

         13  Councilman Bob Jackson. I also want to acknowledge

         14  the presence of Councilman James Davis, and

         15  Councilman Addabbo.

         16                 I am Council Member Bill Perkins, the

         17  Chairman of the Governmental Operations Committee.

         18                 Today we are having our first hearing

         19  on a bill that promises to have historical

         20  ramifications for our City.

         21                 Coincidentally, we had another

         22  historical hearing this morning at 10:00 that has

         23  historical ramifications for our City, in another

         24  area, it was in the civil rights are, it was a bill

         25  to include the transgender community in our human
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          2  rights ordinance, and we're very proud that that

          3  bill passed unanimously.

          4                 (Applause.)

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

          6  much.

          7                 It has put our City on record as

          8  being in support of the humanity of all people.

          9                 Today, this afternoon, we will be

         10  looking at our living wage bill. No hard-working

         11  wage earner should be living in poverty. Yet, this

         12  City regrettably has a significant population of

         13  "working poor."

         14                 My name is Bill Perkins, Chair of the

         15  Council's Governmental Operations Committee, and

         16  next to me is Council Member Robert Jackson, Chair

         17  of the Council's Contracts Committee. Together the

         18  Committees will consider and review the living wage

         19  bill that is now before the Council.

         20                 This bill, Intro. No. 66-A, is

         21  intended to remedy the problem of poverty in our

         22  City, while also promoting a proud work ethic.

         23                 The Council plans to have New York

         24  City joint numerous other municipalities across the

         25  nation that have successfully implemented living
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          2  wage laws.

          3                 Intro. No. 66-A essentially requires

          4  that employers who hire workers under a City

          5  contract or subsidy pay a living wage.

          6                 Because this is an extensive and

          7  far-reaching bill, we need to be diligent in making

          8  certain that the bill is drafted to do what it is

          9  supposed to do without any unintended effects.

         10                 Now it is important to say at the

         11  outset that Intro. No. 66-A, although far-reaching,

         12  unfortunately does not cover all low-wage earners.

         13                 The City contracts with many

         14  non-profit corporations that provide vital human

         15  services to our City's residents. Yet, those

         16  non-profits cannot, on their own, afford to pay many

         17  of its workers a living wage. Because of the fiscal

         18  crisis that the City finds itself in following the

         19  9/11 disaster, it cannot yet afford to bring these

         20  workers under the bill.

         21                 However, Intro. 66-A is the

         22  beginning. It is a beginning, not an end. And these

         23  important non-for-profit workers will not be

         24  forgotten. They will not be forgotten. The process

         25  shall begin now, however, so that we can achieve our

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            9

          1  CONTRACTS AND GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  goal in alleviating poverty sooner rather than

          3  later.

          4                 Before we hear our first panel, let

          5  me introduce the staff and other members of the

          6  Council.

          7                 On my far left, politically and

          8  physically, Council Member John Liu, the Chairman of

          9  our Transportation Committee. And coincidently, on

         10  my far right, Peter Vallone, Jr., the chairman of

         11  our Public Safety Committee.

         12                 And I also want to acknowledge the

         13  presence of our staff from, Chairman Jackson's

         14  staff. We have Susan Russell, his Chief of Staff,

         15  and we have Regina, I want to acknowledge Regina

         16  Poreda, with the Contracts staff and the Finance. I

         17  want to also acknowledge Janet Ford, the Counsel to

         18  our Government Ops Committee. And also Robert

         19  Newman, Counsel to the Contracts Committee.

         20                 We're going to begin now with our

         21  first panel, and the lead-off panel will consist of

         22  Paul K. Sonn, Associate Counsel of the Brennan

         23  Center for Justice, at the New York University

         24  School of Law, and James Parrott, Deputy Director

         25  and Chief Economist, and Bettina Damiani, Project
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          2  Director EDC Programs, Fiscal Policy Institute.

          3                 We're going to be swearing in our

          4  witnesses.

          5                 MR. NEWMAN: Please raise your right

          6  hands.

          7                 Do you solemnly swear or affirm that

          8  the testimony you're about to give is the truth, the

          9  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         10                 (Witnesses sworn.)

         11                 MR. NEWMAN: Please state your names

         12  and affiliations for the record.

         13                 Press the button. When the light is

         14  off, the mic is on.

         15                 MR. SONN: Thank you. I'm Paul Sonn,

         16  from the Brendan Center for Justice at NYU Law

         17  School.

         18                 DR. PARROTT: I'm James Parrott, from

         19  the Fiscal Policy Institute.

         20                 MS. DOMIANI: I'm Bettina Damiani, of

         21  Good Jobs New York.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Before we begin

         23  I want to make a few housekeeping remarks.

         24                 Number one, we have a lot of

         25  witnesses. We're happy about that. There are a lot
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          2  of interested parties that want to share with us

          3  their points of view about this very, very historic

          4  and important piece of legislation.

          5                 We are going to try to accommodate

          6  all the witnesses, and we're going to do that by

          7  limiting testimony to no more than three minutes,

          8  except for this first panel. And the reason we have

          9  to do that is because otherwise we'll have to then

         10  have you order dinner, because that's how long it's

         11  going to take.

         12                 So, my colleague, Councilman Jackson,

         13  will be strictly keeping you to the time limit.

         14  There is a clock that will inform you as to how

         15  you're proceeding in terms of the time, and we want

         16  you to please help us with keeping within that time

         17  frame.

         18                 Before we begin, we're going to have

         19  one of our members, John Liu, Councilman John Liu,

         20  make some brief remarks. He's a Chairman of a

         21  Committee that's about to have a hearing and he

         22  needs to go to that hearing, so he wanted to say

         23  some words before he left.

         24                 Councilman John Liu.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            12

          1  CONTRACTS AND GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  Chairman Perkins, Chairman Jackson.

          3                 I just wanted to say briefly that as

          4  you mentioned, I do unfortunately have to chair --

          5  well, it's not unfortunate that I have to chair the

          6  meeting, it's unfortunate that the meeting is

          7  scheduled to be the same time as this hearing. So, I

          8  do need to beg off and go next door to head that

          9  meeting, but I am a proud sponsor of this very

         10  important bill, and I hope to read all the testimony

         11  that's submitted, as well as watch the testimony on

         12  Channel 74. Thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         14  much, Councilman Liu.

         15                 We also want to acknowledge the

         16  presence of Councilman Charles Barron, and

         17  Councilman Phil Reed.

         18                 You can begin.

         19                 MR. SONN: Thank you, Chairman Perkins

         20  and Chairman Jackson. I'm Paul Sonn from the Brennan

         21  Center.

         22                 I think, Councilman Perkins, you

         23  framed the issue exactly right, we're here because

         24  we all would like to do something about the problem

         25  of facing the working poor in New York City. The two
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          2  key questions are: 1) What would be the impact on

          3  the City's budget of the living wage initiative

          4  being proposed; and 2) are there any unintended

          5  adverse consequences that the bill would lead to

          6  that should give us pause before going forward?

          7                 I'd like to respond to each of those

          8  points by quickly walking through the key elements

          9  of the bill, and then responding to some of the

         10  questions that have been raised about potential

         11  unanticipated effects.

         12                 I should say, though, that the

         13  crucial question of the budget impact will be

         14  handled by James Parrott from Fiscal Policy

         15  Institute. He's been extensively involved in

         16  analyzing those questions.

         17                 The basic approach of living wage

         18  laws as adopted around the country in this bill is

         19  to make every dollar count.

         20                 It's to avoid having the City

         21  unnecessarily subsidize poverty wage jobs.

         22                 Now, in principal, and I'm sure we

         23  all agree with the significant counterveiling

         24  constraint is we have to do it in a way that's

         25  responsible with the City budget. We all know as
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          2  first principle there's a budget deficit here,

          3  anything that involves more than a few millions

          4  dollar of cost is probably not feasible.

          5                 We believe that this proposal, it has

          6  been carefully crafted over the past year to focus

          7  only on those City programs and categories of City

          8  subsidized workers where wages can be raised at

          9  little cost to the City.

         10                 We've continued that refinement

         11  process since the budget deficit emerged and in

         12  conversations with the business community, the

         13  non-profit community, and other key stakeholders, we

         14  believe we're at a place where this bill makes sense

         15  and is affordable, but obviously we would welcome

         16  continuing to work with the Administration and the

         17  Council if other unintended possible adverse

         18  consequences are identified.

         19                 So, I'll start by just walking

         20  through the bill, and to guide us, we've prepared a

         21  chart which is appended to both our testimony and

         22  the Fiscal Policy Institute's testimony. It's on

         23  page 12 of the handout, the report that has the

         24  little pillars on the cover, "Make Every Dollar

         25  Count," pages 12 and 13.
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          2                 And the chart identifies the five

          3  areas of City programs and five sort of categories

          4  of employers that this bill would ask to pay a

          5  living wage. It's not as much as we'd like to do.

          6  Ideally, when a better budget climate, you know, New

          7  York ought to do more, but this is what seems

          8  fiscally prudent at this moment.

          9                 I'll walk through each of them,

         10  explain how they work, and briefly note why they're

         11  affordable.

         12                 The first in the largest category of

         13  low-wage workers affected by the bill is the City's

         14  Medicaid Home Health Care Program, listed in row

         15  one. It's a massive program, employing 50,000

         16  low-wage, largely women, you know, doing God's work,

         17  caring for the elderly and the disabled. The Living

         18  Wage Bill would bump up their wages not near enough,

         19  40 cents a year in the first year, 50 cents a year

         20  thereafter. There's a big price tag, though, because

         21  it's a big program. It's affordable, however,

         22  because there is a generous Medicaid matching

         23  formula, under which the City pays just ten percent

         24  of the cost. That translates to $5 million in the

         25  first year. Under that formula, that City investment
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          2  of $5 million will leverage $45 million in matching

          3  state and federal funds, so it's a bargain for the

          4  City. It's really an opportunity the City really

          5  can't responsibly refuse.

          6                 The second large category of workers

          7  covered are those employed under selected other

          8  categories of City Human Services contracts. These

          9  are outlined in the second row here, and this, it's

         10  three categories of other human services workers,

         11  those in the City contracted day care centers, the

         12  City contracted HeadStart programs, and the City

         13  Board of Education contracted program of services to

         14  people with cerebral palsy.

         15                 This is an important but in some ways

         16  almost symbolic element to the bill, because wages

         17  in these programs are currently well above the

         18  living wage level. That's why it's affordable to

         19  cover them at this moment.

         20                 Covering them, though, has value. It

         21  ensures that wages in those programs keep pace with

         22  inflation in the future, and that these critical

         23  caregivers, you know, are provided a minimum

         24  standard of living.

         25                 Third, and really a very significant
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          2  element of the bill, is the portion that applies to

          3  the City's large Economic Development Programs

          4  administered by the Economic Development

          5  Corporation.

          6                 Bettina Damiani will say more about

          7  this, but the living wage bill there would apply to

          8  large corporations that receive large City-funded

          9  subsidy packages to retain or create jobs in the

         10  City. These are largely, you know, in the recent

         11  past of a who is who list of the Fortune 500, some

         12  of the most profitable firms in America, what this

         13  living wage bill would do is ask that if they choose

         14  in the future to accept significant awards of

         15  taxpayer dollars, they have to bump up their

         16  mailroom workers, their cafeteria workers and their

         17  janitors up to the living wage, or in the case of

         18  the janitors and the security workers, the

         19  prevailing wage. This is a modest accountability

         20  measure, and we believe it's eminently affordable

         21  and reasonable in light of the benefits these firms

         22  are getting, and if they can't pay their mailroom

         23  workers $8.10 an hour, they have much more serious

         24  problems in this living wage bill.

         25                 The final two categories of workers
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          2  covered are those employed, are building service

          3  workers in large buildings where the City leases

          4  office space. And this provision, again, has been

          5  carefully crafted to focus only on the big fish,

          6  basically buildings where, very large office

          7  buildings where the City leases an awful lot of

          8  space, 20,000 square feet or more. As a consequence,

          9  it only affects a very small number of buildings,

         10  and James Parrott will go into the details, and it

         11  requires in effect that each year as the City leases

         12  in these large buildings come up for renewal, the

         13  subset of them that are non-prevailing wage,

         14  non-union buildings, the City will either have to

         15  negotiate with the landlord to start paying the

         16  prevailing wage, or conceivably change landlords,

         17  change buildings.

         18                 This will result in an incremental

         19  shifting over of the City's leasing into high road

         20  prevailing wage buildings, which is really an

         21  example the City should be setting.

         22                 The final category of workers covered

         23  are those employed by the City's business

         24  improvement districts. We're all familiar with these

         25  entities. They're providing important services, but
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          2  doing it with workers making $6 or $7 an hour,

          3  keeping our City clean and safe. They've just now

          4  are in the process of receiving authorization from

          5  the City to substantially raise their assessments in

          6  revenues, living wage bill would ask to spend a

          7  small fraction of that, bumping up the pay for their

          8  low-wage workers, up to 8.10 an hour plus health

          9  benefits.

         10                 Again, this is a modest cost, the

         11  bill has been further tailored to focus only on the

         12  large bids, those with more than $500,000 in

         13  revenues that can afford to do this.

         14                 So, let me move on to the questions,

         15  the possible unintended affects that, you know, you

         16  as responsible law-makers need to think about and be

         17  comfortable with.

         18                 First and foremost is the cost to the

         19  City budget which James Parrott will go into in more

         20  detail.

         21                 We're confident that as currently

         22  structured the bill is affordable. If unintended

         23  consequences that somehow up the price tag to the

         24  City are identified, we are confident that with a

         25  minor tweaking we can work with the City to achieve
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          2  a bill that has a reasonable price tag.

          3                 But the questions that often confront

          4  people when presented with living wage laws, first,

          5  will this really help the people it's intended to

          6  help? Are the workers employed, and these workers

          7  we're talking about, are they really supporting

          8  families? Do they need the money or are they

          9  suburban teenagers, you know, working extra jobs?

         10                 The Community Service Society has

         11  done an excellent analysis on this, which I believe

         12  they'll be presenting later that shows that these

         13  are really needy low-wage workers.

         14                 The second question one hears, on

         15  page seven of our report, is there a chance that the

         16  workers and their families affected will end up no

         17  better off because they'll lose as much in benefits

         18  and tax credits as they'll gain in wages?

         19                 A misleading chart prepared out in

         20  Suffolk County has been circulated suggesting that

         21  this is the case. It's just not true.

         22                 Exhibit 2 to our report provides an

         23  excellent analysis prepared by really top-notch

         24  folks at the women's career and -- Women's Center

         25  for Education and Career Advancement, who are
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          2  actually here in the audience and can answer

          3  questions, it documents that the overwhelming

          4  majority of the benefits from the higher wages do

          5  end up in the pockets of these working families. It

          6  goes through different scenarios. I'd be happy to

          7  answer questions.

          8                 The most significant and final

          9  question really is, will a living wage law result in

         10  job loss, or otherwise adversely affect the job

         11  prospects for low-wage workers? And to understand

         12  that requires sort of just walking through the

         13  experience our nation has had recently with minimum

         14  wage and living wage laws. But the clear answer is

         15  there's no job loss effects can be expected from

         16  this living wage bill.

         17                 The first point is, the consensus is

         18  among economists across the political spectrum, that

         19  hikes in the minimum wage that have occurred

         20  recently resulted in no job loss, those are across

         21  the board hikes in the minimum wage. However, living

         22  wage laws are much narrower in scope and actually

         23  have even fewer consequences. To understand this you

         24  just have to think through the different sectors

         25  that are covered. The first we discussed was the
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          2  home health care program. Again, there is no risk of

          3  job loss because the employers will be provided the

          4  extra money they need to cover the higher wages to

          5  be funded under the Medicaid matching formula, so

          6  there's just no risk of job loss.

          7                 The second significant category are

          8  the economic development programs. Again, and there

          9  there's no risk of job loss because these are large

         10  profitable corporations with only a small number of

         11  low wage workers, and wages can be raised for those

         12  few workers at marginal costs to the employers. So,

         13  I think -- I'd be happy to address other questions.

         14  Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 Next.

         18                 DR. PARROTT: Thank you. My name is

         19  James Parrott, Deputy Director and Chief Economist

         20  of the Fiscal Policy Institute. Thank you, Chairman

         21  Perkins, and thank you, Chairman Jackson, for this

         22  opportunity to testify today, and thank you for your

         23  leadership in pushing this living wage legislation

         24  to a hearing.

         25                 This legislation is rooted in the
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          2  simple notion that public resources -- I have copies

          3  of my testimony here.

          4                 This legislation is rooted in the

          5  simple notion that public resources should be used

          6  to support decent-paying jobs for hard-working New

          7  York City residents. Our tax dollars, whether in the

          8  form of subsidies to business, service contracts or

          9  lease payments for space the City uses to carry out

         10  its functions, should not go to employers who pay

         11  their workers so little that these workers cannot

         12  sustain their families without recourse to various

         13  forms of government support.

         14                 Even though the aggregate New York

         15  City economy grew strongly during the late 1990s,

         16  low-income workers and their families were not among

         17  the big winners. In fact, as FPI's the State of

         18  Working New York 2001 has documented, by the end of

         19  the decade the inflation-adjusted wages of low- and

         20  moderate-income workers were no higher than at the

         21  peak of the previous business cycle in 1989. The

         22  picture is the same when looking at family incomes.

         23                 And in reports being released today

         24  by the Economic Policy Institute and the Center on

         25  Budget and Policy Priorities along with the Fiscal

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            24

          1  CONTRACTS AND GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  Policy Institute, we note that among all 50 states

          3  New York has the widest gap in income distribution

          4  between the rich and the poor, and that the

          5  disparity has gotten much worse over the last two

          6  decades.

          7                 The income gap widened because the

          8  average incomes of those at the bottom fell again in

          9  the 1990s as it had in the 1980s, while the incomes

         10  of those at the top rose again by double-digit

         11  rates.

         12                 In the latter part of the last decade

         13  real wages for New York's low-wage workers started

         14  to rise, but at a pace insufficient to make up for

         15  the erosion taking place during the last recession

         16  and in the middle of the decade when job growth was

         17  weak.

         18                 And in a disturbing development,

         19  low-wage workers in New York saw their wages fall by

         20  six to seven percent during the 1990s while their

         21  counterparts nationally experienced wage gains of

         22  that magnitude.

         23                 As wages fell in New York, so did

         24  benefits. New York's private employers used to

         25  provide health and pension benefits to a greater
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          2  degree than the national average. With the

          3  deterioration in our labor market during the 1990s,

          4  that is no longer the case.

          5                 Private employer-provided health

          6  insurance coverage in New York fell by nearly nine

          7  percentage points in the 1990s, more than twice the

          8  decline nationally.

          9                 Based on our analysis, the likely

         10  economic and fiscal impacts of the proposed

         11  legislation, we conclude four things:

         12                 This legislation will improve the

         13  economic well-being of about 62,500 workers, a

         14  significant portion of New York's low-wage

         15  workforce.

         16                 This legislation will provide a

         17  modest $87 million but necessary economic stimulus

         18  to many low-income neighborhoods in the City, and

         19  the net economic stimulus overall to this City.

         20                 This legislation entails costs of

         21  about $5.7 million to the City budget, not a trivial

         22  sum in this year of an unprecedented $5 billion gap,

         23  but an amount that must be viewed in the context of

         24  the positive benefits that the legislation

         25  generates.
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          2                 And, finally, this legislation will

          3  not harm New York City as a location for the

          4  competitive success of businesses.

          5                 These estimates are based on our

          6  review of several government datasets and our

          7  educated estimates utilizing data from other

          8  sources.

          9                 The chart attached to this testimony

         10  that Paul referred to before summarizes many of

         11  these estimates for the various sets of covered

         12  workers.

         13                 Let me briefly highlight each of the

         14  major areas of the legislation in terms of their

         15  costs and fiscal impacts.

         16                 Home health care. This legislation

         17  provides a modest increase in the wages of home

         18  health care workers. However, since there are 50,000

         19  such workers, the bill's largest impact is in this

         20  area.

         21                 In the first year, the total wages in

         22  health care costs for these workers would rise by

         23  47.3 million. Since most home health care workers

         24  already have health care coverage, most of this cost

         25  takes the form of wage increase.
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          2                 Under the cost sharing formula for

          3  long-term care, the City's share of the total home

          4  health care cost is $4.7 million. Most of the City

          5  budget impact comes in this area.

          6                 Economic Develop Subsidies. To make

          7  any estimates as to coverage and costs in this area,

          8  one has to start with some assumptions about the

          9  extent to which the City will enter into subsidy

         10  deals going forward.

         11                 With the assistance of Good Jobs New

         12  York, and Bettina is the Project Director, we

         13  approached this first by looking at the pattern of

         14  subsidies given over the 1996 to '99 period. Using

         15  employment estimates for subsidies dating from this

         16  period, as contained in the City economic

         17  development Administration's Local Law 69 reports,

         18  we analyzed the industry distribution of employment

         19  and then turned to the current population surveyed

         20  to estimate wage levels. Based on this analysis, we

         21  estimate about 3,100 out of the 28,000 employees of

         22  subsidy recipients, would receive wage and benefit

         23  increases under the living wage law subsidy

         24  provisions.

         25                 Because an estimated 20 percent of
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          2  subsidy employees did not have health insurance,

          3  about 60 percent of the total wage and benefit cost

          4  of $35.6 million is for health insurance.

          5                 There is no cost to the City in this

          6  area, since the additional cost would be borne by

          7  subsidy recipients.

          8                 We were not able to relate this cost

          9  to the value of the tax concessions, interest

         10  savings or cash subsidy received by the firms, since

         11  the City in the past typically has not provided such

         12  information.

         13                 Large City Leases. With the

         14  assistance of the research staff at SEIU Local 32

         15  B-J in analyzing the list of City leases, we

         16  concluded that about 45 leases come up for renewal

         17  each year. Based on this, we estimated that about

         18  100 janitors and security guards would see their

         19  wages and health benefits rise under the legislation

         20  with a total cost of $1.9 million.

         21                 Since most standard building leases

         22  allow the landlord to pass-through cost increases to

         23  tenants, assuming that the City is responsible for

         24  about half of the space in these buildings overall,

         25  the annual cost to the City would be under $1
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          2  million -- would be close to $1 million.

          3                 Large Business Improvement Districts.

          4  The legislation only covers BIDs with annual budgets

          5  of $500,000 or more. Based on this, we estimated

          6  that about half of the reported 1,000 BID employees

          7  would be subject to the legislation, and that of

          8  this number, about 250 would receive wage or benefit

          9  increases.

         10                 The total increase would be about

         11  $1.65 million.

         12                 This would be borne by the people who

         13  paid the Business Improvement District special

         14  assessment fees, not general City taxpayers.

         15                 Altogether, this legislation would

         16  increase the wages and benefits of the 62,500

         17  covered workers by about $87 million. This would

         18  help thousands of these workers better provide for

         19  their families, probably enabling some to rise out

         20  of poverty. Their communities would also receive a

         21  much-needed economic lift, infusing new spending

         22  into the poorest neighborhoods in the city, creating

         23  additional jobs in the process (as well as some

         24  modest additional tax revenues for the City.) There

         25  will also likely be some savings to the City in
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          2  reduced public assistance costs. And since nearly

          3  half of the new spending comes from the state and

          4  the federal governments, in the home health care

          5  matching formula, much of this is a net new infusion

          6  into the local economy.

          7                 Offsetting the additional costs to

          8  employers, and this is mainly in the subsidy area,

          9  will be reduced turnover costs, savings on training

         10  expenses and increased worker productivity. The net

         11  additional costs to employers will not be of a

         12  magnitude to affect the competitiveness of New York

         13  City as a business location.

         14                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         15  testify for this important hearing. I'd be happy

         16  afterwards to address any questions.

         17                 Now I would like to ask Bettina to

         18  review the subsidy provisions and the implications

         19  of that.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         21  much for your testimony.

         22                 Before we proceed, I want to first

         23  ask the Sergeant-At-Arms to please clear up the back

         24  of the Chambers, especially in the area of the

         25  entrance. There's another hearing taking place next
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          2  door, in which a lot of wheelchairs are coming in

          3  and out, and that area back there needs to be

          4  cleared. There are seats upstairs for those that

          5  need to have a seat, but we need to have as much

          6  clearance as possible because of the hearing that's

          7  taking place in the Chambers next door.

          8                 I want to at this time acknowledge

          9  some members that have joined us.

         10                 Council Member Mike Nelson,

         11  Councilwoman Christine Quinn, our Majority Whip,

         12  Councilman Leroy Comrie, Councilwoman Madeline

         13  Provenzano, Council Member Hiram Monserrate, and

         14  Council Member David Yassky.

         15                 And once again, we're going to

         16  acknowledge Council Member Charles Barron, because

         17  its like that with him.

         18                 Please proceed.

         19                 MS. DAMIANI: Thank you. My name is

         20  Bettina Damiani, Director of Good Jobs New York, a

         21  joint project of the Fiscal Policy Institute and

         22  Good Jobs First, based in Washington, D.C.

         23                 Good Jobs New York promotes

         24  accountability to taxpayers in the use of economic

         25  development subsidies.
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          2                 Thank you, Chairmen Perkins and

          3  Jackson and other Committee members for this

          4  opportunity to speak with you today. I will do every

          5  effort to keep my remarks below three minutes.

          6                 Good Jobs New York applauds the

          7  Council's efforts to raise the wage of working New

          8  Yorkers, when corporations use New York City

          9  taxpayer dollars either through contracts, subsidies

         10  or leases.

         11                 Since its inception, Good Jobs New

         12  York has tracked and published information on the

         13  subsidies and tax breaks given to corporations by

         14  New York City in exchange for a company's promise to

         15  create and/or retain jobs in New York City.

         16                 We have created the only publicly

         17  available database documenting such retention deals

         18  valued at $1 million or more.

         19                 Our research findings indicate two

         20  major concerns that will be addressed by the

         21  proposed Living Wage Law. First, there are

         22  insufficient safeguards to keep corporations

         23  accountable for creating and retaining the jobs that

         24  they promised. And, second, there's a lack of

         25  transparency in the process of achieving and
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          2  monitoring those results, making input from the

          3  public virtually impossible.

          4                 The provisions in the proposed bill

          5  requiring corporations that receive economic

          6  development subsidies to provide wage and employment

          7  data would strengthen the Council's ability to

          8  ensure that New York taxpayers get the best return

          9  on their investments.

         10                 In particular, Sections 8, 9 and 10

         11  of the current draft of this bill would produce New

         12  York City's first publicly available verifiable sets

         13  of data on the number of quality jobs retained or

         14  created by corporate subsidy recipients.

         15                 It may come as a surprise to some

         16  that the New York City Economic Development

         17  Corporation does not already have in place a

         18  thorough, transparent system to monitor whether or

         19  not promises on job retention and creation are kept.

         20                 A June 2001 report by the New York

         21  City Independent Budget Office highlights the state

         22  of accountability procedures for corporate retention

         23  deals.

         24                 Corporate retention deals are

         25  approved by the New York City Industrial Development
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          2  Agency, which is a bond-issuing arm of the New York

          3  City Economic Development Corporation. The IDA

          4  states in its monthly public hearing notices, their

          5  mandate is to "advance the job opportunities,

          6  general prosperity and economic welfare of the

          7  people of the State of New York, and to improve

          8  their prosperity and standard of living."

          9                 Requiring companies that receive a

         10  significant level of public financing to pay their

         11  lowest income employees a living wage clearly speaks

         12  to this mandate.

         13                 A hidden savings to the City is

         14  likely to emerge in this capacity that directs

         15  public funds towards good jobs for working New

         16  Yorkers and away from companies that take the money

         17  and run.

         18                 By this, I mean with a living wage

         19  fewer workers at subsidized or contracting companies

         20  would need public assistance such as food stamps and

         21  Medicaid. Continuing to allow subsidized companies

         22  to pay poverty level wages means taxpayers continue

         23  to bear unknown millions of dollars in such hidden

         24  costs.

         25                 Finally, the proposed disclosure
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          2  requirement would not be an additional burden on

          3  corporations. Employers already have this

          4  information. Sharing it with the City and taxpayers

          5  would go a very long way towards filling the gaps in

          6  the current subsidy disclosure law.

          7                 By requiring companies that receive

          8  taxpayer dollars to pay workers a living wage, you

          9  will create a powerful tool for ensuring, through

         10  greater accountability and disclosure, that New York

         11  City is getting the best return on the tax dollars

         12  that we invest.

         13                 Thank you for your consideration of

         14  our testimony.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         16  much to all of you for your testimony.

         17                 There are some members that want to

         18  ask questions. Before I allow them to ask questions

         19  -- I'm not going to ask any questions at this time,

         20  I'm saving it for the members because we have a very

         21  thick topic to discuss, as you can tell from the

         22  testimony of the first witnesses, and we have quite

         23  a few individuals and organizations that want to

         24  testify, so we're anticipating a long hearing.

         25                 I would ask that the members be as
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          2  brief in their questions as possible.

          3                 There will be second rounds, so you

          4  will get one question, and then you will come back

          5  for a second round, time permitting. So, don't make

          6  statements and then have three questions within the

          7  statement, if you don't mind.

          8                 The other thing I just want to say to

          9  the members is, please make note of this article

         10  that we handed out from City Limits, which is

         11  entitled Living Wage Junkonomics. I think you will

         12  get a sense of the kinds of debates that are taking

         13  place nationally on this matter, and how relevant we

         14  are, in terms of what we're trying to do now.

         15                 To begin the questioning, I want to

         16  first call on a member of the Committee, Councilman

         17  Mike Nelson.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you, Mr.

         19  Chair. Based upon what you just asked, I'll have to

         20  truncate this.

         21                 You may have addressed this issue

         22  before I got here in the copious testimony, but what

         23  is your opinion how much this would cost? I've heard

         24  everything from 5 million to 150 million.

         25                 DR. PARROTT: Our best estimates,
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          2  based on the information we have with the

          3  assumptions we made, and you have to understand that

          4  we had to make a lot of assumptions when it comes to

          5  estimating the economic development costs related to

          6  this, that overall wages and benefits of workers

          7  covered under this bill in the various categories,

          8  this is not cost to the City, but the overall

          9  increase, wages and benefits received by the

         10  workers, would be $87 million.

         11                 Cost to the City related to two

         12  provisions of it, the home health care cost and the

         13  lease provisions where the City leases space and

         14  given that the standard building leases have a

         15  pass-through provision where the landlords can pass

         16  through the additional cost to the tenants,

         17  including the City in this case, from those two

         18  provisions the cost to the City would be $5.7

         19  million.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Okay, thank

         21  you. I'll pass to the second round, Mr. Chair.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 MR. SONN: Could I? I mean, we're

         24  confident that the price tag is very low. The

         25  noises, the feedback we're hearing from the City,
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          2  the Administration, is that larger numbers that have

          3  been floated sound like they're based on

          4  misinterpretations of some of the coverage

          5  provisions and definitions. And if some of them

          6  inadvertently capture programs that they were not

          7  meant to capture, obviously we'll refine them. But

          8  this will get down -- the price tag is, and with

          9  refinement, will stay, you know, very low. The

         10  debate here is not going to be over cost to the

         11  City, it's going to be more on philosophical issues,

         12  you know, business climate, image, we think this is,

         13  for those reasons the right thing to do, that if you

         14  take taxpayer money, you should pay a living wage.

         15  But really that's what this is going to come down

         16  to, not cost, which will be low.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:

         18  Philosophically we agree, and there's just more

         19  topic in there. But this is a strong consideration,

         20  this particular juncture or time. Thank you.

         21                 MR. SONN: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Councilwoman

         23  Chris Quinn. Let me congratulate you on the passing

         24  of the transgender bill, while we're at it.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.
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          2                 Actually, before you applaud, you

          3  should also congratulate the Chair of Gov Ops,

          4  Council Member Perkins, who was the prime sponsor of

          5  the transgender civil rights bill we passed this

          6  morning in the Committee.

          7                 And you'll see that the Committee of

          8  the City Council passed a bill giving transgender

          9  New Yorkers civil rights, and contrary to what many

         10  people would say, the sky has not fallen in and the

         11  world has gone on, and maybe there's a parallel even

         12  to the debate here, if we pass this bill, probably

         13  the sky won't fall in and the world will go on.

         14                 The 5.73 I think it was, or whatever,

         15  million dollars, that's a year, for cost for a year.

         16  Are you able to figure out how much money will end

         17  up back, kind of either come back to the City in

         18  increased taxes that people will pay if their wages

         19  go up, or end up kind of back in the City's economy,

         20  as people have more money in their paychecks that

         21  they can then use to purchase things, et cetera?

         22                 You know, what I'm trying to see is

         23  if there's -- 5 might be the outright cost to the

         24  City give or take, but if there is some other

         25  economic impact that perhaps offsets that, which
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          2  really then in reality, perhaps not on a ledger, but

          3  in reality, decreases that $5 million number to even

          4  a smaller fiscal impact on the City given the

          5  benefit of increased taxes paid and increased

          6  purchasing and consumer power?

          7                 DR. PARROTT: We don't have any

          8  precise estimates along those lines, but you're

          9  absolutely right that this bill provides for modest,

         10  but significant increase, in the wages and benefits

         11  for several thousand low-income workers, and very

         12  importantly, given that the home health care

         13  provision is the major provision here, given the

         14  cost sharing funding formula there where 90 percent

         15  of that total cost is borne by the federal and the

         16  state governments, that represents an infusion of

         17  new resources into the City. So, out of the $87

         18  million wage and benefit increase that low-income

         19  New Yorkers, New York City residents receive, almost

         20  half of that comes from outside of New York City.

         21  So, clearly, there's a net infusion of new resources

         22  into the City because of that.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So, it's not

         24  inaccurate to think of it this way, that this may

         25  cost the City a little, but it will, also will in a
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          2  way be making money because of increased taxes and

          3  increased consumer activity?

          4                 DR. PARROTT: And also reduced public

          5  assistance expenditures.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Right.

          7                 DR. PARROTT: Because some low-income

          8  New Yorkers will be lifted out of the eligibility

          9  range for that and will be more self-sufficient

         10  because of the living wage bill.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I'm going to

         13  make a -- ask a question of the panel that relates

         14  to an editorial in today's New York Post called The

         15  Council's Job Killer. I want to get your response to

         16  the point of that, which essentially, quote, goes

         17   "worst of all, the low-end workers the bill claims

         18  to want to help but who would find themselves out of

         19  a job nonetheless." That is the last sentence of

         20  that editorial, essentially claiming that the bill

         21  is bad for low-end workers, despite the claim that

         22  the bill is good; can you respond to that, please?

         23                 MR. SONN: If I may briefly, and I

         24  would like to direct the Committee to pages nine and

         25  10 of our testimony, which really go through a
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          2  discussion in detail, but the short answer is the

          3  research and recent experience in this country does

          4  not bear that out, and it's a two-part answer: One,

          5  when the minimum wage, which applies to everyone

          6  across the board has been raised, the most price

          7  sensitive of employers, the fastfood industry, there

          8  have been no identifiable job losses, and they're

          9  100 percent low-wage employers. Now, think what the

         10  effect would be when you take that and apply it in a

         11  far less sensitive context; i.e., think of the

         12  categories of employers here: 1) the home health

         13  care contractors, where they're being given the

         14  extra money to pay the wages, it's going to cost

         15  them nothing so there's no reason to even think

         16  about layoffs; or 2) the Fortune 500 companies

         17  getting EDC subsidy packages. They only have a small

         18  number of low-wage workers. The idea that Bear

         19  Stearns will shut down its cafeteria or move to New

         20  Jersey because it's asked to pay ten an hour to its

         21  mailroom clerks, it's just, it's not plausible.

         22                 And the Mayor has really noted this

         23  as -- Good Jobs has publicized, he was quoted as

         24  saying that no sensible business decides where to

         25  locate based on a few tax give-aways, it's more
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          2  basic things like human capital, the education

          3  system, the infrastructure, and, you know, this is

          4  not going to leave firms to leave the City.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you.

          6                 Councilman --

          7                 MS. DAMIANI: Can I just --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Sure.

          9                 MS. DAMIANI: Attached to our

         10  testimony is a list of some of the corporations that

         11  Paul has been referring to that has received

         12  subsidies, and we've also looked at some of those

         13  that have laid off workers despite receiving job

         14  retention deals.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Councilman

         17  Yassky, and then Councilman Davis, and then we'll go

         18  to our second panel, which will be with Comptroller

         19  Bill Thompson, followed by our third panel.

         20                 Councilman Yassky.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Yes, I also

         22  wanted to make a point that Council Member Quinn

         23  did, that it seems to me, just on economic

         24  development grounds this is a good deal for the

         25  City. I can't think of another economic development
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          2  program that for a $5 million investment generates

          3  $45 million to economic activity.

          4                 When I used to work for City OMB, if

          5  it was a one-to-one return you thought that was

          6  pretty good, so I think nine to one is quite

          7  exceptional.

          8                 But let me ask another question,

          9  which is on BIDs, why did you pick the level that

         10  you did, and here is my question: My concern is,

         11  will there be a -- will you kind of inhibit BIDs

         12  from expanding because they don't want to hit the

         13  $500,000 level, and in some of the neighborhoods I

         14  represent I think BIDs are a good thing and they're

         15  very helpful, I'm wondering if this could possibly

         16  inhibit BIDs from expanding where that expansion

         17  would otherwise be warranted?

         18                 MR. SONN: It's an excellent question.

         19  I mean, we'd be open to other suggestions about ways

         20  to handle thresholds. When you have a threshold

         21  there's always potential for a little bit of, you

         22  know, for kind of disruptive effect at the margins,

         23  if you do it in terms of numbers of employees, in

         24  terms of budget, and if there's some other

         25  alternative objective measure that kind of
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          2  identifies the large BIDs with a lot of workers that

          3  can afford to pay a high wage, from the small, poor

          4  neighborhood, you know, largely outer borough BIDs,

          5  you know, we'd be open to all alternatives.

          6                 We don't believe that's likely to be

          7  the case but we'd be delighted to work with your

          8  office. We've been working constructively with the

          9  Comptroller and many other sort of thoughtful people

         10  in government on this.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Councilman

         14  Davis.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS: Yes, thank you.

         16                 I am also a prime sponsor of this

         17  bill and would like to compliment Chairman Bill

         18  Perkins and Chairman Robert Jackson, for undertaking

         19  this most worthy initiative.

         20                 This is about bridging the gap,

         21  bringing people together, this is about bringing the

         22  haves, have-nots to the table, shrinking between the

         23  rich and the poor.

         24                 I have a question for Bettini

         25  Damiani.
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          2                 Say it.

          3                 MS. DAMIANI: Damiani.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS: Damiani, very

          5  nice.

          6                 Okay, my question is simple. In your

          7  testimony you said your research that found that

          8  first there are insufficient safeguards to keep

          9  corporations accountable for creating and retaining

         10  the jobs they promise, and, second, there is a lack

         11  of transparency in the process of achieving and

         12  monitoring those results, making input from the

         13  public virtually impossible.

         14                 In addition to hearings like this by

         15  the City Council, how can the Council help in the

         16  oversight to cure the lack of transparency in the

         17  process?

         18                 MS. DAMIANI: Thank you very much for

         19  that question.

         20                 I think the shortest version would

         21  be, one is to address the issues that are currently

         22  proposed in this bill, simply we're asking for some

         23  very simple information that corporations already

         24  have, which is based on employment and wage data

         25  from the corporations that have received taxpayer
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          2  dollars, and once we have, and you all have access

          3  to that type of information, then the City and the

          4  taxpayers and the public can then do a true cost

          5  benefit analysis of how beneficial these subsidy

          6  deals are.

          7                 So, paying attention to the actual

          8  number of jobs created and retained by these

          9  corporations, while many think it's probably a very

         10  simple request, our experience has turned out to be

         11  otherwise.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS: Thank you very

         13  much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         15  much, and we appreciate your contribution and

         16  obviously the thorough amount of work that you've

         17  done on this subject, you are obviously the leading

         18  experts in this field and you have made a great

         19  contribution towards our better understanding of

         20  what this bill is about, and how effective it can be

         21  for New Yorkers. Thank you very much.

         22                 Next we're going to hear from our

         23  Comptroller Bill Thompson followed by a panel of

         24  non-profits, that will include David Jones, Dr.

         25  Megan McLaughlin, Darwin Davis, and they will be
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          2  following our Comptroller, so please be ready.

          3                 MR. NEWMAN: Please raise your right

          4  hand.

          5                 Do you solemnly swear or affirm the

          6  testimony you're about to give is the truth, the

          7  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          8                 (Witnesses sworn.)

          9                 MR. NEWMAN: Please state your names

         10  and affiliations for the record.

         11                 COMPTROLLER THOMPSON: William C.

         12  Thompson, Jr., Comptroller, City of New York.

         13                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER CASTELL: Eduardo

         14  Castell, Deputy Comptroller for External Relations,

         15  Comptroller's Office.

         16                 COMPTROLLER THOMPSON: Committee Chair

         17  Perkins, Committee Chair Jackson, distinguished

         18  members of the Government Operations Committee, good

         19  afternoon.

         20                 I'm proud to come before you to

         21  support the Living Wage legislation, Intro. 66-A. I

         22  believe it to be one of the most significant pieces

         23  of legislation the Council can pass this year.

         24                 The fact is that in New York City far

         25  too many hard-working people depend on low-wage jobs
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          2  that do not pay enough to afford them the most basic

          3  necessities, like food, shelter, transportation and

          4  health care.

          5                 The fact is that too many

          6  hard-working men and women in the City labor all

          7  week long but are not able to climb out of poverty.

          8                 Put quite simply, $5.15 is not

          9  sufficient.

         10                 I fully recognize that these are

         11  tough fiscal times, however, at a reasonable cost to

         12  the City, we can lift thousands of workers above the

         13  poverty line and spur the City's economy. This

         14  legislation will do that.

         15                 There are some who argue that

         16  government should not interfere in the marketplace.

         17  To require businesses to pay more than the minimum

         18  wage is said to impose a burden on the employers and

         19  the economy. Studies of the actual impact of minimum

         20  wage laws do not support these contentions.

         21  Employers will find that paying a higher than

         22  minimum wage means they have more productive

         23  workers, lower turnover and training cost and less

         24  absenteeism.

         25                 It is pertinent to point out here,
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          2  that we are not in the vanguard of social change

          3  with this legislation. This is in many ways an

          4  extension of the state and city prevailing wage

          5  laws. What we have found is that these laws and

          6  their enforcement lead to higher quality work. At

          7  least 80 other cities and counties, including

          8  Boston, Chicago and Los Angeles, have successfully

          9  instituted a living wage.

         10                 Living wages in 2002 are mostly in

         11  the eight to nine dollar per hour range. Many are

         12  linked to the federal poverty level wage, with an

         13  extra $1.50 or so for workers without health

         14  benefits.

         15                 Preliminary analysis from my office,

         16  based on the most recent version of the bill

         17  available to me, shows that the total cost of the

         18  bill to the City and tax levy funds would be $7.9

         19  million in the first year of implementation.

         20                 The costs are related to each of the

         21  four aspects of the bill. For home health care

         22  workers, the cost to the City would be $5.1 million

         23  the first year, other costs will be borne by the

         24  State and federal governments.

         25                 For other caregivers, including those
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          2  who provide child care, HeadStart or cerebral

          3  palsy-related work, the cost will be negligible the

          4  first year.

          5                 Again, other costs will be carried by

          6  the state and federal governments. For employees of

          7  businesses receiving economic development subsidies,

          8  the costs will be paid directly by the businesses

          9  and not by the City.

         10                 And finally, put building workers in

         11  buildings where the City is a tenant, the costs will

         12  be borne as the City's leases come up for renewal,

         13  mostly outside of Manhattan. The cost to the City in

         14  the first year is estimated $156,000.

         15                 These costs are a reasonable

         16  investment for the economic stimulus Intro. 66-A

         17  will provide our City and for a healthy productive

         18  workforce.

         19                 The application of a living wage to

         20  home health care workers in particular appears to

         21  have substantial economic benefits.

         22                 The home health care industry is one

         23  of the fastest growing in the nation, and promises

         24  to grow further.

         25                 With the rising average age of our
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          2  citizens and the retirement of millions of baby

          3  boomers in the years before 2010, the City has

          4  increasing needs for strong, home-based health care

          5  services. These services can help take the pressure

          6  off the City's public hospitals, at the same time

          7  they improve the quality of life in the City for

          8  citizens who need this care.

          9                 So, it will be wise to raise wages to

         10  attract more people into this industry.

         11                 Better paid workers tend to be more

         12  productive workers and higher pay makes it easier to

         13  attract a qualified stable workforce.

         14                 The Comptroller's Office is

         15  responsible for investigating all allegations of

         16  non-compliance and enforcing the current 6-109 of

         17  the New York City Administrative Code.

         18                 Intro. 66-A authorizes the

         19  Comptroller's Office to have the same power to

         20  investigate, including subpoena power and the

         21  ability to withhold payments, do a covered employer

         22  as set forth in the State Labor Law. An

         23  investigation can be commenced upon a verified

         24  complaint from an employee, employee's

         25  representative, a labor union or any other aggrieved
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          2  party claiming a violation of the law.

          3                 As I mentioned, the Comptroller's

          4  Office is already charged with making sure that

          5  businesses are in compliance with existing

          6  prevailing wage laws.

          7                 To monitor, investigate and enforce

          8  living wage law, Intro. 66-A would simply be an

          9  extension and expansion of the current

         10  responsibilities.

         11                 As with existing prevailing wage

         12  laws, the Comptroller's Office would be responsible

         13  for implementing the provisions of the bill by

         14  providing information to the public and covered

         15  employees and for ensuring effective compliance by

         16  all City affiliated agencies and covered employers.

         17  Given the enormous positive effect this increase

         18  could have on the lives of the working poor, the

         19  cost to the City is a reasonable and worthwhile

         20  investment, even with a tight budget. Heard work

         21  should be rewarded. In the midst of such affluence,

         22  workers in New York City should not be members of

         23  the working poor.

         24                 Thank you once again for the

         25  opportunity to testify before you today, and I would
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          2  like to thank the members of the City Council, each

          3  and every one of you for your work on this

          4  incredible piece of legislation.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

          6  much for your testimony.

          7                 I want to express my personal

          8  appreciation for your attendance. I know the

          9  busyness of your schedule and the fact that you took

         10  the time to be here in person, as opposed to sending

         11  a staff member, is very much appreciated.

         12                 We have a few members with some

         13  questions.

         14                 I wanted to ask one quick question,

         15  first. Would you change anything about this bill? In

         16  particular, what is your opinion about the reporting

         17  requirements, do you think they are reasonable or

         18  too burdensome?

         19                 COMPTROLLER THOMPSON: I think the

         20  reporting requirements are reasonable. When you

         21  start to look and do comparisons with what is

         22  required on prevailing wage, I think it's

         23  comparable. So, I don't think it's onerous, I don't

         24  think it's out of line, I think it's very

         25  reasonable.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I want to take a

          3  moment to acknowledge the presence of Councilwoman

          4  Yvette Clarke and Councilman James Sanders.

          5                 We have some questions from our

          6  members, starting with Peter Vallone, Jr.,

          7  Councilman Peter Vallone, Jr.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you,

          9  Mr. Chair.

         10                 Thank you, also, for coming down

         11  today. I know many officials send representatives

         12  and it's always good to see you.

         13                 Very quick question. I don't think

         14  any of us disagree philosophically, it's all a

         15  question of cost here and you said that it should

         16  cost about $7.9 million, that's the cost in the

         17  first year of tax levy dollars. And I don't believe

         18  the Council staff has weighed in yet. I have read,

         19  though, that the Mayor's position is that this would

         20  be over 100 million. You would be in the best

         21  position to know, and I know it's early, as to why

         22  there is that type of disparity between yourself and

         23  the Mayor; do you have any opinion on that?

         24                 COMPTROLLER THOMPSON: I don't know

         25  what he's looking at, I don't know what the Mayor's
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          2  people are looking at. I will tell you that right

          3  now, and we've done, this is a preliminary analysis

          4  on our part, but we're confident, at least at

          5  looking at first year and believing that it is below

          6  $8 million. I don't know whether it's a

          7  misinterpretation or whether looking at large or

          8  overall costs, but in tax levy dollars we see it as

          9  no more than $8 million.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I have many

         11  more questions but I know that we're in a rush, so

         12  I'll cede my time. Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Council Member

         14  Charles Barron.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: First of all,

         16  I want to thank you very much for your testimony,

         17  and it really gives us a shot in the arm here in the

         18  City Council for your support on this, and seeing

         19  that it is a very, very reasonable request, and I

         20  want to agree with Council Member Yassky in saying

         21  that certainly a $5.1 million for home care workers,

         22  and even the 7.9 million is a reasonable trade off

         23  for 45 million economic activity, and then for you

         24  to just lay out how there are other ways that things

         25  can happen to make this more reasonable. But I think
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          2  the most striking thing for me in the testimony is

          3  that it makes workers more productive, a lower

          4  turnover, less absenteeism and higher work quality,

          5  and you, the home care workers, you deserve it

          6  because you really care.

          7                 (Applause.)

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you.

          9                 I just wanted to say to the

         10  Comptroller, those studies, could you just give a

         11  little more information on how they came about, some

         12  of those conclusions that higher wages brings this

         13  to a City, and what it can mean even for the tax?

         14                 COMPTROLLER THOMPSON: Most of the

         15  studies that reflect increase of salaries are tied

         16  to minimum wage increases in the past, and they show

         17  greater levels of retention, they show the ability

         18  to attract workforce. Most of them in the past have

         19  been tied to minimum wage increases and the effects

         20  or non-effect in the fact that you wind up not

         21  losing additional employees, or that you wind up not

         22  cutting back. So, most of them are tied to that,

         23  Councilman.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Council Member

         25  James Davis.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS: Thank you.

          3                 Same question previous, we asked one

          4  time about the process. Based on your testimony it

          5  was clear, and, first of all, we thank you for being

          6  here, Comptroller Thompson, it was clear that you

          7  would provide those safeguards, as it was stated

          8  earlier there are insufficient safeguards, and based

          9  on your findings, my only question: will you make

         10  the public aware on a consistent basis of your

         11  findings?

         12                 COMPTROLLER THOMPSON: Well, this is

         13  something that I believe that in implementation

         14  there is the Council and then the legislation

         15  requires the Comptroller at least to keep a public

         16  database along I believe with the Mayor, so, in

         17  fact, we can turn around and notify the Council,

         18  keep them aware and up-to-date and keep the public

         19  up-to-date one the progress and how things are

         20  moving there, yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS: Thank you so

         22  very much for your testimony.

         23                 COMPTROLLER THOMPSON: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Councilman

         25  Nelson.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you, Mr.

          3  Chair.

          4                 Thank you, Comptroller Thompson. And,

          5  again, also for truly being here. It's nice for

          6  yourself to be here as much as you can, and you

          7  always seem to be here.

          8                 I also want to say something, too,

          9  and no applause, please. I'm not doing it for that

         10  reason.

         11                 I've had a couple of bad reports

         12  through my years in office about some home care

         13  tenants, but 99 percent has been how the people in

         14  the home have treated the family so well and so

         15  caring, like they were members of the family. So,

         16  those are the stories you don't hear very often. So,

         17  I'm glad that I'm a co-prime on this also.

         18                 But my question is, have you had a

         19  chance to analyze any of the other municipalities,

         20  their records? Because my main concern, my main fear

         21  is in the arena of firings in balancing the budget.

         22  So, yes, we hire, we give more money to X amount of

         23  people, but we had to fire 20 percent of the

         24  workers. This I think should be on everybody's mind

         25  more than anything else, as well.
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          2                 COMPTROLLER THOMPSON: We haven't had

          3  the chance yet. I mean, there are some additional

          4  things that we're trying, some additional analysis

          5  that we're trying to do right now in looking and in

          6  talking to other municipalities. But the reality is,

          7  we really don't believe that it will have a

          8  substantial impact, and cost -- I mean, as you know,

          9  I try and track jobs and job loss, particularly in

         10  the private sector, we don't believe it will lead to

         11  substantial loss of jobs at all. It just, it doesn't

         12  in a number of ways, and the greatest impact is in

         13  home health care workers, but others we believe it

         14  is not going to have a large impact on also.

         15                 So, we don't believe so, but we are

         16  trying to track and come up with additional numbers

         17  over the next couple of weeks.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Good. Because

         19  that was the concern, to be a rudderless ship in

         20  these areas, you know, could be a problem.

         21                 COMPTROLLER THOMPSON: Thank you.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you, Mr.

         23  Comptroller.

         24                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Let me ask one
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          2  or two other quick questions.

          3                 The current draft of the bill

          4  provides a private right of action for workers,

          5  unions and other various groups to sue for its

          6  enforcement.

          7                 Do you have an opinion about this

          8  additional avenue of enforcement? Would it conflict

          9  or enhance the Comptroller's enforcement powers?

         10                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER CASTELL: Let me

         11  just help answer that. Thank you.

         12                 We don't believe that will conflict

         13  in any way. It certainly adds to the ability for

         14  there to be enforcement of the Comptroller's Office.

         15  You guys, this Council and the Mayor put the laws on

         16  the books, if it relates to enforcement and we're

         17  involved in that, we want to make sure that there

         18  are as many provisions to ensure that enforcement as

         19  possible. And as a matter of fact, relating to the

         20  earlier question about documentation, what we have

         21  found in prevailing wage is that adequate and

         22  accurate documentation is the linchpin of

         23  enforcement, so we certainly welcome that and we

         24  believe that anything above that, particularly as it

         25  gives individuals a right of action, is something
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          2  that only strengthens enforcement of the bill.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: One final

          5  question, probably opening up Pandora's Box in a

          6  way, but do you feel that the Comptroller's Office

          7  is well poised to implement this particular, and

          8  enforce this bill if it is passed, or would it need

          9  more resources?

         10                 COMPTROLLER THOMPSON: To be honest

         11  about it, we would need some additional resources,

         12  but I don't believe that --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Remember, now,

         14  you've been sworn in, "to be honest about it."

         15                 COMPTROLLER THOMPSON: Which is why

         16  I'm answering the question that way. We would need

         17  some additional resources. I don't believe that

         18  would be exorbitant. We would obviously need

         19  additional individuals to go into the field and be

         20  able to follow-up and monitor, as well as some

         21  support, offer support, and last but not least,

         22  definitely on the computer side, to maintaining the

         23  database. But I don't believe that those costs would

         24  be exorbitant.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Needless to say,
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          2  we'll have to be in conversation with you about

          3  those costs as we begin to look at the fiscal -- the

          4  impacts of the bill, in terms of the budget.

          5                 Thank you very much for your

          6  testimony, and for your presence, and for your

          7  support.

          8                 COMPTROLLER THOMPSON: Once again,

          9  Chairman Perkins, Chairman Jackson, and the members

         10  of the Council, I'd like to congratulate all of you

         11  on introducing and moving forward on this historic

         12  piece of legislation. We're in debt to all of you.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: We love

         15  applause, but in the interest of time we want to try

         16  to keep it down as much as possible, keep up your

         17  enthusiasm, but the next panel will be a panel

         18  consisting of David R. Jones of the Community

         19  Service Society; Darwin Davis, Executive Director of

         20  the Human Services Council, and Dr. Megan E.

         21  McLaughlin, the Federation of Protestant Welfare

         22  Agencies.

         23                 Before we swear them in, I want to,

         24  once again, reiterate the time constraints that

         25  we're under and ask that you summarize your
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          2  testimony as opposed to reading it, giving us those

          3  important areas of interest and concern that you

          4  might have, so that we can then pursue these matters

          5  further through the questioning of the panel, I mean

          6  of the Council members.

          7                 So, we're also going to be strictly

          8  adhering to a three-minute per panelist

          9  presentation, and then, of course, we will have

         10  further dialogue after your presentation.

         11                 You'll be sworn in now by our

         12  Counsel.

         13                 MR. NEWMAN: Please raise your right

         14  hand.

         15                 Do you solemnly swear or affirm that

         16  the testimony you're about to give is the truth, the

         17  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         18                 (Witnesses sworn.)

         19                 MR. NEWMAN: Please state your name

         20  and affiliations for the record.

         21                 MS. McLAUGHLIN: Megan McLaughlin,

         22  Executive Director/CEO, Federation of Protestant

         23  Welfare Agencies.

         24                 MR. JONES: Davis Jones, President and

         25  CEO of the Community Service Society of New York.
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          2                 MR. DAVIS: Darwin Davis, Executive

          3  Director of Human Services Council of New York City.

          4                 MR. NEWMAN: Please begin.

          5                 MR. JONES: Okay, I'll start.

          6                 I David Jones, as I said, I'm

          7  President of CSS, and I'm here to testify in favor

          8  of the passage of the Living Wage Law in New York

          9  City.

         10                 CSS has been working on issues of

         11  poverty for over 155 years. We think this is a

         12  singular opportunity and we welcome the fact that

         13  this Council is taking on such a critical issue.

         14                 This is moved in large part because

         15  of the welfare reform legislation that went on which

         16  sent in New York City alone hundreds of thousands of

         17  people into work, mostly mothers of young children,

         18  with a promise that this would be, employment would

         19  be a road out of poverty.

         20                 It's been an empty promise for most.

         21                 A recent CSS report shows that one

         22  out of five wage earners in New York City don't make

         23  enough to earn a living wage, and the problem

         24  continues to grow.

         25                 The proportion of City residents
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          2  earning below the living wage required to be

          3  economically self-sufficient has been rising, from

          4  15 percent of the City's workforce in 1979 to 1980,

          5  to 16.2 percent in '88/'89, to nearly 19 percent in

          6  1999 to 2000, finally to 19.6 percent in 2000/2001.

          7                 If low wage workers were what we hear

          8  about traditionally, oh, they're kids working at

          9  their teenage jobs, and getting a little extra

         10  money, this wouldn't be so bad. If this were

         11  Winetka, Illinois, this might be okay.

         12                 For New York, however, it's an

         13  outright disaster. We've taken a careful look and we

         14  have a document that we've given to the members of

         15  the Council, to look what's happening to workers who

         16  are now earning below a living wage in New York

         17  City.

         18                 Over 60 percent of low-wage earners

         19  live in poor or near poor families. More than nine

         20  out of ten are adults. More than three out of four

         21  work full-time. The majority are women. Eight out of

         22  ten are people of color. Six out of ten have a high

         23  school diploma and they still can't make it. We're

         24  attaching the data brief to this testimony that

         25  describes these findings in greater detail.
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          2                 But what's important is that there's

          3  not teenagers working here, these are adults

          4  struggling every day to make ends meet for their

          5  family. So, don't be diverted here.

          6                 Last year, polls conducted in the

          7  City of New York showed that 80 percent of parents

          8  in New York City strongly favored raising the wages

          9  of full-time workers to lift their families above

         10  the poverty line. The City Council has a unique

         11  opportunity to take an important step by using its

         12  contracting authority and economic development

         13  policies, to shape the low-wage labor market.

         14                 I am particularly sensitive to the

         15  problems of not-profits, I've run one now for 16

         16  years, and particularly those that rely on

         17  government contracts.

         18                 The price of additional funds to pay

         19  for increased wages may not be covered in these

         20  contracts. We and other not-for-profits are working

         21  to assure that the impact of these costs are

         22  minimal.

         23                 But let me close with one statement:

         24  I, leading a not-for-profit, do not feel it's

         25  acceptable to have government transfer services and
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          2  contracts to us only to cut costs and further

          3  impoverish poor people.

          4                 It's not acceptable for anybody to do

          5  that. And we have to draw the line here. Make every

          6  effort you can to minimize the impact, but we can't

          7  be used as shills for government, to essentially

          8  further impoverish people.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         11  much, Mr. Jones.

         12                 Let me just respond immediately to

         13  the point that you raised. We, in this Council, and

         14  I personally, couldn't agree with you more, that we

         15  are not comfortable with the predicament that you

         16  describe, which a category of low-wage workers, that

         17  many of us support in one way or another, cannot be

         18  at this time a part of this, and/or may be used, as

         19  you might say, shills.

         20                 So, I just want you to understand

         21  that we appreciate your testimony, we appreciate

         22  your support, and we also appreciate the critique

         23  that you have and we'll be taking it to heart as we

         24  further deliberate on how to address the need for

         25  all low-wage workers, to have a living wage.
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          2                 Next.

          3                 DR. McLAUGHLIN: Good afternoon.

          4                 First, I'd like to thank Committee

          5  Chair Perkins, and Councilman Jackson, for holding

          6  this hearing and for the opportunity to testify.

          7                 I come before you on behalf of the

          8  Federation of Protestant Welfare Agencies, which is

          9  an alliance of about 240 human service

         10  organizations, providing social services across the

         11  City. We also work with more than 100 churches that

         12  provide social services.

         13                 For the past eight years the

         14  federation has championed humane health and social

         15  welfare policies and have fought for expanded

         16  resources for the City's most disenfranchised

         17  communities.

         18                 We share a special concern for

         19  low-income women, for children, elderly and

         20  families. Our public policy advocacy focuses on

         21  important services provided by all member agencies

         22  and the basic need of the individuals and families

         23  they serve.

         24                 The Living Wage Bill has a laudable

         25  goal, one that is consistent with the Federation's
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          2  long-term agenda.

          3                 For many years we have advocated

          4  strenuously for an increase in the federal and state

          5  minimum wages so that workers can earn enough to

          6  support themselves and their families.

          7                 We also have fought vigorously for

          8  sufficient public funding so that Social Services

          9  can provide their own staff with decent wages and

         10  benefits.

         11                 Intro. 66-A, with the changes that

         12  have recently been included is a step in the right

         13  direction.

         14                 Although it will not affect the wages

         15  of most day care and Head Start employees, many of

         16  whom already earn more than the $10 per your to be

         17  reached in 2006, the bill would raise the wages and

         18  ensure health coverage for many of the poorest paid

         19  service and health workers.

         20                 Initially we had, we raised concerns

         21  about some aspects of the bill, and we are very

         22  pleased that they have been addressed in 66-A, but

         23  just to reference them, the overly broad reach of

         24  the bill, many non-profit community and faith-based

         25  housing development agencies receive City land and
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          2  buildings for less than market value, and some

          3  not-for-profits have leases with the City, and we're

          4  very pleased that you have addressed that concern.

          5                 Another concern was the onerous

          6  certification requirements, you have also addressed

          7  that.

          8                 Another major concern which Intro.

          9  66-A has addressed is the withholding of money based

         10  on a complaint of wrongdoing before a finding. We

         11  are very pleased that now a finding is required.

         12                 However, there remains two concerns,

         13  which we'd like to raise, and one has been raised

         14  already, and I urge you not to underestimate the

         15  importance of this, and this is the need to protect

         16  City contractors from unfunded mandates.

         17                 Intro. 66-A requires contractors

         18  operating with the 100 percent City funding to meet

         19  certain wage and benefit levels, but the bill fails

         20  to require the City to pay for any resulting

         21  increased cost. This is both illogical and unfair, I

         22  think.

         23                 It is also a dangerous precedent for

         24  City-funded contractors.

         25                 The State has passed a law that will
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          2  provide ten percent of necessary funding for the

          3  Medicaid-funded Home Care Program. But what will

          4  happen to the Home Care agencies when the one-time

          5  funding of the conversion of Blue Cross runs out?

          6                 For the moment, day care and Head

          7  Start wages are already at the 2006 wage level, but

          8  the law will set a precedent that the non-profit

          9  agencies cannot accept, since they are often the

         10  first to be affected by budget cuts.

         11                 I know that the overwhelming majority

         12  of the Council members are sponsors of this bill,

         13  and we recommend you for your concern. But your

         14  desire to ensure decent wages for workers will be

         15  naught if the City budgets in future years do not

         16  include the money necessary to pay the required

         17  rate.

         18                 We believe that the solution is to

         19  build a protection into the law from the start. That

         20  means now.

         21                 Finally, we urge you to add the EISEP

         22  workers into the bill's coverage.

         23                 These are home care workers providing

         24  care to infirm and elderly seniors who are not

         25  Medicaid eligible. They're not covered by the
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          2  recently enacted state law which requires extra

          3  funds for Medicaid home care.

          4                 The inequity here is obvious. Home

          5  care workers providing the same service to different

          6  clients will be paid based not on their work, but

          7  based on the source of funding. For the very

          8  low-paid home care workers, this is simply unfair.

          9                 I urge you to do whatever is

         10  necessary to bring these workers under the

         11  protection of the proposed law.

         12                 In conclusion, I thank you for

         13  listening. The struggle to improve the wages and

         14  benefits of this City's lowest wage earners is a

         15  long and difficult one, and I commend you for taking

         16  on this daunting challenge.

         17                 Without the support of our agencies

         18  and other human service groups, and the millions of

         19  people they serve, however, the campaign will not

         20  have this strength or forcefulness it rightfully

         21  deserves.

         22                 Federation, its member agencies and

         23  the other human service providers can and should be

         24  the backbone of the support for this bill.

         25                 We are eager to join the labor unions
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          2  and other advocacy and good government groups in a

          3  strenuous campaign to enact the bill into law. But

          4  our agencies are unlikely to get onboard unless the

          5  bill is amended to protect their clients and their

          6  programs.

          7                 I hope and I trust you will find a

          8  way to make that happen.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 MR. DAVIS: Good afternoon. I would

         11  like to thank Councilmen Jackson and Perkins for

         12  hosting this hearing this afternoon, and hearing

         13  from the Human Services Council on this matter.

         14                 Non-profits, as partners with

         15  government, deliver a wide range of services to New

         16  Yorkers in need.

         17                 These services include youth and

         18  after school programs, senior meals and adult day

         19  centers, employment and training for new immigrants

         20  and those leaving welfare, mental health counseling

         21  for short term and traumatic needs, substance abuse,

         22  day treatment and residential detoxification,

         23  developmental disabilities for those with physical

         24  and/or cognitive challenges.

         25                 Government provides the lion's share
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          2  of dollars for these services, creates RFPs and

          3  awards, monitors and audits contracts. Non-profits

          4  provide the administrative managerial expertise,

          5  programming staffing and implementation, customer

          6  and client relations, and a community base for

          7  creative solutions.

          8                 In recent years, the non-profit

          9  sector's ability to hire, retain and train a quality

         10  workforce has been hampered by perennially low wages

         11  embodied in government contracts.

         12                 These workers are clerical

         13  assistants, food service workers, teachers' aids,

         14  intake workers, and maintenance staff. They also

         15  include child care staff, mental health counselors,

         16  child welfare case aids, substance abuse prevention

         17  providers.

         18                 The issue of wages and benefits and

         19  their deleterious impact on the non-profit human

         20  services workforce, is a major concern to nearly all

         21  non-profits in New York City and indeed throughout

         22  the State.

         23                 Human Services Council has organized

         24  a workforce campaign on this very issue, inclusive

         25  of some 800 non-profits around the state, to
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          2  specifically ask government, and in this case the

          3  Governor, to increase and invest additional

          4  resources in government contracts so that we can pay

          5  wages that are necessary to hire and retain a

          6  quality workforce.

          7                 The revised Living Wage bill

          8  currently before the City Council is the result of

          9  some member agencies suggesting alternatives to the

         10  original provisions, and we want to thank you for

         11  making those provisions.

         12                 In addition, though, 66-A has an

         13  expensive and I think, thus, a dangerous

         14  precedent-setting potential. This precedent is the

         15  exclusion of pass-through provisions. Excluding a

         16  pass-through provision in Intro. 66-A works for Head

         17  Start, child care, home care and cerebral palsy,

         18  because there's a third-party payor known as

         19  Medicaid. But what happens when there is no

         20  third-party payor? What happens when the payee is

         21  New York City? What happens when the state and city

         22  shares 50/50, who will bear the cost incurred by the

         23  current version of the bill? The answer cannot be

         24  the non-profits. Our sector simply cannot assume

         25  additional burdens without negative consequences,
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          2  those consequences being purchasing less services

          3  and hiring fewer people, both activities are

          4  counter-productive to our mission and commitment to

          5  constituents in need.

          6                 Borrowing money to subsidize

          7  insufficiently funded or delay to the contract is

          8  also not an answer. This just adds financial

          9  pressure to non-profits because these costs are not

         10  reimbursable in our contracts. The critical issue

         11  for the non-profit sector and the City Council is

         12  the pass-through provision.

         13                 City government, along with their

         14  state and federal partners, provide the lion's share

         15  of the money invested in the non-profit arena.

         16                 Nearly 95 cents of every dollar spent

         17  by New York City non-profits comes from these

         18  sources, 95 cents of every dollar.

         19                 Without this funding arrangement,

         20  most non-profits would not even exist, let alone

         21  provide the economic impact, jobs and services in

         22  our communities.

         23                 Intro. 66-A seemingly recognizes this

         24  unique funding arrangement in focusing on those

         25  services that again have third-party payees.
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          2                 The opposition by the Human Services

          3  sector, including non-profits to a living wage bill

          4  without a pass-through was simple. Such a bill

          5  shifted burden away from the majority investor,

          6  i.e., government, and shifts the burden to the

          7  minority investor, i.e., non-profits.

          8                 Non-profits have no independent

          9  ability to pay living wage or any other increases

         10  without additional investments. Absent those

         11  increased investments, non-profits traditionally

         12  provide less services with fewer staff or borrow

         13  money to cover these increases.

         14                 A second issue is the inclusion of

         15  EISEP workers. EISEP workers provide those similar

         16  services as home care attendants in the areas that

         17  the bill covers. Without EISEP workers being

         18  included, you will see a departure from those

         19  funding sources that provide EISEP to those that

         20  don't because of wages will be higher.

         21                 Excluding this subset of the

         22  workforce that provides similar services to the

         23  other covered home attendants and home care

         24  providers will just exacerbate the problem.

         25                 In closing, thank you for the
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          2  revisions. Include a pass-through so that 66-A wont

          3  inadvertently reduce services and include EISEP

          4  workers.

          5                 Thank you very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you once

          7  again for your testimony. We have a question from

          8  Councilwoman Quinn.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Do you know

         10  about how many workers, covering EISEP workers, how

         11  large a universe that is?

         12                 MR. DAVIS: I don't know the number

         13  offhand. I understand the cost to be about a million

         14  dollars a year.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: What cost? The

         17  pass-through cost? What cost are you talking about?

         18                 MR. DAVIS: The additional cost, from

         19  my recollection of conversations with some of my

         20  colleagues at the Council for Senior Centers and

         21  Services, there's about a 60 cents differential

         22  between what 66-A would require and what they

         23  currently are paid in the first year.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: The additional

         25  cost to this bill, in other words?
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          2                 MR. DAVIS: Right. Would be about a

          3  million dollars in the first year.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Cost to the

          5  City. So that would go on top of the five million or

          6  so that was discussed?

          7                 MR. DAVIS: Well, I would term it as

          8  the cost to the payee. It's not clear to me that the

          9  City will pick up this cost.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Right. No, but

         11  based on your -- if you were to kind of put it

         12  together with your pass-through concept --

         13                 MR. DAVIS: Then yes it would. Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay. And then

         15  so then that, if you go back to the first panel,

         16  they said the cost was like 5.7, if there was a

         17  pass-through and an inclusion of EISEP, then it

         18  would be like 6.7.

         19                 MR. DAVIS: If the math is correct, I

         20  would think that's the case.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay.

         22                 You had pass-through, EISEP, and what

         23  was your first change that you recommended when you

         24  outlined your three --

         25                 MR. DAVIS: Those were the two.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Oh, there

          3  wasn't a third.

          4                 MR. DAVIS: The Pass-through and

          5  EISEP.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

          7                 MR. DAVIS: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Let me just

          9  reiterate, as I said in my opening remarks, that,

         10  you know, we're very concerned about the workers

         11  that you represent, and want the Council to embrace

         12  them in a piece of legislation, perhaps not this one

         13  at this time, but we obviously are going to take

         14  into consideration some of the views that you have

         15  shared with us today, and we will, you know, look

         16  forward to any other ways that you feel that we can

         17  do this.

         18                 You've been very helpful up to now as

         19  part of the Coalition that helped shape up what we

         20  are presently looking at, and we will continue to

         21  look for your support as we try to make this as

         22  inclusive a bill for low-wage workers as possible.

         23                 And if you have any ideas of how the

         24  City could afford, you know, this at this time,

         25  maybe you want to share them or maybe you can share
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          2  them with us at another time?

          3                 MS. McLAUGHLIN: Well, since day care,

          4  child care workers are not -- are already up to the

          5  max to 2006, including the intent in the bill will

          6  not cost, at least for that category at this time,

          7  the cost is down the road. So, you know, I think

          8  it's doable now as we plan for any increase that

          9  will come after 2006.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: So, just to be

         11  clear, your point is to put them in the bill now,

         12  even though they're above that --

         13                 MS. McLAUGHLIN: To include the -- the

         14  concept of the pass-through.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Not because it's

         16  going to cost now, but that it will cover those

         17  workers in the future when maybe we're out of this

         18  fiscal crisis?

         19                 MS. McLAUGHLIN: Well, I would hope we

         20  would be out of it by 2006, yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay, all right,

         22  very good. Very good.

         23                 MS. McLAUGHLIN: And including the

         24  EISEP workers, we estimate it's about a million, so

         25  that's not a heavy --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Now, Mr. Davis

          3  indicated that he wasn't sure if that million would

          4  be out of the City's budget or perhaps some other

          5  place.

          6                 What other ideas did you have as to

          7  where that million dollars will come from?

          8                 MR. DAVIS: Well, as I said, the

          9  non-profit arena as a whole is funded through

         10  government sources, to the point of 95 percent on a

         11  dollar, so it is unreasonable, in my estimation, to

         12  impose costs on the five percent that we provide,

         13  while ignoring the 95 percent that government

         14  provides. So, it's simply that. If there's going to

         15  be additional cost burdens, it should be spread in

         16  the 95/5 proportion that currently exists, and not

         17  shifted to the five percent.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay. Thank you

         19  very much.

         20                 Thank you. Oh, I'm sorry, we do have

         21  another member. Council Member Stewart has another

         22  question.

         23                 Council Member Stewart has gone.

         24                 Council Member Sanders has a

         25  question.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: Thank you,

          3  Mr. Chair, or the combined chairs, I urge, of

          4  course, the Committee to hear the concerns of the

          5  non-profit community. As a former director of a very

          6  small non-profit, I understand that many of these

          7  organizations are on the borderline already. So, we

          8  do need to keep that in mind and see if we can't

          9  address that at the earliest possible moment.

         10                 I also want to say that I see all my

         11  friends out from the different unions and civics and

         12  community groups out here today, and I want to say

         13  that the issue of the living wage is not a

         14  theoretical issue with me. My mother, of course, was

         15  a member of 1199 32 B-J, so I understand this issue

         16  and I understand what it means in terms of something

         17  being brought home.

         18                 So, I look forward to continuing to

         19  support this bill, and whatever arrangements that we

         20  have to make to make sure that it does not hurt

         21  anyone who wants to see the people of New York move

         22  forward.

         23                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Our next panel

         25  will consist of some affected workers.
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          2                 We will call, from the Teamsters

          3  Local 210, Nelson Nunez, Jose Rodriguez, Faridis

          4  Diaz, from SEIU Local 32 BJ, Alan Fisher, United

          5  Cerebral Palsy New York City UFT, Benecia Williams

          6  De la Cruz.

          7                 Jorge Rodriguez. Faridis Diaz. Nelson

          8  Nunez. Alan Fischer. Benecial Williams De la Cruz.

          9                 Excuse me, the names that I called

         10  are the ones that we'd like to hear from first.

         11                 MR. NEWMAN: Please raise your right

         12  hands.

         13                 Do you solemnly swear or affirm that

         14  the testimony you are about to give is the truth,

         15  the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         16                 (Witnesses sworn.)

         17                 MR. NEWMAN: Please state your names

         18  and affiliations for the record.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Hiram

         20  Monserrate, Council Member, and former 32BJ member.

         21                 MS. DIAZ: Faridis Diaz.

         22                 (Through an interpreter.) My name is

         23  Faridis Diaz, from 32BJ.

         24                 MR. NUNEZ: (Through an interpreter)

         25  My name is Nelson Nunez, 32BJ.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Good

          3  afternoon, members of the Council and this

          4  Committee. As a colleague I'd like to stand here,

          5  I'm sitting here with Ms. Faridis Diaz. She is one

          6  of my constituents and also my neighbor, she lives

          7  two blocks from me, and she is here to testify on

          8  behalf of her need for a living wage.

          9                 I would also like to say that my

         10  father was a porter and my mother was a home health

         11  care worker, and I am the product of the reality so

         12  many of our New York members here face, the fact

         13  that they don't have a living wage.

         14                 So, I would like to present Faridis

         15  Diaz here who currently is making $7 an hour with no

         16  benefits, and I want her to say her piece.

         17                 She speaks Spanish. She has a

         18  translater from 32BJ.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Why don't you

         20  give her one mic and the translater another mic

         21  separately.

         22                 MS. DIAZ: (Through an interpreter.)

         23  Good afternoon. My name is Faridis Diaz. I came to

         24  the United States from Columbia 14 years ago,

         25  looking, as other generations before me, for a
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          2  better life.

          3                 I live in Elmhurst, Queens, with my

          4  husband, who is also a building service worker, and

          5    our three children. For the past two years, I've

          6  been working for Planned Building Services, the

          7  cleaning contractor at 335 Broadway, scrubbing

          8  bathrooms and cleaning offices until late at night.

          9  Yet, for all this hard work, Planned Building

         10  Services pays only $7 an hour with no health

         11  insurance. At times I have to hold off paying my

         12  electric bills to buy clothes for my children.

         13                 Especially disturbing, because New

         14  York City's Department of Citywide Administrative

         15  Services pays the building owner $20 million for a

         16  ten-year lease for space, office space for the New

         17  York City Department of Mental Health.

         18                 In addition to the 20 million rent,

         19  the City is paying additional money to provide many

         20  clean workers' families with government-sponsored

         21  health insurance and other social benefits because

         22  of the low wages and medical benefits provided by

         23  the contractor the owner has chosen.

         24                 It's not fair, because the government

         25  is supposed to make sure people are treated well. We
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          2  get no benefits, no safety net at all.

          3                 While my two youngest daughters

          4  receive basic coverage under the

          5  government-sponsored HealthPlus Plan, my husband and

          6  my son have no health insurance at all. I'm afraid

          7  to go to the doctor, because I'm wary that I will

          8  not be able to pay for the visit.

          9                 Meanwhile, $20 million tax dollars

         10  pour into 335 Broadway and into the bank accounts of

         11  the building owner whose business decisions are

         12  keeping cleaners and their families in poverty.

         13                 MS. DIAZ: Okay, thank you. Gracias.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I would like to

         15  thank Hiram Monserrate, a City Council member who

         16  has escorted his constituent up to testify. We know

         17  that it takes a lot of courage for workers to come

         18  up and testify, knowing that they could well be put

         19  upon by their employers. So, we're going to be

         20  looking out for that.

         21                 Thank you very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Alan Fischer.

         23                 Jorge Rodriguez. Nelson Nunez. And

         24  Benicia Williams-De la Cruz.

         25                 We're going to swear you in now and
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          2  we're going to ask that you limit your testimony to

          3  three minutes a piece, because we want to hear from

          4  as many people as possible.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 MR. NEWMAN: Please raise your right

          7  hand.

          8                 Do you solemnly swear or affirm that

          9  the testimony you're about to give is the truth, the

         10  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         11                 (Witnesses sworn.)

         12                 MR. NEWMAN: Please state your names

         13  and affiliations for the record and begin your

         14  testimony.

         15                 MR. FISCHER: Yes. My name is Alan

         16  Fischer. I work for United Cerebral Palsy in

         17  Brooklyn. And my name is Alan Fischer, I'm a member

         18  of the United Federation of Teachers.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: One second,

         20  Alan. Can we just get the swearing in, and speak a

         21  little louder. Pull the mic up. Don't be afraid.

         22                 Can you just identify yourself,

         23  please.

         24                 Tell him pull up the mic. Help him

         25  out there.
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          2                 MR. PASSANTE: (Through the

          3  interpreter.) My name is Angel Passante. I was born

          4  in Equador. I've been living in this country for two

          5  years.

          6                 MR. NUNEZ: My name is Nelson Nunez,

          7  I'm with Local 210 Teamsters, I'm an organizer.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Are you

          9  going to help translate for him?

         10                 MR. NUNEZ: Yes, I will.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Just have him

         12  speak clearly into the mic so everyone in the youse

         13  can hear him.

         14                 You're not afraid to speak up, are

         15  you? Ask him.

         16                 MR. NUNEZ: He's not.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         18                 Can you identify yourself?

         19                 MS. WILLIAMS-DELACRUZ: Yes. My name

         20  is Benicia Williams, and I live in Brooklyn, New

         21  York, I'm a home care worker for Bethe Emeth, and

         22  also an 1199 member.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. And when

         24  you speak into the mic, pull the mic up close to

         25  you, okay? All right.
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          2                 MR. FISCHER: My name is Alan Fischer.

          3  I'm a member of the United Federation of Teachers,

          4  and a teaching assistant, United Cerebral Palsy's

          5  Lawrence Avenue Facility in Brooklyn.

          6                 I work in United Cerebral Palsy's

          7  pre-school program teaching disabled children under

          8  five communication skills, pre-academic skills, and

          9  self-help skills.

         10                 I would like to testify today in

         11  support of Intro. 66-A, the Living Wage bill.

         12                 As a teaching assistant for disabled

         13  children, I face a variety of challenges during my

         14  work day, but none of these challenges compares to

         15  the challenge of living on $15,200 a year in New

         16  York City. And I have to amend that, I was looking

         17  at my taxes, it's really 14,900. I love my job, and

         18  that's why I work at United Cerebral Palsy for over

         19  six and a half years. But I can only sacrifice my

         20  personal finances to do the job that I love for so

         21  long. My take-home pay is $430 every two weeks,

         22  clearly not enough to cover food and rent in New

         23  York City. No one can afford to support themselves

         24  on that income alone.

         25                 That's why most of my co-workers and
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          2  I are forced to supplement their salary with second

          3  jobs, or like myself, rely heavily on my wife's

          4  income.

          5                 My daughter is preparing to go to

          6  college, and it's almost impossible for me to save

          7  money for her education.

          8                 In terms of setting money aside for

          9  retirement, that is basically impossible on my

         10  income level. Raising the daily wage to $8.10 would

         11  make the difference for me and other low-paid

         12  workers that would be covered by this piece of

         13  legislation.

         14                 The yearly wage increases would

         15  provide a sense of security and a guarantee that I

         16  would receive a minimal annual raise. Unfortunately,

         17  I have not received a raise since July of 1999,

         18  because my employer has refused to bargain in good

         19  faith with the union that my co-workers and I chose

         20  to join two years ago.

         21                 Providing an automatic yearly

         22  increase of the living wage would ensure that my

         23  co-workers and I receive an annual raise that we

         24  deserve for the next five years.

         25                 On behalf of my co-workers at United
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          2  Cerebral Palsy, I would like to thank Chairman

          3  Jackson, Chairman Perkins and City Council Speaker

          4  Miller, for your support and activism concerning

          5  these issues that's so important for working men and

          6  working women in New York City. Please pass this

          7  legislation without delay. Thank you.

          8                 MR. PASSANTE: (Through an

          9  interpreter.) My name is Angel Passante, I was born

         10  in Ecuador.  I work for the Business Improvement

         11  District, cleaning the streets and sidewalks of New

         12  York City. I've been there for two years, and I

         13  still only earn $6.00 an hour.

         14                 I'm here on behalf of my co-workers

         15  from the NoHo BID, supporting this law, so therefore

         16  we can one day have a better future living in this

         17  City and have a better life.

         18                 In addition to the poor wages that I

         19  earn with my co-workers, we have very little, if

         20  any, medical benefits, and that is one reason why I,

         21  and according to my co-workers, support this law,

         22  and we encourage the City Council to pass it.

         23                 Thank you very much.

         24                 THE INTERPRETER: I would also like to

         25  say a few words on behalf of Angel Rodriguez. Behind
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          2  me, the gentleman standing behind me is Angel

          3  Rodriguez.

          4                 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Jorge.

          5                 THE INTERPRETER: Jorge Rodriguez. I

          6  confuse the two, because these guys look alike.

          7  Jorge Rodriguez is here on behalf of the 14th Street

          8  -- no, the Village Business Improvement District,

          9  and the reason he can't testify is because his

         10  religious belief, but he's here to support his

         11  co-workers, and he wants you to also support this

         12  bill, and pass it as soon as possible.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Muchos grasias.

         15                 MS. WILLIAMS-DELACRUZ: Okay, first I

         16  would like to thank the City Council for having this

         17  extremely important hearing today. I would

         18  particularly like to thank Councilman Bill Perkins

         19  and Robert Jackson, who have been a long time

         20  advocate of the home care industry.

         21                 After working in many other

         22  professions, I have concluded that there are no

         23  other jobs that I would rather do, yet the low wages

         24  and the poor benefits most home care workers receive

         25  do not reflect the care and support we bring to our
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          2  job.

          3                 As a protector of the New York City

          4  elderly and disabled, we deserve a living wage.

          5                 While I love being a home attendant,

          6  there are many difficult elements of my job that I

          7  had to do over the years. Steady work is never

          8  guaranteed, and when we do have a client, we often

          9  work long hours, without adequate compensation.

         10                 Last year, two of my clients passed

         11  away, leaving me without work for several months.

         12                 The passing left me without steady

         13  income, and have only been able to work replacement

         14  jobs since.

         15                 The unstable work hours make it very

         16  difficult for many home attendants to provide for

         17  our family and ourselves. As the lowest paid workers

         18  in the health care industry, home attendants often

         19  struggle to make ends meet, making it very difficult

         20  to maintain health care is a constant struggle

         21  between clients.

         22                 A few years ago, just missing four

         23  hours of the 80 hours I needed to qualify for health

         24  care each month, as a result of that I do not

         25  receive any medical coverage.
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          2                 When I was finally able to qualify

          3  for health care, a huge burden was lifted away from

          4  me and my family. As a new mother, I feel fortunate

          5  that I can provide health care for my family.

          6  However, being a home care worker often prevent me

          7  from caring for my family the ways I intended.

          8                 Instead of spending quality time with

          9  my family, I spent quality time with other family.

         10  While I may be paid eight hours or 12 hours shift,

         11  many co-workers, like myself stay longer hours

         12  waiting in doctor's office, accompanying clients to

         13  hospital visits, and helping clients get in and out

         14  of bed throughout the night.

         15                 These extra hours often go unpaid,

         16  and are done out of the love and caring of our

         17  clients, who usually leave no one else to take care

         18  for them.

         19                 The majority of the clients that we

         20  take care of have no close family to provide support

         21  for them. When I leave their home at the end of the

         22  shift, I worry that my clients will not eat or

         23  injure themselves.

         24                 When clients feel lost and confused,

         25  we are the one that give them insurance, guidance,
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          2  reassurance, comfort, for clients who are paralyzed,

          3  we are the ones that get them out of bed. For

          4  clients who cannot feed themselves, we are the ones

          5  that make sure they do not go hungry. For clients

          6  who are lonely, we provide companionship, love that

          7  may not get from nobody else.

          8                 Helping people is a part of me. And

          9  for that reason, I love being a home care worker.

         10  There is a lost of sense of humanity in the job that

         11  we do and it's unique.

         12                 I would like to continue being a home

         13  care worker, and receiving a living wage will allow

         14  me to provide a better care for myself and my

         15  family.

         16                 As the guardians of the elder

         17  generation of the City, we need recognition and

         18  appreciation from the City Council through the

         19  passage of the living wage.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Go ahead.

         22                 Councilman Jackson.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes, I would

         24  like to ask the panelists, all three of you, a

         25  question.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            98

          1  CONTRACTS AND GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2                 I've listened to your testimony and

          3  the testimony of the other individuals, I see that

          4  you're wearing a purple and yellow shirt, is that

          5  the --

          6                 MS. WILLIAMS-DELACRUZ: The 1199.

          7  Thank you. Yes, that's correct.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, I'm fully

          9  aware of the situation of the home are attendants

         10  because I'm very familiar with the woman that worked

         11  very closely with me, Juanita Perkins, who is in the

         12  audience, and I've told her stories over and over to

         13  people in different forums, and people have come up

         14  to me afterwards and said that they have cried when

         15  they heard the story of Juanita Perkins, knowing

         16  that she works seven days a week, 10-, 12-hour days,

         17  and then in order to get a day off to attend my

         18  inauguration ceremony when I was sworn in as a City

         19  Council member, she had to put in the day to get the

         20  day off as month in advance. That's not a living

         21  wage.

         22                 So, my question to you is, each one

         23  of you, do you believe under the current conditions

         24  that you work, as far as the pay and the benefits or

         25  lack thereof, that you said that you have or don't
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          2  have, do you believe that you can obtain the

          3  American dream under this current situation?

          4                 MS. WILLIAMS-DELACRUZ: No.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I'll ask each

          6  one of the panelists to answer that question.

          7                 Can you answer that?

          8                 MR. FISCHER: I don't believe so under

          9  the current situation, that I can attain the

         10  American dream.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I ask that

         12  question of you, young lady, do you think you can

         13  obtain the American dream under the current

         14  situation of your employment?

         15                 MS. WILLIAMS-DELACRUZ: Well, due to

         16  the current situation of my employment, my American

         17  dream become a nightmare. I have bill collectors

         18  calling me, that's not a dream. I have no money to

         19  pay my bills, that's not a dream.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Senior' speak

         21  loud, I can't hear.

         22                 I want to hear what you have to say

         23  to him.

         24                 MR. PASSANTE: (Through the

         25  interpreter.) With the poor wages, low wages that
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          2  I'm earning now, it's difficult for me to make ends

          3  meet.

          4                 Our dream is to be able to afford a

          5  good life and to pay our bills, but unfortunately,

          6  with our poor wages right now, we won't be able to

          7  have that dream.

          8                 MR. NUNEZ: And just to reinforce what

          9  she's saying, this dream that we all aspire to is

         10  becoming a living nightmare for a lot of the workers

         11  in this City, and with your support, hopefully

         12  they'll wake up from that nightmare and start living

         13  the dream and make it a reality. So, we encourage

         14  your support.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         18  much for your testimony.

         19                 I just want to ask one quick question

         20  of the gentleman that works with the BID, where is

         21  this BID at?

         22                 MR. NUNEZ: We represent various BIDs

         23  in the City. Some are contracted by 34th Street

         24  partnership, others are Atlantic Maintenance. But

         25  all workers make the City a beautiful place, as you
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          2  guys can see. When you walk around, it's dirt-free,

          3  but, unfortunately, our members can't afford to take

          4  advantage of the beautiful City that they clean. So,

          5  we're all over the City. Wherever there's a clean

          6  sidewalk, we cleaned it.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

          8  much. It's good to know that.

          9                 We're going to call our next panelist

         10  to testify from the New York City Partnership,

         11  Kathryn Wylde.

         12                 She's here? Should I wait for her?

         13                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE:

         14  One minute.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: One minute,

         16  okay.

         17                 We're going to now move to the next

         18  one until Kathryn Wylde arrives. We're going to call

         19  on Mr. Frank McArdle, General Manager, General

         20  Contractors Association.

         21                 Mr. Frank McArdle.

         22                 Is he here?

         23                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM THE

         24  AUDIENCE: Not yet.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Not yet.
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          2                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM THE

          3  AUDIENCE: He's coming later.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: He's coming

          5  later. Okay, we're going to now have our Deputy

          6  Mayor Doctoroff. Is he here? Deputy Mayor Daniel

          7  Doctoroff, please come forward and be sworn in.

          8                 Welcome. How are you?

          9                 MR. NEWMAN: Please raise your right

         10  hand. Do you solemnly swear or affirm that the

         11  testimony you're about to give is the truth, the

         12  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         13                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: I do.

         14                 MR. NEWMAN: Please state your name

         15  and affiliation for the record, and begin your

         16  testimony.

         17                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Daniel L.

         18  Doctoroff, Deputy Mayor for Economic Development and

         19  Rebuilding.

         20                 Good afternoon, members of the City

         21  Council Contracts and Government Operation

         22  Committees. As I mentioned, my name is Dan

         23  Doctoroff. I am the Deputy Mayor for Economic

         24  Development and Rebuilding.

         25                 In my capacity as Deputy Mayor, I
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          2  have been given responsibility within the

          3  Administration for many of the policies that affect

          4  the economic health and well-being of the City.

          5                 I very much appreciate the

          6  opportunity to express the Administration's

          7  opposition to Introductory No. 66-A, the Living Wage

          8  Bill.

          9                 The Living Wage Bill establishes a

         10  very complex administrative scheme that would

         11  require entities that do business, or even have a

         12  tangential relationship to either the City or other

         13  public agencies to pay employees a mandated hourly

         14  wage greatly in excess of the state mandated minimum

         15  wage, and provide significantly enhanced benefits.

         16                 The many categories of employers to

         17  whom the bill, as drafted, would apply, include not

         18  just City service contractors and subcontractors,

         19  but also to contractors who provide services in

         20  buildings leased to the City, even if the City

         21  leases only a fraction of the building. It would

         22  apply to recipients of economic assistance from the

         23  City or its agencies, and it would even apply to

         24  contractors for recipients of economic assistance.

         25                 In terms of implementation, the bill
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          2  contains extensive certification requirements,

          3  employment and payroll provisions and notification

          4  provisions. Much of the primary responsibility for

          5  rule-making, implementation, and enforcement is

          6  given to the Comptroller. It is unquestioned that

          7  the intentions of this bill are noble. We all share

          8  the objective of increasing the wages of the

          9  lowest-paid workers.

         10                 However, the unintended consequences

         11  of this bill, should it pass, will be to harm the

         12  very people it attempts to serve, and to reduce

         13  economic opportunity for many more at the very time

         14  when our economic condition is at its most fragile.

         15                 It is true that may cities around the

         16  nation have enacted living wage bills, none,

         17  however, has been enacted in the jurisdiction as

         18  large as New York.

         19                 And more important, very few have

         20  been as sweeping as the one we have before us. Most

         21  living wage bills apply only to contractors with the

         22  City, or perhaps to subcontractors. Some apply only

         23  to City employees themselves. But this bill goes

         24  much farther. Let me give you an example.

         25                 As you know, we are facing an ongoing
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          2  struggle, which has accelerated in the wake of

          3  September 11th, to keep businesses in New York.

          4                 In fact, since January 2001, the

          5  Council has estimated that New York has lost

          6  approximately 136,000 private sector jobs. If it

          7  were not for the business retention deals that the

          8  City, through the Economic Development Corporation,

          9  and the New York City Industrial Development Agency,

         10  negotiates with companies, the job losses would have

         11  been even more severe.

         12                 Incentives induce companies to commit

         13  to New York by reducing their operating costs, which

         14  are far higher here than in such competing metro

         15  area locations, such as Jersey City, which offers

         16  lower rents and taxes, as well as generous

         17  relocation benefits.

         18                 Under this legislation, because of

         19  the provision that the bill could be applied to

         20  companies that receive assistance from the City,

         21  acceptance of a package of incentives could require

         22  an increase in a company's operating cost, both for

         23  its direct employment and its use of contractors for

         24  renovation and construction, further increasing the

         25  unattractiveness of a New York City location.
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          2                 The bill also goes beyond the

          3  companies with which the IDA or EDC contracts

          4  directly. The bill is so far reaching that it would

          5  even extend to every tenant with 20 or more

          6  employees in commercial office buildings that are

          7  constructed or renovated with City financial

          8  assistance, regardless of whether such tenants

          9  directly benefitted from the assistance.

         10                 It further obligates the landlord or

         11  the IDA project company to monitor the other

         12  tenants. Neither entity will want to screen

         13  potential tenants for wage policies before they sign

         14  leases, let alone be responsible for ongoing

         15  certification of the tenant's compliance.

         16                 Nor will tenants wish to locate in

         17  buildings that regulate what they pay employees.

         18                 Additionally, commercial building

         19  owners are unlikely to consent to lease a property

         20  to a tenant that will receive IDA assistance,

         21  because they will have to monitor their employment

         22  practices.

         23                 Subsidized real estate development

         24  projects, which often occur in underserved and

         25  underutilized areas of this City, would be adversely
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          2  impacted.

          3                 Loss of tax revenue due to the

          4  inability to retain approximately 9,000 jobs in the

          5  City through the industrial development agency,

          6  could be very significant in Fiscal Year 2003,

          7  growing substantially in the outyears. Additional

          8  taxes would be foregone from the chilling effect the

          9  bill would have on new construction.

         10                 Even the tax exempt liberty zone

         11  bonding authority given to the Mayor as part of the

         12  federal recovery package would be jeopardized. These

         13  bonds are a powerful stimulus for new construction

         14  and renovation in Lower Manhattan.

         15                 Unfortunately, they, too, could be

         16  rendered useless because no one will purchase bonds

         17  that could default because a small tenant doesn't

         18  pay a living wage. As the result, new commercial

         19  construction, which even in the recent boom rarely

         20  occurred without discretionary tax benefits will be

         21  drastically curtailed. These are just a few of the

         22  pieces of the overall impact.

         23                 The bill as written would also

         24  adversely affect the expense estimates for health

         25  care benefits for home care workers, the cost paid

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            108

          1  CONTRACTS AND GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  to certain non-for-profits, including the New York

          3  State Industry for the Disabled, and family day care

          4  workers.

          5                 Additional impacts could include cost

          6  and productivity losses associated with building

          7  service organizations and there would be significant

          8  implementation costs, study costs and enforcement

          9  costs.

         10                 The winners, clearly, when living

         11  wage bills have been enacted, are the municipal

         12  labor unions. By increasing the wages that must be

         13  paid by employers of companies that can track with

         14  cities, those employers become less competitive

         15  relative to the City workforce.

         16                 This creates a powerful disincentive

         17  to outsourcing, which in turn increases the cost to

         18  the City by enhancing the bargaining power of the

         19  unions.

         20                 In total, the office of management

         21  and budget's preliminary analysis of the

         22  quantifiable fiscal impact of the living wage bill

         23  is in excess of $100 million in Fiscal Year 2003

         24  alone, growing significantly thereafter, and it's

         25  important to note that is only the amounts that we
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          2  can quantify.

          3                 As everybody knows, our City is

          4  facing a $5 billion deficit. Last week the Mayor

          5  detailed a plan to close the budget gap that

          6  includes assistance from all stakeholders within the

          7  City, taxpayers, unions, elected officials,

          8  everyone.

          9                 If that support doesn't materialize,

         10  the budget contains a contingency plan that would

         11  cut services further.

         12                 The plan improves abrupt cuts to

         13  services that nobody, not the Mayor, not the

         14  Council, and certainly not the public want to see

         15  implemented.

         16                 But implementation of this bill if

         17  passed into law would occur after the City's budget

         18  is passed on or around June 5th. Based on our

         19  conservative estimates, this bill runs the risk of

         20  unbalancing the budget and exposing the City to a

         21  control period. The only way that the City can get

         22  out of the fiscal crisis is to grow our economy and

         23  replenish the jobs that were lost because of the

         24  national economic slow-down of September 11th.

         25                 In the fierce competition to retain
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          2  and attract jobs to our City, perception is

          3  everything. The message we send to the business

          4  community in this City and outside the City are as

          5  important as the incentive packages we create.

          6                 If businesses do not believe that

          7  local government is going to help them, no incentive

          8  package is worth considering, and we will lose jobs

          9  and valuable tax revenue to those municipalities

         10  that demonstrate greater commitment to retaining and

         11  attracting businesses.

         12                 Supporters of the living wage bill

         13  will point to a recent analysis published by the

         14  California Public Policy Institute of similar

         15  legislation.

         16                 While it is true that researchers

         17  found some increase in wages for the lowest paid

         18  workers, after the adoption of living wage bills,

         19  every single one of those went into effect during

         20  one of the greatest booms mid to late-1990s that

         21  this country has ever seen. It's not surprising then

         22  that wages might increase, that tends to happen in

         23  periods of great prosperity.

         24                 More relevant, however, the analysis

         25  concluded that there is a direct correlation between
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          2  raising wages and unemployment.

          3                 Estimates indicate that a 50 percent

          4  increase in the living wage would reduce the

          5  employment rate for workers in the bottom tenth of

          6  the skill distribution by seven percent, and

          7  disemployment appears to be greater the broader the

          8  living wage bill.

          9                 As noted earlier, the proposed bill

         10  would be just about the broadest ever living wage

         11  bill.

         12                 Thus, while some people with minimum

         13  wage jobs may benefit, a greater number of people,

         14  both at the low end of the wage scale, and at higher

         15  levels, actually lose jobs.

         16                 We can accomplish the same effect

         17  through the earned income tax credit. The Mayor has

         18  begun a public relations campaign to encourage

         19  eligible workers to take advantage of the earned

         20  income tax credit.

         21                 It is available to all workers and

         22  more who would be covered by the proposed bill.

         23                 Let me make very clear, the

         24  Administration applauds the City Council's efforts

         25  to raise the living standards of our most poorly
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          2  paid workers.

          3                 We simply think that the proposed

          4  living wage bill is the wrong approach.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Ladies and

          6  gents, please. Ladies and gents, please hold your

          7  negative comments. Everyone has the opportunity to

          8  express themselves, just like you did, without

          9  someone booing you, and we're not going to allow any

         10  booing in here of anyone, okay? Please.

         11                 Continue.

         12                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: The proposed

         13  bill is too expansive. The proposed bill is too

         14  expensive. It comes at the perfectly wrong time in

         15  our City's economic cycle. It sends the wrong signal

         16  to the companies that we need to attract and retain,

         17  and most important, we think it is more likely to

         18  harm the people we all agree need the help.

         19                 Now is not the right time to enact

         20  experimental legislation with such potential

         21  damaging consequences.

         22                 Thank you very much for your time and

         23  attention. I would. Be happy to answer any

         24  questions.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very
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          2  much.

          3                 And I want to reiterate what my

          4  colleague, Bob Jackson, Councilman Jackson, has

          5  pointed out in terms of decorum with respect to the

          6  witnesses, especially if you don't agree with them.

          7  We may be a little bit more liberal when you agree

          8  with them and allow you to applaud, but we don't

          9  allow you to be rude to them if you disagree with

         10  them.

         11                 There are quite a few members that

         12  want to ask some questions. I want to first ask --

         13  thank you, Doctor -- Dan Doctoroff. I don't know why

         14  I want to call you Dr. Doctoroff. But you mentioned

         15  a report from OMB, which we have not had the

         16  privilege of seeing and it's a report that suggests

         17  that there's $100 million tab to this bill that is

         18  quite contrary or significantly different than what

         19  we've been hearing from other experts that have

         20  testified before you, that seem to put the tab

         21  somewhere at least around 7, $8 million, and even

         22  the Comptroller's Office, while they have not done

         23  quite a similar analysis, has not seen the cost to

         24  the City as being that significant.

         25                 So, I would ask that you get us a
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          2  copy of this report as soon as possible.

          3                 Or is it available?

          4                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: It's not a

          5  report, it's an analysis, but I'd be happy to share

          6  some of the details with you.

          7                 The biggest piece of that amount that

          8  I mentioned is, really relates to home care workers.

          9  Due to the recent state Health Care Reform Act deal

         10  in January, home care workers will be provided with

         11  a base wage rate that is actually higher than the

         12  living wage, and the City is already in discussions

         13  to implement the deal, and it's included in the

         14  Executive Budget.

         15                 However, that deal does not include

         16  the health supplement that is required of the bill,

         17  an additional $1.50 per hour, and currently

         18  Medicaided funded home care workers receive a health

         19  care benefit of only $1.11. That 39 cent difference

         20  applied across the workers, home health care workers

         21  in the City, actually is equivalent to roughly $43.2

         22  million a year. That's just one example.

         23                 Other examples include the New York

         24  State industry for the disabled, which is a

         25  state-sponsored preferred source for all temp
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          2  contracts and they're covered under this bill.

          3                 The City is required to offer a temp

          4  contract to this organization before any other

          5  organization. The average temp contract worker in

          6  this organization is paid lower than the living

          7  wage, by raising them to the living wage it will be

          8  estimated to have an annual cost of $22.1 million.

          9  Those are only two of the significant components in

         10  that.  I will check with OMB, and if we can supply

         11  you with more detail, we would be happy to do that.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         13  much. We appreciate that taste of the report.

         14                 What I would like, if possible is to

         15  get the full report as soon as possible so our staff

         16  can review it, and see exactly what it is we're

         17  talking about.

         18                 Right now we're going to hear from

         19  some of our members.

         20                 Councilman Yassky.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you very

         22  much, and good afternoon, Deputy Mayor Doctoroff.

         23                 It's my understanding that the City

         24  is reimbursed, or the wages paid to employees

         25  providing services who are Medicaid funded is borne
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          2  90 percent by the City; is that incorrect?

          3                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Ninety

          4  percent by the State and federal government. For

          5  these increases it is OMB's understanding and belief

          6  that they would not be. You need to get state

          7  approval to have an increase in the reimbursement,

          8  and we do not believe that that is necessarily

          9  forthcoming. So, no, we think actually we're not

         10  just picking up ten percent, we would be picking up

         11  a substantially higher percentage, probably more

         12  like 50.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: You will

         14  probably have some differences of opinion on that

         15  because our analysis indicates what the Councilman

         16  is pointing out, and I suspect that that's where

         17  some of this extraordinary costs come from.

         18                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: There is no

         19  question that that is a significant difference in

         20  the two analyses.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: In fact, we see

         22  the City getting a nine to one benefit and, so --

         23                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: We don't.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Have you had

         25  any conversations with anyone in the State
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          2  government as to whether they would recognize this?

          3                 You're saying they have to approve

          4  any kind of Medicaid payments for that 90 percent

          5  reimbursement?

          6                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Well, I think

          7  it's 50 percent ultimately comes from the federal

          8  government, 40 percent from the State and 10

          9  percent.

         10                 I don't know whether OMB has had

         11  those conversations, they certainly have had a fair

         12  amount of experience with state in the past, and it

         13  was their best estimate, I think more than an

         14  estimate, that that would be the case. But some

         15  things certainly we can review together.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: But do you

         17  realize, am I correct if we are right, then that

         18  $100 million is significantly less, right?

         19                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: No question

         20  about it.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: And if I'm

         22  correct --

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DOCTOROFF: But

         24  still important to point out --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I just want to
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          2  be clear, because I want to --

          3                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF:-- It's still

          4  very significant.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Well, I just

          6  want to understand, because it's 39, 43 and 22 are

          7  the numbers you gave.

          8                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: I only gave

          9  two numbers. I have 43 and 22. There are a whole

         10  series of other things that are smaller, for

         11  example, building leases.

         12                 Building owners who have a lease with

         13  the City of New York will be required to pay all

         14  building services employees the prevailing wage. And

         15  the cost of providing that raise to those workers

         16  will obviously be passed along to the City in the

         17  form of rent increases, which OMB estimates will be

         18  $18.7 million in 2003.

         19                 There are many things that we can't

         20  quantify. We cannot quantify, for example, the lost

         21  taxes from businesses that won't be able to be

         22  retained because people won't enter into retention

         23  deals with the IDA or with EDC.

         24                 We can't quantify that but we think

         25  the number might be significant. We can't quantify
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          2  the cost of implementation. Implementation of this

          3  bill will be extraordinarily complex. There is a

          4  whole series of other things that we just can't

          5  quantify but we know that they may be very

          6  significant.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

          8  much.

          9                 The implementation according to the

         10  Comptroller would not be -- he did not sense the

         11  same complexity that you're suggesting. But it's

         12  very important that we get those numbers so we can

         13  get a chance to see exactly what you're talking

         14  about and respond appropriately.

         15                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Fair enough.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Councilman

         17  Yassky.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Yes. When the

         19  City enters into retention agreements with

         20  companies, don't those retention agreements

         21  typically include covenants of various sorts as to

         22  what the company --

         23                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: No, the type

         24  of covenant that they typically include is that the

         25  company retain a specified number of jobs in the
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          2  City. It doesn't dictate what people are paid or who

          3  is hired.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: No, but it

          5  does require an ongoing relationship so that we

          6  confirm that people are living up to the commitments

          7  and promises they've made to us. So, this would

          8  really just be asking one additional question in

          9  that ongoing relationship.

         10                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: No. What

         11  we're suggesting is that people won't enter into the

         12  relationship at all because they don't want to have

         13  potential liability associated with this bill.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay, I

         15  understand your point that they may be scared off by

         16  the extra 40 cents an hour, or whatever it is, but

         17  just as --

         18                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: It's not 40

         19  cents an hour, it's significantly more.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: But just as to

         21  the ongoing monitoring expense you referred to, I

         22  just want to confirm that we do indeed engage in

         23  monitoring of the companies that enter into

         24  agreements with us, so this would just be --

         25                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: I was not
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          2  referring to the companies necessarily being

          3  concerned with what they have to monitor. What I was

          4  referring to in terms of monitoring was the

          5  monitoring that the City government will have to

          6  undertake in order to monitor compliance with what

          7  is in fact an extraordinarily complex bill.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: My last

          9  question is, you referred in your to the possibility

         10  that the liberty bonds would be -- there would be

         11  some sort of default or problem with entering --

         12  with the City issuing liberty bonds if this bill

         13  were to pass; could you elaborate on that?

         14                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Well, it's

         15  the same thing as the IDA or EDC discussion that

         16  we've had. It's not that there is necessarily a

         17  problem that the liberty bond prohibit the entering

         18  into of contracts or agreements that require a

         19  living wage provision, it's simply that we think it

         20  will have a chilling effect on borrowers who are now

         21  going to be subject to a very different regime than

         22  they had been in the past.

         23                 But we can't, we cannot adequately at

         24  this point evaluate the precise impact that that

         25  will have. We haven't even issued a liberty bond
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          2  yet.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: No, you said

          4  the bonds would be useless because no one would

          5  purchase bonds that could default because a small

          6  tenant doesn't pay a living wage.

          7                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: To the extent

          8  that they are responsible.

          9                 This is the thing that is different

         10  about it, they will be responsible for tenants in

         11  their building who don't pay. So, you're extending

         12  the obligation of a borrower who has a relationship

         13  with the City through the liberty bond program to

         14  something that they've simply never been responsible

         15  for before.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you, Mr.

         17  Chairman.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Councilwoman

         19  Quinn.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         21                 Thank you for testifying today. In

         22  your testimony one of the things you seemed to focus

         23  on as a major concern in part of your opposition was

         24  the cost of the bill, and, clearly, there is a

         25  difference of opinion about what the cost is and
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          2  even how to get, how to figure out the cost.

          3                 So, first, before you answer my

          4  question, I just want to ask, you know, as we get

          5  the information from OMB, and, you know, the Council

          6  and our staff takes a look at it, it seems like it

          7  would then be useful, obviously, for there to be

          8  follow-up meetings and discussions, but after that

          9  it seems like there might be useful for there to be

         10  further meetings and discussions between the

         11  Administration, the Council and people on the state

         12  and federal level, if we were all in the room at one

         13  time, then we'll all hear the information together,

         14  and the Council hears it one way from the state, and

         15  the Mayor's people hear it another way from the

         16  state, we'll all be in the room together to clarify

         17  it.

         18                 So, since we all have the same goal

         19  of figuring out a way that is beneficial to the City

         20  and to workers to raise wages of low-income workers

         21  and to do it in a way that is beneficial because it

         22  doesn't help low-income workers if we, in fact,

         23  drive businesses out of the City. Would you be

         24  willing to kind of participate in those working

         25  meetings if, in fact, we could get the state and
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          2  federal government representatives to agree to do it

          3  as well? I think if we had those kind of four-part

          4  working meetings we would be able to roll up our

          5  sleeves and clarify any of the confusion in the cost

          6  and who pays what.

          7                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: I am, of

          8  course, a relative new-comer at processes and

          9  official procedures, but that certainly doesn't

         10  sound terribly unreasonable to me.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Great. Great.

         12  And I am not usually the best in following process

         13  and procedure, so we may have just both agreed to

         14  something totally out of line, but nonetheless we've

         15  done it on the record. So, we will then, if I could

         16  ask the Chair --

         17                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: That wasn't a

         18  commitment. I'll go and talk to people, but as I

         19  said, it doesn't seem unreasonable to me.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Good. And then

         21  if we could reach out to the state and federal

         22  counterparts, I think it would be useful, because

         23  then we don't have to have these hearings where, you

         24  know, we say I see it this way and you see it that

         25  way, we can all agree.
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          2                 In looking at the bill, is there a

          3  cost level which the City thinks it could sustain? I

          4  mean, for argument's sake, let's say the number is

          5  actually somewhere between six and nine-million

          6  dollars, which is kind of the cost range, which the

          7  folks from the first panel, the Fiscal Policy

          8  Institute, and Good Jobs' folks and the Comptroller

          9  said; is that a cost, if that was in fact the cost,

         10  is that a cost that the City thinks would be one

         11  that could be taken on and one that wouldn't be too

         12  frightening to business?

         13                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: I don't think

         14  we have an opinion on that question yet. I think

         15  it's a very good question.

         16                 I actually would guess that if you

         17  had a small cost like that, the benefit actually to

         18  workers might be very low, and, therefore, you would

         19  question whether, in fact, at the end of the day it

         20  was worthwhile, but I'm really not prepared to

         21  answer that question now.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I mean, I think

         23  the cost being low goes back to my first point,

         24  which is it's that cost calculation is based on the

         25  belief that other entities pick up part of the cost.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            126

          1  CONTRACTS AND GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  So that amount comes with --

          3                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: That was only

          4  one piece of it, however. You know, we've got a

          5  whole series of other, some of which I discussed,

          6  some of which I haven't because they're just much

          7  more difficult to quantify.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: You mean

          9  positions --

         10                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: No, no, no,

         11  other costs with respect to the bill itself. So, you

         12  know, look, at the end of the day the total cost for

         13  everything was six or eight, nine-million dollars,

         14  would it be acceptable? It certainly would be more

         15  acceptable than it is at a much higher level.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: In your

         17  testimony you made reference to the California

         18  report.

         19                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I'm forgetting

         21  the name of the people who did it, and one of -- I

         22  think what you said was that it was not completely

         23  applicable because they were studies of much smaller

         24  jurisdiction.

         25                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Smaller
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          2  jurisdiction, but I think what I also said was far

          3  more important, I think the time frame in which the

          4  analysis took place, and by the way, the analysis

          5  from my perspective generally was negative with

          6  respect to these bills, but setting that aside, the

          7  analysis evaluated a period in reaching the

          8  conclusion that in fact by a small amount the wages

          9  of the lowest skilled workers actually did increase

         10  was done during a period of remarkable buoyancy in

         11  the economy. It was done in California during the

         12  late 1990s, there probably has never been a hotter

         13  economy, certainly in the last 50 years in this

         14  country, than California experienced in the late

         15  1990s. And, so, I think the ability to separate out

         16  the impacts there is very difficult.

         17                 What was clear was that unemployment

         18  for the very workers that bills tried to help

         19  actually did increase, and they increased more the

         20  broader the bill was.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: But isn't it

         22  true that probably in many of the same jurisdictions

         23  of employment was increasing in those same sectors

         24  anyway?

         25                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Not in the
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          2  late 1990s it wasn't. Not in northern California

          3  where many of these bills actually were passed. You

          4  know, in Silicon Valley, SanFrancisco, and Santa

          5  Clara, you haven't had a hotter economy anywhere in

          6  this country in a very long time.

          7                 Employment was at record low levels.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: But so then if

          9  you say, kind of in refuting that study, because I

         10  assume that study is useful, is if the point is that

         11  the study isn't useful because it was a hot economic

         12  time, right? So, wages were going to go up anyway?

         13                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Right, and

         14  employment would come down -- unemployment would

         15  come down, and that's what makes the finding that

         16  employment, unemployment went up more surprising.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Right. But I

         18  think one of the significant things about that

         19  study, as I understand it, is if you look at the

         20  last boom economic time and compare it to that, you

         21  didn't see the same increase in low level work

         22  wages, so you saw an increase in wages amongst many

         23  workers, but not on lower level workers, which I

         24  think the study shows is a distinct difference.

         25                 So, it's not -- I think the study
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          2  shows that wages didn't go up amongst low-level

          3  workers just as a result of the economy, because the

          4  last time the economy could have done that, it

          5  didn't do that. Which I think is partially kind of

          6  the driving point of this bill, is that for right or

          7  wrong, the economy doesn't take care, if one

          8  believes to let the economy run its course and it

          9  will take care of people's wages, it doesn't for

         10  this group of workers.

         11                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: I don't think

         12  that's true. I think that in boom times the wages of

         13  workers go up, not uniformly, and certainly there

         14  are many people who suffer as a result of inadequate

         15  wages.

         16                 But that's not what we're talking

         17  about. We all agree that what we want to do is we

         18  want to help those workers.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Right.

         20                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: There's no

         21  dispute there at all.

         22                 What we don't believe, though, is

         23  that on balance, taking into account all of those

         24  workers, that they're actually helped, and at the

         25  same time, for a variety of reasons, they are hurt
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          2  and the economy as a whole is hurt.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Just my last

          4  question: Is there a constrict, if you were to look

          5  at this bill and say, you know, we all have the same

          6  goal, one concern you raised obviously was cost, and

          7  we're going to all try to look at that and see how

          8  that fleshes out.

          9                 Is there a construct where you would

         10  take this bill and make changes to it where you

         11  believe we could come out with a piece of

         12  legislation where we both -- which both the

         13  Administration and the Council could support, or do

         14  you just think that this -- not you personally, but

         15  does the Administration think that this is just not

         16  the right time economically to be engaging in this

         17  type of legislation?

         18                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: I think given

         19  the lack of experience with these kinds of bills,

         20  that it is very dangerous and likely not prudent in

         21  this economic environment to pass a living wage

         22  bill.

         23                 Whether there is some construct, I

         24  don't know.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Is there a
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          2  better economic environment; is that what you're

          3  suggesting?

          4                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Well, I think

          5  clearly when you are in an environment which

          6  employment is rising it certainly makes more sense.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: If we did that,

          8  like let's say --

          9                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: I didn't say

         10  I'd be in favor of it, but I think it makes more

         11  sense.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: In those times

         13  then, would one pass legislation that was triggered

         14  only by good economy and lapsed out in bad economic

         15  times?

         16                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: I think

         17  that's extremely dangerous to find for me, when you

         18  actually decide it's a good economy --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Well, my point

         20  exactly.

         21                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Well, I think

         22  it's tough. I think it is very difficult. But

         23  clearly the impact of this would be less in a good

         24  economy, the harmful effects would be less in a good

         25  economy.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Is it fair to

          3  say that you are ideologically opposed to a living

          4  wage?

          5                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Absolutely

          6  not. I don't think that's fair at all.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I just wanted to

          8  be clear, or philosophically, or anything like this,

          9  the idea of a living wage in and of itself you are

         10  not opposed to?

         11                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: In concept,

         12  no. We have one, I think, you know, many people

         13  benefit from it.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Councilman

         17  Nelson.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you. Me

         19  thinks I ought to take hardball.

         20                 Asked answered, asked and answered,

         21  asked and answered, primarily. But you mentioned

         22  extraordinarily complex, as far as meeting out the

         23  conundrum of perhaps cause and effects, but other

         24  municipalities have had it, although I know getting

         25  there and the roadmap, I know our road is a lot
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          2  bigger than theirs, true, but couldn't that, to a

          3  large degree play a role in trying to figure out,

          4  because there is, as you know, there is tremendous,

          5  huge disparity between the Comptroller and what

          6  we've been hearing and your side overall, and also

          7  knowing the perception. I think we understand the

          8  philosophy of the perception involved with this,

          9  too, in a business climate. But based upon that, has

         10  any research been done in the other municipalities,

         11  albeit, much smaller than ours?

         12                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Well, the

         13  best research that's been done, I think in fact the

         14  only comprehensive research that's been done is this

         15  report that I referred to before by the California

         16  Public Policy Institute. That, as far as I'm aware,

         17  is the only in-depth study that's actually been

         18  done. And as I said, I think part of the problem

         19  here is it obviously is retrospective and is looking

         20  back at a very unusual period of time, and even

         21  given that, the positive impacts on sort of the

         22  overall group that we're trying to help here, we're

         23  probably negative, and, so, I think that that one

         24  study indicates that, you know, there really isn't a

         25  lot of evidence, that these things help.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you.

          3  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Councilman

          5  Vallone.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you,

          7  and welcome, Mr. Deputy Mayor.

          8                 As Councilman Nelson said, there's a

          9  huge disparity between your numbers and the

         10  Comptroller's and obviously we disagree as to --

         11  well, there is disagreement as to the State

         12  compensation and that's something our staff will

         13  work on, hopefully, as Council Member Quinn said,

         14  with your staff.

         15                 But the 39 cents that you said would

         16  result in $43.2 million in cost to the City, the 39

         17  cents in insurance costs, that doesn't seem to be a

         18  number that's up for debate. Is that -- now, I asked

         19  the Comptroller when he was here, and I will ask you

         20  the same question, is that information that he has

         21  and disregarded, or has he not been given -- why

         22  would that not be included in his --

         23                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: I think the

         24  disparity was properly identified earlier, it's not

         25  that there's a 39 percent increase, it's who would
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          2  actually pay for it.

          3                 If, in fact, the City actually ends

          4  up paying for, I believe it's 50 percent, in effect

          5  the State does not absorb its traditional share that

          6  it bears on the other dollar-eleven, then the cost

          7  will be 43 million. I think to the extent that the

          8  state does pick that up, the cost would be closer to

          9  the numbers that the Comptroller has indicated than

         10  the numbers that have been cited here.

         11                 So, I think that's the disparity. I

         12  don't think anybody has information or not, I think

         13  to some extent it's a judgment based on a lot of

         14  experience.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: So, the 39

         16  cents that results in 43.2 million is not in

         17  addition to the State compensation, it's part of

         18  that whole state compensation --

         19                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Whether the

         20  state picks it up, I believe it's 40 percent or ten

         21  percent, I think that's the difference.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Okay, thank

         23  you.

         24                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Sure.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Deputy Mayor,
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          2  the study that you were citing in California, the

          3  one that I have some knowledge of is one that took

          4  place with regard to the City of Santa Monica last

          5  year, they implemented a living wage bill; are you

          6  familiar with that?

          7                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: No, I'm not.

          8  The one that I'm referring to I think evaluated, you

          9  know, several living wage bills in California. Santa

         10  Monica probably was a part of that, I don't remember

         11  specifically, but I'm not aware of any study that

         12  looked at Santa Monica alone.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: This is the one

         14  by the Public Policy Institute of California?

         15                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Yes, that's

         16  California Public Policy Institute, I assume they're

         17  the same thing.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Right.

         19                 And their conclusion was different

         20  than what you're suggesting. They conclude that the

         21  living wage laws had sizable positive effects on

         22  low-wage workers and moderately reduced urban

         23  poverty.

         24                 This was a study done by David

         25  Newmark.
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          2                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: And they

          4  concluded that a cautious reading of the evidence

          5  should "dispell fears that living wage laws have the

          6  unintended effect of increasing urban poverty.

          7                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: I think if

          8  you actually read the entire conclusion, in fact, if

          9  you read the entire report, which I did over the

         10  weekend, you would find that it is actually quite

         11  wishy-washy, that they conclude that in fact there

         12  did appear, as I indicated earlier, to be some

         13  evidence that for the workers affected by this bill,

         14  there was a modest, I would like to describe it as

         15  slight increase, in wages, but that it was also

         16  offset by a decrease in employment, a decrease that

         17  they described as seven percent of -- seven percent

         18  increase, in effect, in unemployment.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I don't know,

         20  it's wishy-washy when they conclude something in

         21  favor of the bill. But on the other hand, it's not

         22  wishy-washy when you want to cite against the bill.

         23                 This is done by a guy by the name of

         24  David Newmark, and --

         25                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Yes, I think
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          2  I acknowledged that --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: And apparently

          4  what's so extraordinary about his study is that he

          5  was considered one of those who were against living

          6  wage bills, and, so, he was converted by virtue of

          7  his own study.

          8                 But, again, we I guess have different

          9  interpretations of this study, but as we seem to

         10  have some different interpretations about the

         11  budgetary impacts. And, so, I guess in light of the

         12  suggestion that was made by Councilwoman Quinn,

         13  we'll have to sit down together and sort of look at

         14  these differences.

         15                 And I think that's a productive

         16  effort, especially since you are not ideologically

         17  opposed to the idea of a living wage, because there

         18  may be some places where we can find some agreement.

         19                 I know that many of those who are

         20  against the living wage are not against it so much

         21  because of any numbers per se, but because they

         22  think it's not the way that government should be

         23  functioning, and, so, you obviously have no problem

         24  with government coming up with this type of

         25  legislation, but you just figured it has to be at
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          2  the right time and under the right economic

          3  conditions and not so complex.

          4                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: I just want

          5  to have more jobs for more people in this City.

          6  That's what I'm in this position to do --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Well, we all

          8  want that.

          9                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: That's what I

         10  want, we just all have a different view perhaps as

         11  to what will help accomplish that, or what, in fact,

         12  will hinder the accomplishment of that.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I just want to

         14  be clear, because our analysis indicates that most

         15  of the costs that you fear that will be passed on to

         16  the City, we feel are going to be picked up by the

         17  state and the federal government; you don't believe

         18  that, and that's why your numbers are so much larger

         19  than ours?

         20                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: That's only

         21  one component. That was the $43 million component.

         22  There are many other components where you can't make

         23  the same argument, but there, I think we agree on

         24  what the difference is on that one component and we

         25  need to resolve whether in fact it is significant.
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          2                 However, if it turns out that the

          3  interpretation of the Comptroller and the

          4  interpretation that you're advocating is correct, we

          5  still have a significant increase in cost to the

          6  City.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Well, that might

          8  bring it down to 60 million, just I wanted to start

          9  chunking this thing down from 100.

         10                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Sixty, plus a

         11  whole bunch of things we can't quantify.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: And then you

         13  realize there are a lot of health care, a lot of

         14  health care workers, you know, their health

         15  benefits, there's going to be a waiver for some of

         16  their benefits, do you realize that that cost may

         17  not be there as well?

         18                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: I'm not

         19  familiar with the point you're making.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay, so we'll

         21  have our staffs look at that and see how that helps

         22  in terms of bringing down the numbers some more,

         23  okay?

         24                 Council Member Jackson.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Good afternoon,
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          2  Deputy Mayor, and thanks for coming.

          3                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Good

          4  afternoon.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I don't know if

          6  you were here earlier, or maybe some of your

          7  representatives heard the testimony of several

          8  workers that testified in front of us in support of

          9  the living wage bill, and more specifically there

         10  was one individual who works for a BID, and you know

         11  about BIDs, and $6 an hour, I think very little

         12  benefits, if any. And I cited the case of a woman

         13  named Juanita Perkins who is in the audience now,

         14  and she's represented by 1199, she earns seven

         15  dollars and I think 20 cents an hour, and worked

         16  seven days a week. And we know that education is the

         17  key to success, and I think everyone agrees with

         18  that, but if you have to work two jobs, two

         19  full-time jobs in order to make ends meet, then what

         20  message are we communicating to those tens of

         21  thousands of workers that cannot pull themselves out

         22  of poverty? And some people have called those

         23  individuals indentured servants, basically servants

         24  for the rest of their lives because they cannot go

         25  to school to get an education because they're trying
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          2  to feed their families and clothe their children and

          3  pay their rent and living from bill to bill.

          4                 And my question to you is, as Deputy

          5  Mayor, all things considered. You indicated,

          6  basically, that the current Administration was

          7  opposed to this piece of legislation for the reasons

          8  you cited therein, what message should I communicate

          9  as a representative, communicate with them as far as

         10  how are we going to pull them out of the poverty

         11  that they're currently existing in?

         12                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Let me first

         13  say that I have enormous sympathy for the plight of

         14  Mrs. Perkins, however, and if I felt that I could

         15  raise her wage to a level that enabled her to

         16  achieve her dreams without having somebody else in

         17  this audience lose his or her job or more than one

         18  person lose his or her job as a result, then I would

         19  be absolutely in favor of it. I simply don't

         20  believe, based on the evidence that that is the

         21  case.

         22                 It's very easy to take one person and

         23  make a rule that, or a law that helps that one

         24  person, but what we've got to do is we have to look

         25  at the economy and totality, and we look at all the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            143

          1  CONTRACTS AND GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  other people like Mrs. Perkins, who may in fact be

          3  harmed, and that's my job, in part, as Deputy Mayor,

          4  is to look out for everybody.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: My final

          6  question, Deputy Mayor, is that I get the impression

          7  that you, on behalf of the Administration, feel that

          8  the time is not right, all things considered, for

          9  this legislation to go forward; am I right in that

         10  impression?

         11                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: That's

         12  correct.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Considering that

         14  the budget situation, as outlined by Mayor Bloomberg

         15  for 2006 we're expected to be in a $6 billion

         16  deficit, at what point in time do you believe that

         17  if we cannot afford to do this living wage bill now,

         18  when, in your opinion, as the Deputy Mayor that's

         19  responsible for economic development, when will we,

         20  in your opinion, have an opportunity to implement

         21  this living wage bill?

         22                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: I can't

         23  answer that. I don't have a crystal ball that will

         24  allow me to predict the economy.

         25                 I simply can tell you that if it were
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          2  enacted today, it is my best judgment that more

          3  people will lose their jobs, and will be harmed than

          4  this bill will help.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

          6                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: I really have

          7  only time for one more.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: How much time do

          9  you have?

         10                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: I have time

         11  for one more question.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Can you take

         13  two? One from me, one from --

         14                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: For you, yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I want to,

         16  again, express our appreciation for your

         17  participation in this debate and this dialogue. I

         18  think it's very healthy. Obviously we have some

         19  significant disagreements, one of which is, there's

         20  a consistent message that comes out of the

         21  Administration that businesses are going to be

         22  leaving the City, and that's going to be bad. And

         23  obviously, none of us wants to chase business or

         24  residents out of the City by any efforts that we

         25  make, and I'm just kind of wondering, on what basis

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            145

          1  CONTRACTS AND GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  are you making, coming to that conclusion?

          3  Especially since most businesses want to be in this

          4  place, and I don't understand why paying a living

          5  wage would drive them out, and what data do you have

          6  that supports your point of view? Where has it

          7  happened that you can sort of verify --

          8                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: By the

          9  Council's own estimates, we, the City, has lost, and

         10  a big chunk of this was lost before September 11th,

         11  so this isn't just September 11th effect, in the

         12  last year, 136,000 jobs. So, I don't think we have

         13  to look too far. I'm on the front lines out there

         14  every day talking to companies who are seeking space

         15  that is outside their current power grid that are

         16  looking for cheaper space in a down economy.

         17                 We are fighting that battle every

         18  day. I think we're doing a good job, and I think by

         19  the way, the incentives that we provide are helping

         20  us win the war, but we lose battles all the time,

         21  and every single time we lose a battle, people lose

         22  their jobs.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: But I don't know

         24  what policies that we've implemented that has

         25  resulted in them leaving. I mean, or that have
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          2  resulted in people losing their jobs, per se.

          3                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Well, for one

          4  thing it's extraordinarily expensive to do business

          5  in New York City.

          6                 We do have, and we think it's

          7  appropriate, the most compassionate government,

          8  compassionate society that exists. That imposes

          9  cost, and other jurisdictions, particularly some

         10  even right across the river, don't have the same

         11  costs.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Well, you know,

         13  there's mixed messages, because when the Mayor made

         14  his preliminary budget presentation, he cited the

         15  fact that businesses were not leaving, and, in fact,

         16  that some thought they could get a better deal some

         17  place else, realized, hey, when you go across the

         18  river, you still have to pay taxes, so you might as

         19  well stay in New York.

         20                 So, it's like you make an argument to

         21  say that at one point that serves one position, and

         22  then we come up with something, you make an argument

         23  that says we're chasing them away. So, I'm not quite

         24  sure when this argument works, and what the evidence

         25  for this argument is.
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          2                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Well, I don't

          3  recall exactly what the Mayor says.

          4                 The fact of the matter is that we,

          5  without the application of these incentives, the

          6  very incentives that these, this bill addresses, and

          7  would inhibit, we -- without them we are facing the

          8  loss of jobs.

          9                 So I don't think we're talking out of

         10  both sides of our mouths, I think we've been pretty

         11  consistent.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: All right.

         13                 Councilwoman Gale Brewer.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

         15  much. Nice to see you.

         16                 My question is this: I know the EITC

         17  program well, and I know you mentioned it in your

         18  testimony, even though I was next door as a

         19  Committee member of Mental Health. But my question

         20  is, and I know that I've been on the Board of

         21  Community Resource Center for a very long time, and

         22  I know that over the years, and particularly

         23  recently, they are working with some of the

         24  foundations to try to get as many people as possible

         25  on EITC.
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          2                 So, we all have the same goal to

          3  provide jobs, as many as possible, and to get as

          4  much money in people's pockets who are working as

          5  possible so they can pay the rents and school and so

          6  on.

          7                 So, how is it that you can state, and

          8  it may be true, but I don't completely understand

          9  it, is it, in fact, true that the living -- that the

         10  EITC tax credit would in fact provide as much money

         11  in someone's pocket as this living wage bill? And I

         12  think you said in your testimony and you may be

         13  right, is it the same person whom we're talking

         14  about? And if so, are we really targeting those

         15  individuals to be sure that every single one of them

         16  is on EITC going forward and currently? In other

         17  words, how exactly are we using EITC?

         18                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Well, first

         19  of all, let me say, the two are not mutually

         20  exclusive, and the Mayor and the Department of

         21  Consumer Affairs, which reports to me under the

         22  leadership of Commissioner Gretchen Dykstra, working

         23  with the Speaker and other members of City Council,

         24  has been very outspoken in terms of encouraging

         25  people who are eligible to capitalize on the earned
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          2  income tax credit.

          3                 The benefits would be available to

          4  all people, as I understand it, who receive the

          5  wages below the proposed living wage, and so it

          6  would be an enhancement, but it's not to say they're

          7  mutually exclusive, I don't mean to imply that they

          8  aren't.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: But what I'm

         10  saying is that what I thought you were saying is

         11  that maybe we don't need the living wage bill at

         12  this time, because --

         13                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: I think many

         14  people, if we actually encourage people to take

         15  advantage of the EITC program, their take-home pay

         16  would be substantially greater. In fact, would be

         17  greater than if we passed the living wage bill.

         18                 However, it doesn't mean that, you

         19  know, can't do both.

         20                 Thank you very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         22  much.

         23                 We want to give Councilman Yassky --

         24  let me ask you one final question from me then: your

         25  study -- OMB says what's wrong in terms of the
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          2  amount of impact it's going to have on the City

          3  budget, we had testimony that shared with us what

          4  would happen in a positive sense, in terms of the

          5  economy, $87 million modest boost to the economy,

          6  one of our witnesses shared with us; has the

          7  Administration shared any of the positive impacts

          8  that might result? Or do you challenge even this

          9  number of a modest $87 million economic stimulus to

         10  many low-income neighborhoods?

         11                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: We look at it

         12  on a net basis, and our conclusion is that it is

         13  significantly negative on a net basis.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: So you look at

         15  positives and negatives, and you've come up with

         16  some positives that you could share?

         17                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Not that I'm

         18  aware of. Although we do acknowledge that for some

         19  workers, unquestionably some workers will benefit

         20  from a provision of this bill, there is no question

         21  about that. We don't deny that. Those who benefit,

         22  it's the off-set that we are particularly concerned

         23  about, as well as the impact on the economy as a

         24  whole.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Very good.
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          2                 Thank you very much.

          3                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: You've been very

          5  kind. And we look forward to continuing this

          6  dialogue, and your support, ultimately, for this

          7  bill.

          8                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: We're going to

         10  now hear from Kathy Wylde from the New York City

         11  Partnership.

         12                 MR. NEWMAN: Please raise your right

         13  hand.

         14                 So you solemnly swear or affirm that

         15  the testimony you're about to give is the truth, the

         16  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         17                 MS. WYLDE: Yes.

         18                 MR. NEWMAN: Please state your name

         19  and affiliation for the record and begin your

         20  testimony.

         21                 MS. WYLDE: Kathryn Wylde, I'm

         22  president and CEO of the New York City Partnership.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Ladies and

         24  gents, Sergeant-of-Arms, will you quiet down the

         25  house, please?
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          2                 Thank you. Speak directly.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: If you don't

          4  mind, for your sake, we would just like to let them

          5  clear that up a little so you won't be disturbed,

          6  because there's quite a few people moving around out

          7  there.

          8                 If you're going to stay, please get

          9  away from the front doors.

         10                 The Sergeant-of-Arms will instruct

         11  you. If not, then please have a seat.

         12                 Thank you very much.

         13                 MS. WYLDE: Thank you for the

         14  opportunity, and we appreciate the fact that the

         15  Council has indicated their willingness to talk to

         16  the business community about an issue that we feel

         17  has a significant effect on the City economy, and

         18  the efforts you've made thus far.

         19                 I've met with Councilman Perkins and

         20  the advocates for the bill and there have been some

         21  amendments in the legislation that have helped to

         22  clarify some of the earlier concerns on the effect

         23  of small business and on the City's affordable

         24  housing programs and we're glad to see that

         25  reflected in the current draft.
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          2                 We do, however, have other concerns.

          3  I've got some written testimony that describes some

          4  of them in detail, but I'll just give you a big

          5  picture sense of what our concerns are.

          6                 I would start by saying that in terms

          7  of the fiscal issues involved, to the extent that

          8  we're talking about direct City contracting for

          9  goods and services which is the traditional focus of

         10  living wage legislation, we really don't have an

         11  opinion on that. That's really, the kinds of issues

         12  you've been discussing in terms of fiscal impact are

         13  really a function of the City and City budget and

         14  how they're going to weigh those priorities, and,

         15  so, I'm not weighing in on that one way or the

         16  other.

         17                 The impact that we're concerned about

         18  has to do with the broader suggestion in the bill

         19  beyond City contracting, that with regard to the

         20  City's economic development programs and the extent

         21  to which those economic development programs are

         22  focused on attraction of new business, historically

         23  there's been more of a focus on retention and real

         24  estate activities, and so I think that some of the

         25  implications of, particularly at this point in
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          2  history, and I think an administration that is

          3  interested in doing some sectoral economic

          4  development and focusing on business attraction,

          5  that I would urge the Council to consider that this

          6  is different than our history in economic

          7  development, and that we have to think about the

          8  impact.

          9                 The other, the second area of concern

         10  that we've raised, and we think has not been

         11  appropriately addressed in the legislation, is the

         12  issue of subcontracting and liability and turning

         13  companies that are being encouraged to come into the

         14  City, do business, expand in the City, create jobs

         15  here, putting them in the position of being an

         16  enforcement agent with a series of subcontractors,

         17  and assuming liability for a series of

         18  subcontractors, and we think this is a very

         19  significant impact potentially of this bill that

         20  could have economic consequences that are an

         21  impossible measure, and I doubt has been measured in

         22  other places.

         23                 So, those are really our two key

         24  concerns, and what we would welcome the opportunity

         25  to work with you on trying to address them and
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          2  seeing whether the legislation could be amended to

          3  make sure that in the process of creating something

          4  we're not reaching too broadly beyond direct City

          5  contracts and asking the private sector to enforce

          6  something that may be difficult or impossible for

          7  them to enforce, could hurt small businesses

          8  unintentionally that are subcontractors, and that

          9  could, in fact, discourage companies from job

         10  creation expansion here or moving to the boroughs.

         11                 We are about to release in a couple

         12  of weeks, and we'll share with you as soon as we

         13  finish the information, and I think the first

         14  in-depth analysis comparing the current state of New

         15  York, New Jersey and Connecticut tax, tax and

         16  incentive programs. And importantly, I add tax,

         17  because it's kind of easy to look at the incentive

         18  programs on a direct subsidy basis, much more

         19  complex are the tax implications of some of the

         20  investment tax programs that exist, and we're

         21  looking at that for the City as a whole, for the

         22  boroughs, and for lower Manhattan and comparing it

         23  against Jersey and Connecticut. Our preliminary

         24  findings are that New York, even with the

         25  substantial benefits we've provided for borough
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          2  relocation, is still not competitive and there's

          3  more that we have to do in this regard.

          4                 So, again, that's the direction and

          5  the trajectory that we're trying to, we're hoping we

          6  can go with City policy, and we're concerned that if

          7  we raise barriers on the other side for the

          8  attraction of business and movement of business into

          9  the boroughs, that we will have to compensate for

         10  that in ways that we're not fiscally equipped to do

         11  right now.

         12                 So, with that, I'm happy to answer

         13  any questions, and I hope we'll have the opportunity

         14  to sit down and discuss this in the details of the

         15  legislation.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         17  much for your testimony and for your patience.

         18                 I know you were here earlier.

         19                 MS. WYLDE: I learned a lot.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Well, we're all

         21  learning a lot, and let me ask, many of the

         22  so-called for-profits are already paying above the

         23  so-called -- hour living wage, so do you think that

         24  this will still have such a negative impact?

         25                 MS. WYLDE: I don't think, in terms of
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          2  we canvased our members when the bill first came

          3  out, and our members are basically the City's

          4  largest employers, and their reaction was that this

          5  did not have, that the wage requirements of this

          6  bill are wages and benefits they're already paying,

          7  and this did not have a major impact on them.

          8                 And as I said before, the impact on

          9  the City fiscal situation is really a matter of

         10  public policy for the City to determine.

         11                 The issues that were flagged for us

         12  were the impact on attraction of new business and on

         13  the impact of subcontractors, and the liabilities

         14  associated with subcontracts.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: You mean

         16  particularly in terms of the reporting and the

         17  enforcement?

         18                 MS. WYLDE: It is the reporting

         19  requirements, it's really the liability in the case

         20  of a subcontractor who fails to comply, disappears,

         21  is irresponsible, whatever, and you've got a prime

         22  contractor or a prime beneficiary in this case of

         23  tax abatements who is held responsible for the

         24  activities of someone they did business with.

         25                 In the past what that's tended to do,
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          2  with regard to particularly prevailing wage laws,

          3  has caused the industry or the prime contractor, to

          4  go to the largest most secure. Most well capitalized

          5  business and look for some liability protection from

          6  them.

          7                 Obviously that is the direction that

          8  would go against many of our public policies, though

          9  we're trying to encourage more business with small

         10  companies, with young companies in the City to

         11  encourage entrepreneurial, to encourage minority

         12  procurement. So, we would not like to see something

         13  like that take place.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you,

         15  again. Especially for your earlier conversations

         16  with us, and meetings with us to take into

         17  consideration some of your concerns.

         18                 MS. WYLDE: We've made good progress.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         20  much. Glad to hear that for the record that we've

         21  made some progress with the business community in

         22  reconciling some of our differences, and I'm

         23  optimistic that we will ultimately find ourselves

         24  together on this.

         25                 Are there any questions from the
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          2  members of the Committee?

          3                 Thank you very much, and look forward

          4  to continuing to work with you.

          5                 MS. WYLDE: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay, we're

          7  going to now hear from Frank McArdle.

          8                 Frank McArdle, did you return? Thank

          9  you very much. Also from the business community. And

         10  then our next panel after that will be a labor

         11  panel, which will consist of Ed Ott, Angel Martine,

         12  Jose Maldonado, and Ninfa Vassallo and Rodlyn

         13  George.  And then after that we'll have clergy.

         14                 MR. NEWMAN: Please raise your right

         15  hand.

         16                 Do you solemnly swear or affirm that

         17  the testimony you're about to give is the truth, the

         18  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         19                 MR. McARDLE: I do.

         20                 MR. NEWMAN: Please state your name

         21  and affiliation for the record and begin your

         22  testimony.

         23                 MR. McARDLE: Yes. My name is Frank

         24  McArdle. I am the Managing Director of the General

         25  Contractors Association of New York. We are a New
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          2  York City-based trade association representing the

          3  heavy construction industry active in New York City.

          4                 I want to thank you for giving me the

          5  opportunity to comment today in support of the

          6  proposed legislation.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Would you repeat

          8  yourself, please. I didn't quite hear that from the

          9  business community.

         10                 MR. McARDLE: I represent contractors

         11  who today work under the prevailing wage legislation

         12  that covers construction, covers the heavy

         13  construction industry and many aspects of the

         14  construction industry in New York City, and I am

         15  here to speak in support of the notion of prevailing

         16  wage legislation and living wage legislation.

         17                 We believe that in construction, as

         18  in other areas, if private companies benefit from

         19  public monies, they should be obligated to pay their

         20  workforce a salary sufficient to support themselves.

         21                 We have seen no compelling evidence

         22  that indicates the prevailing wage legislation in

         23  construction or elsewhere leads to job losses.

         24                 Quite frankly, the experience in the

         25  construction industry perhaps will be instructive
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          2  for the Council as it considers this legislation

          3  today. My members work in New York City and they do

          4  pay prevailing wages here. All of my contractors are

          5  union contractors, and they have worked in this

          6  industry, most of them all of their lives.

          7                 They work elsewhere in this country.

          8  They work elsewhere where the prevailing wage

          9  legislation and the benefits of union membership are

         10  not as strong as they are here. And my members will

         11  tell you that one of the strongest outcomes of

         12  prevailing wage legislation here is a very

         13  confident, strong and motivated workforce.

         14                 Living wage legislation really is the

         15  most recent example of a long history of prevailing

         16  wage legislation.

         17                 Davis-Bacon goes back to 1931. New

         18  York State and many other states have developed

         19  their own little Davis-Bacon laws.

         20                 The prevailing wage legislation in

         21  construction attract skilled people to the industry,

         22  and they attract promotable people to the industry.

         23                 When this legislation first came

         24  before the City Council some years ago, I took it to

         25  my members at my executive committee and asked them
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          2  what their view was.

          3                 Now, remember, for my construction

          4  companies, most of their workforce is covered by the

          5  construction prevailing wage legislation, but they

          6  hire substantial numbers of other people to staff

          7  the home offices of their companies, to staff the

          8  people who are on the jobs in the trailers and the

          9  like, and at that time the proposal was that we pay

         10  $11.70 an hour, including benefits. My members at

         11  that Executive Committee, 30 of them, with

         12  headquarters throughout this region, thought about

         13  it, thought about what they pay people in their

         14  offices to get people who are both skilled and

         15  promotable, and said that it should be $11.70 plus

         16  fringe benefits on top. And they have not changed

         17  their view.

         18                 In construction, as I point out in my

         19  testimony, it is not simply a wage gap that

         20  separates those who work in the prevailing wage

         21  sector and those who do not. It's a safety gap.

         22  There's no question about it.

         23                 In the areas of our industry, where

         24  there is no prevailing wage protection, you have

         25  what we call the Queen X contractors, the people who
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          2  pick them up at the street corners in the morning,

          3  and throw them away at the end of the day.

          4                 I need not tell any of you who have

          5  seen these street corners, that you are dealing with

          6  desperate people who often have to take whatever is

          7  offered in order to survive the day. And the stories

          8  of what happens to those people, to the unsafe

          9  conditions in which they work, the promises made and

         10  broken time after time are a disgrace to the City of

         11  New York. No question in construction and elsewhere.

         12                 The legislation before you today, I

         13  would suggest is not perfect, and I say this in my

         14  testimony. Quite frankly, there are segments of the

         15  construction industry, supported by the City of New

         16  York, that are still not protected by prevailing

         17  wage legislation, particularly in the development

         18  and rehabilitation of housing. And what you find

         19  there again, Queen X contractors, picking people up,

         20  throwing them away.

         21                 I need not remind any of you, I

         22  think, about the worker who drowned in concrete just

         23  three years ago. Or the scaffolding that collapsed

         24  in October. Again, people without skill or safety

         25  being forced to work without the protections that
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          2  they get when there's the level playing field in the

          3  recognition of people that prevailing wage

          4  legislation provides.

          5                 One last point, and it's the most

          6  important point of all, for the classes of people

          7  that you would cover and the more that I would

          8  suggest you consider. At the end of the day, the

          9  City pays the bill one way or the other. But right

         10  now it pays it without dignity. The Public Policy

         11  Institute, not a liberal organization by any stretch

         12  of the imagination, related to the Business Council,

         13  once did an analysis of support for families from

         14  the public sector, and concluded that you would need

         15  a wage of almost $12 an hour, to equal the health

         16  care benefits and the other benefits that people can

         17  gain, quite rightly, from the public sector. Their

         18  point being, that to get people to work, you needed

         19  to offer them more.

         20                 I don't agree with that necessarily,

         21  because I think people always want to work if they

         22  can in the dignity of work, but it does measure what

         23  the benefits are.

         24                 If you pay people $6 an hour and they

         25  have a family, they will go to the emergency room in
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          2  the most acute circumstance to get their health

          3  care.

          4                 Not one of you believes that health

          5  care is best provided in the chaos of an emergency

          6  room where there are no preventative visits, where

          7  there is no support for the family.

          8                 Equally, all of you know that as you

          9  go to your communities, the people who are in fact

         10  organizing in the community, the people who are

         11  supporting the sports events, the people who are

         12  active in the community board, that are in the

         13  police precincts, are people who are paid a living

         14  wage, and that's what you get - you get people able

         15  to in fact extend the time to their children, and

         16  the time to their community that very low wages

         17  require they extend to the second and third job just

         18  to put food on the table.

         19                 So, that's the opportunity you have

         20  today. It's as simple as that. Yes, it may cost some

         21  people a little bit more, but, again, the benefits

         22  to the community have been measured effectively in

         23  construction and they have been measured effectively

         24  elsewhere, and I would urge you to extend this

         25  coverage to the classes before you, but also to
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          2  other classes such as those who renovate housing in

          3  the City, who deserve that protection, deserve no

          4  less from the City of New York, and from you.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I want to thank

          7  you for your testimony and your passionate

          8  appreciation of the bill and of the value of

          9  dignified work that we are trying to accomplish in

         10  this Council.

         11                 I know that you have quite a bit of

         12  history in terms of the prevailing wage and these

         13  types of issues. You had the privilege I guess of

         14  hearing some of the testimony that came before you,

         15  do you have any comments or observations that you

         16  might want to share with us?

         17                 MR. McARDLE: Well, it has been

         18  suggested that somehow prevailing wage legislation

         19  puts an undo burden on small and emerging companies.

         20  I would disagree. It in fact sets a standard for

         21  those companies, there's no question, but, again,

         22  it's a requirement, and I would point out that

         23  prevailing wage violations are often the work of

         24  some of the biggest companies, quite deliberately,

         25  as well as the smallest companies inadvertently.
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          2                 There is no question that it sets a

          3  standard.

          4                 But any small company has that

          5  standard for health and safety on the job. OSHA does

          6  not exempt you because you're a small company that

          7  just couldn't get around to the safety training.

          8  That's not the way it works. They want you to know

          9  what the right way it is to be in business. Because,

         10  quite frankly, if you're skating in that area,

         11  you're taking business away from those small

         12  companies that have taken the time to learn those

         13  rules and make it happen.

         14                 Is it going to be a burden? Yes. Lots

         15  of things are burdens in the City of New York.

         16  Stopping for red lights is a burden for many people.

         17  Not being able to turn right on a red light is a

         18  burden for people. Having to sweep your curb, 18

         19  inches from the curb, or what have you, but this is

         20  what it is to live in a dignified society in the

         21  greatest City in the world, and we have to set that

         22  standard as the greatest City for everybody, not

         23  just for those who were able, as construction was to

         24  establish that, but to establish it for everybody.

         25  It's work with dignity. That's what it's all about.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

          3  much.

          4                 Now we're going to hear from our

          5  labor panel that consists of Ninfa Vassallo. Jose

          6  Maldonado. Angelo Martin. Senior' Eduardo Ott.

          7                 MR. NEWMAN: Please raise your right

          8  hands.

          9                 Do you solemnly swear or affirm the

         10  testimony you're about to give is the truth, the

         11  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         12                 (Witnesses sworn and affirmed.)

         13                 MR. NEWMAN: Please state your names

         14  and affiliations for the record.

         15                 MR. OTT: My name is Edward F. Ott.

         16  I'm the Director of Public Policy to the New York

         17  City Central Labor Council.

         18                 MR. McCULLOCH: My name is kevin

         19  McCulloch, I'm here in the place of Angelo Martin,

         20  and I'm representing Local 210 of the Teamsters.

         21                 MR. MALDONADO: My name is Jose

         22  Maldonado, I'm the Secretary/Treasurer of Local 100

         23  HERE International Union.

         24                 MS. VASSALLO: I'm Ninfa Vassallo,

         25  District Council 1707, Local 389 AFSCME, Home Care
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          2  Employees.

          3                 MR. GEORGE: And I'm Raglan George,

          4  Jr., Director of Day Care/HeadStart, District

          5  Council 1707.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

          7  much. Maybe the Sergeant-of-Arms can get you a

          8  chair, so you can be at the table. Or pull the one

          9  you're sitting in up.

         10                 Let me express on behalf of the

         11  Committee our appreciation for your attendance and

         12  your patience.

         13                 I know you've been here for awhile,

         14  it would be helpful if you could limit your

         15  testimony to three minutes. If you can summarize, as

         16  opposed to reading your testimony, that would help

         17  us in terms of the follow-up questions and comments

         18  that we'd like to engage you in, and then of course

         19  we would be able to accommodate more people sooner

         20  than later.

         21                 So, as you wish to start, I guess,

         22  Mr. Ott, Senior' Eduardo Ott.

         23                 MR. OTT: Grasias.

         24                 First off, Mr. Chairman, and

         25  Co-Chairman, I want to thank you for setting this
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          2  hearing up. I haven't been down to City Hall as much

          3  in many years as I have been in the last few months,

          4  and it's mostly for the good work of this Council,

          5  and the kinds of issues that you're bringing out.

          6                 I'm going to real only part of my

          7  remarks, but I want to talk about a couple of points

          8  that the Deputy Mayor made that I'd like to comment

          9  on.

         10                 First, we believe that he was wrong

         11  in parts of his testimony when he talked about that

         12  the home health care money was not funded. It is in

         13  fact agreed to. The Memorandum of Understanding is

         14  not yet written, but it is agreed to, and we should

         15  be clear about that, and all houses of the

         16  Legislature in Albany and the Executive understand

         17  that.

         18                 The other point was that the Home

         19  Health benefits that he referred to as a cost item

         20  is in fact exempted in this bill. So, it is not a

         21  cost item.

         22                 The third piece is that the lease

         23  provision that he spoke to as a cost item of $18

         24  million is in fact introduced slowly in this bill,

         25  and the cost to the City in the first year is $1
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          2  million, not 18.

          3                 Finally, the New York State Industry

          4  for the Disabled is already covered in the enabling

          5  act of '96 and is not a cost item as such to this

          6  bill. So that may be where some of the confusions of

          7  their large numbers as opposed to our estimate of

          8  somewhere around 5 million or 9 million, give or

          9  take a million, sooner or later it becomes real

         10  money.

         11                 We're lived with this bill for two

         12  years, the Central Labor Council. We've worked with

         13  the Coalition of Organizations in this room. I've

         14  personally lived on the first living wage bill that

         15  the City passed, which was narrowed in scope to a

         16  point that it was almost meaningless, and we're

         17  hoping to avoid that in this process.

         18                 We support this bill as it stands in

         19  its current form. The bill reflects an understanding

         20  that those enterprises that seek public subsidy in

         21  the form of tax breaks, economic development money

         22  and greater than 500,000 from the EDC, Business

         23  Improvement Districts and some child care programs

         24  are in the position to pay better wages.

         25                 In addition, some who are major
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          2  tenants in City-owned buildings are in fact being

          3  subsidized by lower than market rents.

          4                 It is our view that the employers

          5  that do business with the City or seek public monies

          6  should become model employers.

          7                 Public funds should not be used to

          8  suppress the wages of workers.

          9                 This bill is called a living wage

         10  bill. The wage it calls for is 8.10 per hour, moving

         11  to $10.00 per hour over four years.

         12                 This would be a great improvement for

         13  the thousands of workers who would have their wages

         14  increased, but it is a living wage in name only.

         15                 Every one involved in this process

         16  should think about trying to live in this City on

         17  8.10 an hour, particularly Ms. Wylde.

         18                 New York City Central Labor Council

         19  considers this the essential point of this bill.

         20  Thousands of workers in this City, this very

         21  expensive City, work, raise families and leave

         22  dignified lives on less than 8.10 per hour. I would

         23  like to see the editors in New York Post do the

         24  same.

         25                 Why should we do this by law? Take a
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          2  look at the workers in the Business Improvement

          3  Districts. Some are making between $6 and $7 per

          4  hour. When they attempt to join a union, which is

          5  their legal right, their employer spends thousands

          6  of dollars to resist organizing efforts.

          7                 It's a confused morality that thinks

          8  it's okay to spend $200 per hour on a lawyer to deny

          9  a working person $8.00 per hour job.

         10                 What is really going on here is that

         11  some of these agencies think that workers should

         12  subsidize work with low wages. The Executives of

         13  these agencies would not think of doing the same

         14  what they demanded of the poorest workers in this

         15  City.

         16                 Some employers, all too often, are

         17  taking the power of the law it gives them in

         18  exploiting the working people of New York City.

         19                 The so-called non-profit sector is

         20  notorious for low wages at the bottom and excessive

         21  salaries at the top. We learned a long time ago from

         22  the experience of hospital workers that non-profit

         23  agencies will cry about layoffs and shut-down if

         24  they have to pay decent wages. The very same cries

         25  we see on the editorial pages today.
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          2                 But we know, and you have heard the

          3  facts presented in this hearing, that improved wages

          4  will be spent and have a positive impact on the

          5  community.

          6                 The working people of this City know

          7  about unemployment. It is part of a working class

          8  life.

          9                 Heck, there's a story going around

         10  that some guy had to spend 76 million just to get a

         11  city job. Workers accept the ups and downs of the

         12  job market.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Ed, it was the

         14  pension. He really needed the pension.

         15                 MR. OTT: He really needed the

         16  pension, right.

         17                 Workers accept the ups and downs of

         18  the job market. What is unacceptable is the constant

         19  institutionalization of low wages. What is

         20  unacceptable is unrewarded hard work. What breaks

         21  the spirit is to be burdened with the prospect of a

         22  life of working poverty, it's unacceptable. This

         23  bill is a simple, decent thing to do, they should

         24  understand it.

         25                 Some of the people that oppose this
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          2  bill in this room today couldn't live in this City

          3  on $80,000 a year, they wouldn't know where to

          4  begin, and these workers do it on less than eight.

          5                 MR. McCULLOCH: Thank you. My name is

          6  Kevin McCulloch. I'm with Local 210, and we

          7  represent the Business Improvement Districts, and I

          8  think you had one of our members here speaking this

          9  afternoon. And I personally, I'm a labor leader, and

         10  I negotiate a contract, and the people are making $6

         11  an hour for several years and they look at me as if

         12  I'm on the take or something, because how can a

         13  person work for $6 an hour and still be in the

         14  union. And I'm embarrassed, and it shouldn't happen.

         15                 Every time we put pressure on one of

         16  the BIDs, they say we haven't gotten any money from

         17  the City for years, they won't let us increase it,

         18  and if you, you know, go ahead, strike. But how can

         19  you strike when people are making $6. An hour? You

         20  can't strike. So, I'm glad the people are taking

         21  notice, because we really have to do something.

         22                 The other misimpression is, the

         23  people working in these BIDs now have second or

         24  third jobs and they don't really need the income.

         25                 That's absolutely not true. This is
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          2  the only job for many of these people. They live off

          3  their $6 an hour, they put in whatever overtime they

          4  can.  So, I just want the Council to vote and vote

          5  to approve the living wage bill.

          6                 Thank you very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

          8  much.

          9                 MR. MALDONADO: Hello. How you doing?

         10  Again, my name is Jose Maldonado, I'm the

         11  Secretary/Treasurer of Local 100.

         12                 I've been here since 1:00, and it's

         13  been pretty interesting. I think the answers to the

         14  living wage bills is in our walls. I was reading --

         15  and it's appropriate, because I was reading what it

         16  says, "A government for the people, by the people,

         17  for the people," and there's some politicians that

         18  stand up here and it looks like it read, a

         19  government for corporations by CEOs for the rich.

         20  So, what's going on here?

         21                 Then if you look to your right, let

         22  me put on my glasses for this one, it says "a

         23  commercial policy should hold an equal and impartial

         24  hand." There goes another answer, right?

         25                 So, every time we look around this
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          2  room here we see the answers to the question of a

          3  living wage bill.

          4                 Our people, the majority of people,

          5  by living poverty level wages are the voters, so

          6  we're asking the politicians and the Mayor to listen

          7  to the voters if he wants to be in office next year

          8  -- oh, excuse me. In the next term. Excuse me. I

          9  wish it was next year.

         10                 I want to read, I'll be brief, I want

         11  to read a statement. Our local union represents

         12  thousands of food service workers in restaurant

         13  industry, country clubs, sports and arenas,

         14  exhibition, cultural institutions and corporate

         15  cafeterias throughout New York City.

         16                 Here Local 100 supports the living

         17  wage legislation currently before the City Council.

         18                 This legislation has a potential

         19  benefit to benefit thousands of low-wage workers in

         20  New York City by providing economic security and

         21  affordable health insurance for food service

         22  workers, as well as their family members for working

         23  other low-sector jobs, like health care and day

         24  care, retail and business services.

         25                 At a time when the number of working
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          2  poor continues to grow, the living wage bill is

          3  greatly needed to help move families out of poverty.

          4                 The living wage bill will have a

          5  significant impact, not only to our members, but to

          6  hundreds of non-union food service workers who work

          7  in corporate cafeterias. There are more than 200

          8  cafeterias in executive dining rooms located in

          9  corporate office buildings in New York City, serving

         10  employees and investment bank media conglomerates

         11  and insurance companies. Every day food service

         12  workers serve meals to stock brokers and New York

         13  Stock Exchange and media moguls at Conde Nast,

         14  executives at Metropolitan Life, and investment

         15  bankers at Chase/JP Morgan.

         16                 These are among the wealthiest and

         17  most powerful corporations in America and are just a

         18  few of the many corporations that have received

         19  millions of dollars in corporate subsidies from our

         20  City, from our people.

         21                 Wealthy corporations are reaping the

         22  benefits of public subsidies while many of the food

         23  service workers that serve them struggle to make

         24  ends meet.

         25                 Most large companies trim costs by
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          2  outsourcing food service to billion dollar

          3  contractors like Sodexho, Aramark, or Restaurant

          4  Associates, which is owned by a $12 billion

          5  corporation called Compass Group.

          6                 These companies routinely pay low

          7  wages. Many food service workers working inside

          8  corporate cafeterias earn less than $8.00 an hour.

          9  Even those who earn more often find that affordable

         10  health insurance is out of reach. Workers with

         11  families can't afford the cost of health insurance,

         12  which is approximately $60 a week, and $3,000 a

         13  year. How can a food service worker afford this if

         14  they're making $320 a week?

         15                 As the City subsidizes large

         16  corporations, the City is also providing hidden

         17  subsidies for many of their contracted workers. Many

         18  non-union workers are forced to rely on food stamps

         19  and Medicaid. I know one young woman who works as a

         20  cashier in a non-union cafeteria of a large

         21  investment bank that has received millions of

         22  dollars in corporate subsidies. She's pregnant right

         23  now and can't afford health insurance so she will

         24  have to rely on Medicaid in order to cover her

         25  medical costs when she gives birth.
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          2                 She's not alone. There are many like

          3  her in corporate cafeterias throughout New York

          4  City. Not only do some food service workers have to

          5  rely on Medicaid, some have to live in public

          6  housing or rely on other social services in order to

          7  get by.

          8                 The irony is that these workers are

          9  doing everything right. Many work full time to

         10  support their family, yet struggle to pay their rent

         11  bill or to provide other basic necessities. They

         12  work in the same jobs for years, like the

         13  dishwashers who work for Restaurant Associates and

         14  earn less than 8.50 an hour and have been there for

         15  15 years.

         16                 The living wage bill will make sure

         17  that companies that benefit from corporate subsidy,

         18  while pushing workers into poverty-level jobs

         19  effectively subsidized by the public, will have to

         20  take responsibility and create decent paying jobs

         21  for New Yorkers.

         22                 At a time when there are limited

         23  public dollars to be spread around, we heard that

         24  earlier today, the public should not continue to

         25  subsidize poverty-level conditions - least of all
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          2  for multi-billion dollar companies and their

          3  contractors that can easily absorb the costs of this

          4  bill.

          5                 These companies ought to ensure that

          6  all workers, both contracted and directly employed,

          7  can earn a living wage with access to affordable

          8  health insurance. Not only is it the right thing to

          9  do, it is good economic policy.

         10                 We hope the City Council will remain

         11  firm in its support of the current version of this

         12  living wage bill and make sure that workers who

         13  provide services to recipients of corporate

         14  subsidies will see a real improvement in their

         15  economic well being.

         16                 Thank you very much.

         17                 MS. VASSALLO: First of all, I want to

         18  thank you for having these hearings. As I said

         19  before, my name is Ninfa Vassallo, I'm Director of

         20  Home Care at District Council 1707.

         21                 I just wanted to talk about a little

         22  of the history of the home care workers.

         23                 In 1980 the Human Resource

         24  Administration subcontracted the home care division

         25  to vendor agencies. Most of the home care workers
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          2  were women, head of households, and on public

          3  assistance. The minimum wage was $3.15 per hour

          4  which they received with basic fringe benefits, such

          5  as disability, workers compensation and basic health

          6  coverage.

          7                 These workers took pride in caring

          8  for the elderly, disabled and frail clients.

          9                 In 1982, home care agencies were

         10  unionized and they obtained their first contracts,

         11  through the years we improved the condition of the

         12  employers -- employment and fringe benefits.

         13  However, due to Medicaid trend factors, wage has

         14  increased $4.24 per hour in 22 years.

         15                 If home care workers made in 1980

         16  $3.15 an hour and make now $7.39 cents per hour, it

         17  took 22 years to get to seven dollars and

         18  thirty-nine cents an hour, okay?

         19                 Unfortunately, this trend continues.

         20  A lot of home care agencies are not unionized, and

         21  one of the agencies I can mention, because we

         22  unionize them, and we're still fighting for a

         23  contract, is MetroCare.

         24                 MetroCare has a contract with the

         25  City for the most difficult-to-service clients. It's
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          2  called DTS Contract. This is the client that no

          3  other agency wants. Yet, they pay their home care

          4  workers $6.30 an hour.

          5                 Now, that home care worker has been

          6  making $6.30 an hour since 1988. They have not had

          7  an increase since 1988. The home care agencies are

          8  finding it difficult to retain home attendants when

          9  fastfood chains pay their workers $9.00 an hour and

         10  fringe benefits for their employees. Why would

         11  someone choose to change adult diapers or assist a

         12  heavy client to a commode when they can make more

         13  money working in a fastfood chain?

         14                 Home care workers are dedicated

         15  caring, loving employees who care for their clients

         16  as they would a family member. All they ask for in

         17  return is to be treated with dignity, respect and

         18  receive a living wage for their service.

         19                 On behalf of all the home care

         20  workers in New York City, we ask you to support

         21  Intro. 66-A. This law would improve the lives of

         22  many dedicated home care workers and their clients

         23  who need home care.

         24                 MR. GEORGE: My name is Raglan George,

         25  I'm the Director of Day Care at District Council
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          2  1707.

          3                 Earlier today there was some

          4  discussion about child care workers who made more,

          5  above what this living wage is going to be, that's

          6  solely because the union has organized these folks,

          7  but there's thousands and thousands of family day

          8  care providers   and providers that work in the

          9  homes that are way below the standard, and these are

         10  the folks that need help.

         11                 While the City rejects the request of

         12  the unions to organize these workers, because they

         13  say they are entrepreneurs, they still, they are the

         14  oppressors of these people. The City should remove

         15  that standard so that the union can organize these

         16  workers and bring them into the floor, or at least

         17  allow this living wage bill to take effect so they

         18  can bring their standards up.

         19                 These are the folks that provide a

         20  service to working families who need it, and they

         21  are not cared for. They have no benefits, they have

         22  no pensions, they work under substandard conditions

         23  because of the wages that they earn, and they use

         24  their homes to take care of these children. And

         25  these are the things that need to be corrected and
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          2  will be corrected by this bill.

          3                 We're saying to you, we thank you for

          4  bringing this hearing to the floor so that we could

          5  come out and express ourselves. We are also saying,

          6  we say to you don't be daunted by those that oppose

          7  this bill. We want to see this bill enacted and

          8  become a policy in this City, and we applaud you for

          9  what you're doing.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         11  much.

         12                 Let me assure you that we are not

         13  daunted. Quite the opposite. We are emboldened in

         14  our efforts and our commitment to create a living

         15  wage bill that accommodates these low-wage workers.

         16  We are appreciative of the fact that there are

         17  significant differences in our City with regard to

         18  what is a decent wage, what is a living wage, and

         19  role that the City Council and government should

         20  play in terms of improving the lives of workers.

         21                 We know that there are those who

         22  would prefer the status quo, who even may benefit

         23  from the status quo. So, be assured that we are not

         24  in any way shy or intimidated by the differences.

         25  Quite the opposite, we feel confident that we're on
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          2  the right road.

          3                 Councilwoman Quinn.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Ed, can you

          5  just restate for us --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Eduardo, please.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Eduardo.

          8                 Restate for us the three, I think it

          9  was, points that you said the Deputy Mayor missed or

         10  got wrong that therefore caused his grossly inflated

         11  numbers?

         12                 MR. OTT: I would be happy to. There

         13  were four. The first was his point about the state

         14  approval on the home health care funding. That's

         15  been agreed to. The MOU is not yet signed, but it's

         16  been agreed to at all houses.

         17                 Health benefits for home care is

         18  exempted in this bill. So, he listed it as a cost

         19  item, it in fact is not.

         20                 The leases which he pinpointed as

         21  being an $18 million cost, are gradually introduced

         22  into this bill, and the initial costs are $1

         23  million, and they only pay half of those costs

         24  anyway, as they go forward.

         25                 And then New York State Industry for
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          2  the Disabled is not a cost item in this bill, it is

          3  funded under the enabling legislation when it was

          4  passed in '96. So, it's covered.

          5                 And the other piece that he talked

          6  about, I just want to make a very brief thing,

          7  because it was some very eloquent testimony --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Would you repeat

          9  the 1996 bill that you --

         10                 MR. OTT: It was the New York State

         11  Industry for the Disabled Act, and if you need a

         12  reference --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: The $22 million

         14  --

         15                 MR. OTT: If you need a quick

         16  reference staff can get it from, the Brennan Justice

         17  Center folks have the citation in law.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Yes, whatever

         19  you can provide us in documentation would be very

         20  helpful.

         21                 MR. OTT: Okay, we'll do that. And

         22  I'll make sure you get that.

         23                 The other piece, though, I want to

         24  say something about prevailing wages, because this

         25  is a City at this point, that is loaded with what we
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          2  like to call new Americans or immigrants, pick your

          3  favorite term. The truth of the matter is, the

          4  previous speaker, when he spoke about prevailing

          5  laws, missed one aspect that we should address.

          6                 Those laws lifted millions of workers

          7  out of poverty, and, in fact, they were the most

          8  effective anti-poverty legislation in the history of

          9  the western world. I would say this: we should do it

         10  again. There are millions of workers. What you're

         11  going to do with those is guarantee these families

         12  generations of accumulation of wealth, and that's

         13  how you climb out of poverty.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Let me just

         15  point out, you responded to Council Member Quinn's

         16  request to reiterate those categories of cost that

         17  Deputy Mayor Doctoroff cited, that added up to the

         18  $100 million.

         19                 MR. OTT: Right.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: And those costs

         21  that you cited in your response eliminated 83

         22  million or 84 million of that 100 million already.

         23  So, we're not far from the 7 million that we

         24  originally posited would be the cost, and, of

         25  course, we know that when we get the documents we'll
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          2  be better able to really understand how they came to

          3  the 100 million. But at least in terms of what he

          4  cited, as we tried to indicate during the testimony,

          5  a substantial part of that was already covered.

          6                 MR. OTT: Yes, I mean, he copped to

          7  being new at the job, so, you know, we respect that

          8  and we understand that. The difficult part was when

          9  the City was asked if it got down to 9 million or 5

         10  million was it acceptable, he was still hedging, and

         11  that was the difficult part of that testimony.

         12                 It's fine to be, you know, confused

         13  on the numbers. This is a complicated bill, but to

         14  say it is acceptable at no point is unacceptable to

         15  us.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Well, there's an

         17  ideological problem here that I don't think he was

         18  prepared to accept.

         19                 Councilwoman Yvette Clarke.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

         21  Chair, and Mr. Chair. I sat here quietly somewhat

         22  seething today at what I've heard as the response or

         23  rebuttal to what many of us have recognized is a

         24  revolution in terms of wages in the City of New

         25  York. And, you know, when I sat and I listened to
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          2  our Administration's response, I just sort of had a

          3  historical flashback about some of the debate around

          4  whether we should end the institution of slavery and

          5  what the economic impact of slavery and abolishment

          6  of slavery would have meant to the City or to the

          7  country.

          8                 It's very dismaying that at this time

          9  in our development as a nation, as a city, the 21st

         10  century, that we are still at a point where we

         11  cannot acknowledge the type of wage slavery that

         12  exists within our own City, that we can sit here and

         13  talk about chasing corporate citizens out of this

         14  City while not acknowledging the fact that we have a

         15  very institutionalized wage slavery that these

         16  companies have been benefitting for generations is

         17  really astounding.

         18                 I just want to encourage my

         19  colleagues, and I know I might be a bit dramatic

         20  here for those who, you know, I'm not used to this

         21  type of language, but I want to encourage us to hold

         22  the line here.  I think we're on the edge of seeing

         23  a new shift in terms of how we deal with things in

         24  the City of New York.

         25                 I'm concerned about the pitting of
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          2  wealthy versus poor and what happens when you get

          3  into sort of a class warfare, I fear that if we

          4  can't find that middle ground, that if people don't

          5  come to the table in good faith, with real numbers

          6  and real understanding and hedging about ideological

          7  differences, not wanting to admit to the fact that

          8  someone is benefitting because our people are

          9  suffering, and cannot feed their families and have

         10  to choose between health care and food, I think we

         11  are at a bad place. So, I would like to encourage my

         12  colleagues to hold the line on this legislation.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         15  much.

         16                 We will go to our next panel, which

         17  will be a religious leaders panel.

         18                 Let me just take a moment to

         19  recognize one of our colleagues in the labor

         20  movement, Patrick Gasquat of the Local 1199.

         21                 ArchDeacon Michael Kendall. Rabbi

         22  Michael Feinberg. Reverend Sam Nicolas. Reverend

         23  Earl Coopercomp. Reverend Cheryl Anthony. And Sister

         24  Arlene Flaherty.

         25                 MR. NEWMAN: Please raise your right
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          2  hands.

          3                 Do you solemnly swear or affirm this

          4  testimony you are about to give is the truth, the

          5  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          6                 (Witnesses sworn and affirmed.)

          7                 MR. NEWMAN: Please state your names

          8  and affiliations for the record.

          9                 RABBI FEINBERG: Rabbi Michael

         10  Feinberg. I'm Executive Director of the Greater New

         11  York Labor Religion Coalition.

         12                 REVEREND NICOLAS: Reverend Samuel

         13  Nicolas, representing the Haitian Evangelical Clergy

         14  Association.

         15                 ARCHDEACON KENDALL: Archdeacon

         16  Michael Kendall with the Episcopal Diocese of New

         17  York and Vice President of the Council Churches of

         18  the City of New York.

         19                 REVEREND ANTHONY: Reverend Dr. Cheryl

         20  Anthony, CEO of Judah International Christian

         21  Center, and Chairperson of Central Brooklyn

         22  Churches.

         23                 SISTER FLAHERTY: Sister Arlene

         24  Flaherty, the Executive Director of the

         25  Intercommunity Center for Justice and Peace,
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          2  Coalition of 42 Roman Catholic religious

          3  congregations.

          4                 REVEREND COOPERCAMP: I'm the Reverend

          5  Dr. Earl Coopercamp, I'm with Greater New York Labor

          6  and Religion Council -- Coalition, and the Pastor of

          7  St. Mary's Episcopal Church in West Harlem.

          8                 MR. NEWMAN: Please begin the

          9  testimony.

         10                 RABBI FEINBERG: Good afternoon. I'm

         11  Rabbi Michael Feinberg. As I said, I'm the Executive

         12  Director of the Greater New York Labor Religion

         13  Coalition. I'd like to thank the Co-Chairs and the

         14  other members of the committees for your leadership

         15  in holding these hearings and for hopefully helping

         16  us secure a victory on this living wage bill.

         17                 This may be in church parlance a bit

         18  of preaching to the choir, but I think it's

         19  important that the religious community does express

         20  its support for this bill and how important it is to

         21  our constituencies.

         22                 I'm here testifying today on behalf

         23  of more than 1,200 members of the Greater New York

         24  Labor Religion Coalition, including some 600 clergy

         25  Citywide. We include a diverse coalition from all
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          2  five boroughs, Muslims, Jews, Christians and people

          3  from other faith traditions, working together to

          4  advocate for the rights of low-wage and immigrant

          5  workers and the working poor in our City.

          6                 We work closely with local labor

          7  unions organizing this population of workers.

          8                 We see ourselves as allies to these

          9  workers in their own efforts to empower themselves,

         10  and to organize to improve their working conditions

         11  and their lives.

         12                 In our work we draw upon the central

         13  teachings of our faith traditions in their

         14  insistence upon the dignity of labor and their

         15  imperative to seek justice for all workers.

         16                 Here in New York City we face an

         17  enormous social, and I would say religious and

         18  ethical challenge of an already vast and yet still

         19  growing gap in income between the highest wage

         20  earners and the low wage, largely immigrant and

         21  service workers.

         22                 The United States leads the western

         23  industrial world, in its income gap, and New York

         24  City leads all cities in the nation in that gap as

         25  well.
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          2                 The facts are stark. We know that

          3  tens of thousands of low-wage workers in New York

          4  City, the majority immigrant and people of color,

          5  work at or barely above the minimum wage level.

          6  Untold numbers more are forced illegally to work

          7  below the minimum. In a very real sense, it is this

          8  group of workers that makes the City run on a

          9  day-to-day basis.

         10                 Beyond this, one in every five New

         11  Yorkers, including many full-time workers, lives

         12  below the federal poverty level. In the richest City

         13  on the earth, shamefully, one in four children in

         14  New York City lives in poverty.

         15                 Passing a living wage ordinance in

         16  New York will set the City on record, as recognizing

         17  a basic social contract, that all workers should be

         18  paid at a wage level that permits them and their

         19  families to sustain themselves to meet their basic

         20  human needs and to live in dignity.

         21                 From the voice of our varied

         22  religious traditions, the prophetic message is

         23  clear: to allow workers to work full-time and

         24  persist in poverty is morally unacceptable and

         25  unjust.
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          2                 Public monies here in New York, nor

          3  anywhere else, should not be and cannot be used to

          4  subsidize poverty level wages.

          5                 My own tradition Judiasm is emphatic

          6  about the rights of low-wage workers. To quote from

          7  Hebrew scripture: You shall not abuse a needy and

          8  destitute laborer, whether a fellow countryman or a

          9  stranger in one of the communities of your land.

         10  Violation of this principal is so severe, that it

         11  was likened by the Rabbis of the Tomwood as akin to

         12  murder, one who withholds a worker's living wage is

         13  as though he has deprived him of his life.

         14                 Similar ethical teachings are to be

         15  found in Islam, Christianity and other faith

         16  traditions.

         17                 A living wage ordinance in New York

         18  City makes not only sound economic sense, as has

         19  been amply displayed here today, but more

         20  importantly, from the standpoint of religious

         21  ethics, it is the right thing to do.

         22                 Let us, through the passage of this

         23  legislation, commit ourselves to the pursuit of

         24  justice for all workers in our City, that all might

         25  live with dignity for themselves and their families.
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          2  Justice, justice shall you pursue. Thank you for

          3  your leadership in this pursuit. We'll win it

          4  together.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Rabbi, do you

          6  mind, if we have your testimony, to make a copy of?

          7                 RABBI FEINBERG: No problem at all.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

          9                 Next.

         10                 REVEREND NICOLAS: Good afternoon. As

         11  I stated previously, my name is Reverend Samuel

         12  Nicolas. I am the Assistant Pastor of Evangelical

         13  Crusade Christian Church in Brooklyn, New York.

         14                 I am also here representing the

         15  Haitian Evangelical Clergy Association. This

         16  association has over 100 members, churches in the

         17  tristate area. I am here also as a member of ACORN

         18  and Working Families Party.

         19                 I am here this afternoon, not by my

         20  own will, but because as a member of the clergy, I

         21  am compelled to speak out against injustices.

         22  Whether the injustice is taking place -- wherever

         23  the injustice is taking place, it is too long for us

         24  to stand by, point people to Heaven, and not saying

         25  anything. Whether it is in the home, in the streets,
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          2  at work, or in the schools or even our own churches,

          3  we have a moral obligation to speak out.

          4                 I am not here this afternoon to

          5  lecture you. I am here just to remind you that as

          6  elected officials, who campaign to represent the

          7  people of the City of New York that you have a moral

          8  obligation before God and the people who put you in

          9  office to do the right thing.

         10                 What do you mean, Preacher? What is

         11  the right thing?

         12                 Well, I'll tell you. There exists in

         13  this City of ours that we call in New York a great

         14  disparity in the wages of the people who are the

         15  backbone of our society.

         16                 These are the people that care for

         17  our children, our grandchildren in the HeadStart

         18  programs, that enable us to go to work and earn a

         19  good salary.

         20                 I am talking about the people that

         21  attend to our elderly and home-bound. I am talking

         22  about the people who prepare food in cafeterias

         23  throughout the City. I am talking about our building

         24  service workers, those who mop and clean and take

         25  out our garbage from under our desks and your desks
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          2  even here at City Hall. I am talking about the

          3  security guards who inspect packages and sow our

          4  safety in office buildings. All of these people are

          5  workers that we take for granted.

          6                 Work we would not do ourselves, we

          7  would not let our friends and family do. You

          8  probably say someone has to do it. I agree with you,

          9  someone has to do it. But if they are willing to do

         10  the work that you would not do yourselves, then they

         11  deserve a decent salary.

         12                 They deserve a living wage. They

         13  deserve to be paid a salary that will keep them from

         14  the welfare lines and out of poverty.

         15                 These workers do not have any health

         16  insurance. They do not have any pension plans or

         17  individual retirement accounts.

         18                 They don't have any savings because

         19  they do not get paid enough to pay rent or eat, let

         20  alone have a savings account. This is wrong. It is

         21  morally wrong. It is abuse. It should not be

         22  tolerated.

         23                 We are living in the greatest City of

         24  the world, yet we have created a subculture of

         25  workers that must live on $180.25 per week. We are
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          2  talking about people that earn only $36.05 per day.

          3  Yet, there are a lot of us here who would not work

          4  for $36 per hour. This is wrong. This should not

          5  happen. We should not stand by and let these

          6  inequities continue to exist.

          7                 I am here to strongly urge you to

          8  support this bill. I see these people every day in

          9  my congregation. The greatest message I can go back

         10  to tell them on Sunday morning, is that I went to

         11  City Hall, I came to the City Council Chambers, and

         12  God Almighty came down and gave the Council members

         13  courage. God gave them courage to fight for the

         14  voiceless. God gave them courage to pass a living

         15  wage bill. God gave them courage to override a veto,

         16  if necessary.

         17                 I am asking that this Council

         18  remember that God is on their side to fight for this

         19  living wage. Don't worry about those who will say

         20  the City is broke. Well, if it is broke, we'll fix

         21  it. I say where there is a will, there is a way.

         22                 God is that way-maker. If you stand

         23  up for what is right, he will just show you the way.

         24                 And closing, may God give you, all

         25  the Council members, the courage, the strength and

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            201

          1  CONTRACTS AND GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  resolve to pass this bill.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 ARCHDEACON KENDALL: Mike Kendall, the

          5  ArchDeacon with Episcopal Diocese of New York.

          6                 Living. This is about living. It's

          7  not about making money. It's not about profits. It's

          8  about earning a living, a living wage so people can

          9  live.

         10                 We have people in this City who have

         11  jobs but live in shelters. We have people in this

         12  City who have to eat in soup kitchens. We have so

         13  much wealth in this City that there will be no pain

         14  to anyone in this living wage bill, but there will

         15  be help to help people live.

         16                 This is a very simple concept.

         17                 New York City suffered on 9/11, and

         18  we saw a tremendous outpouring of compassion and

         19  care. Money flowed. Gifts came. One of our churches,

         20  St. Paul's is still filled with gifts. The human

         21  spirit is a compassionate spirit. We know that from

         22  scripture. And it is because of that compassionate

         23  spirit that we know that no one should go wanting.

         24  No one should be deprived of the necessities of

         25  life. This is about a living wage. We can do this.
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          2  It's not a matter of money, it's a matter of

          3  political will.

          4                 Why would anyone say no to this? When

          5  in scripture did it say you were hungry and I said

          6  go starve? You were naked, and we said give us more

          7  clothes. When have we said you're in prison,

          8  good-bye? Homeless, and there's no home? If we do

          9  not provide for the poorest of our people, we are in

         10  fact turning our backs on ourselves, on our

         11  conscience and on our spirit and on the Lord. It's

         12  very clear. There is enough to go around, and most

         13  churches support this, most synagogues support this,

         14  most mosques. If you look at any of them, they are

         15  providing services. The religious community is doing

         16  its part, we ask that this City do its part to

         17  provide a living, a decent living for every citizen

         18  in New York City.

         19                 REVEREND ANTHONY: As I've said, my

         20  name is Reverend Dr. Cheryl Anthony. I'm the Chief

         21  Executive Officer of Judah International Christian

         22  Center, Chairperson for the Bed Stuy Crown Heights

         23  HIV Care Network, and Chairperson for Central

         24  Brooklyn Churches Clergy Caucus, a federation of 25

         25  diverse churches, mobilized to build and improve the
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          2  community of Central Brooklyn, and we

          3  whole-heartedly and collectively support the living

          4  wage bill in its current form.

          5                 As a community leader, my mandate is

          6  to enable people to take control of their lives by

          7  creating opportunities for them to earn their own

          8  living in a responsible, sustainable manner that

          9  brings wholeness and wellness in a compassionate and

         10  supportive environment.

         11                 Most people want to be whole, well

         12  and independent. Poverty persists in our urban

         13  communities because people have continually been

         14  given handouts instead of real opportunities to

         15  change their own lives and fulfill their God given

         16  right to be fruitful.

         17                 Today I don't claim to have all the

         18  answers. Instead, I'd like to pose a few poignant

         19  questions.

         20                 With the current living wage what are

         21  we as a community saying about individuals who are

         22  still trying to develop their skills necessary for

         23  career advancement?

         24                 Personal self-sufficiency is inspired

         25  by accomplishments. Is it possible to feel
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          2  accomplished while working and yet being unable to

          3  provide for your family?

          4                 Should someone's lack of professional

          5  skill equal a lack of dignity, job security or

          6  medical coverage?

          7                 In my role in community development,

          8  I encounter many impoverished adults who are

          9  attempting to re-enter the workforce, while

         10  simultaneously having to provide for a family.

         11                 Unfortunately, many of them must

         12  re-enter the workforce in an entry level position.

         13  The Bible tells us that if a man does not work, then

         14  a man does not eat. So then what ethical statement

         15  is made for a man who works and still is unable to

         16  feed his family?

         17                 Religion's purpose is not only to

         18  help individuals connect to God, but to assist them

         19  in strengthening themselves in order to live better,

         20  more productive lives.

         21                 So, as a representative of more than

         22  100,000 families in the Borough of Kings, please do

         23  not allow residents who are princes and princesses

         24  to beg for crumbs.

         25                 SISTER FLAHERTY: My name is sister
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          2  Arlene Flaherty, and I'm the Executive Director of

          3  the Intercommunity Center for Justice and Peace.

          4                 I am here today representing the 42

          5  congregations of Catholic men and women religious,

          6  approximately 10,000 members, who live and work and

          7  vote in New York City.

          8                 The Intercommunity Center supports

          9  the living wage bill and urges our New York City

         10  legislators to do the same. Our Catholic faith

         11  tradition teaches that the fundamental measure of

         12  any economy is how the poor and the vulnerable are

         13  fairing.

         14                 Therefore, the economic recovery

         15  strategies for New York City must include a living

         16  wage, for New York City contract workers.

         17                 The people who are intimately

         18  connected to the recovery project of New York must

         19  have the economic means themselves to lift

         20  themselves and their family out of the tenuous

         21  position on the borders of economic disaster?

         22                 One of the questions shaping our

         23  critical thinking about this bill is how can we ask

         24  workers to provide our City with their best efforts

         25  in this time of recovery?
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          2                 If we do not explicitly extend our

          3  best efforts on their behalf by passing the living

          4  wage bill?

          5                 Many of the Catholic sisters, priests

          6  and brothers who are members of the Intercommunity

          7  Center for Justice and Peace minister in soup

          8  kitchens, food pantries and health care clinics,

          9  where today many families of low wage workers come

         10  to meet the basic needs which should be accessed

         11  through their hard-earned wages.

         12                 This is a troubling reality which

         13  raises troubling questions. How can New York City

         14  legislators make economic choices which will, in

         15  their effect, undermine the life of the worker, the

         16  support of their families and the overall common

         17  good of this City?

         18                 The New York City budget is a moral

         19  document. And those entrusted with the decisions to

         20  craft the budget are moral agents.

         21                 On behalf of Intercommunity Center

         22  for Justice and Peace, I urge our New York City

         23  legislators and Mayor Bloomberg to embrace the

         24  responsibility to provide New York City workers with

         25  a living wage. Let us make economic recovery a
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          2  reality for all New York workers. Make economic

          3  recovery for New York workers a moral process.

          4                 Exercise the moral mandate of your

          5  office and endorse a living wage.

          6                 REVEREND COOPERCAMP: This is a day

          7  that I've prayed for for a long time, and God's good

          8  and here we are. I'm Earl Coopercamp, and I want to

          9  thank you very much for your compassionate, your

         10  careful and courageous consideration of this living

         11  wage bill, Intro. 66-A, and I'm very glad that we're

         12  here today.

         13                 I want to make -- there's an old

         14  preacher named Earl as well, and he taught me a rule

         15  about confession. The rule of the three B's - be

         16  blunt, be brief, and be gone. I'm going to try to

         17  follow that advice because I think it works in City

         18  Council hearings, too.

         19                 I want to make three points. You

         20  already heard and you're going to continue to hear

         21  that this is a difficult bill. But let's get real,

         22  who is it difficult for? At St. Mary's Church I have

         23  a man, we'll call him Mr. Thomas. He works making $7

         24  and change, a single father, raising a young

         25  two-year-old son. Week in and week out he faces real
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          2  difficulties, how to pay the rent, how to buy the

          3  groceries, how to provide for the child care for his

          4  son. These difficulties are real for him each and

          5  every hour of the day. This living wage bill is not

          6  going to make his life, nor the lives of thousands

          7  of other New Yorkers a bed of roses. It is going to

          8  decrease, though, the level of difficulty for him

          9  and thousands of other working New Yorkers, and

         10  that's why this legislation is important.

         11                 Second of all, you've heard and

         12  you're going to continue to hear that this bill is

         13  too big, that this is too expansive. But this City

         14  Council that represents neighborhoods as diverse as

         15  St. George in Staten Island, Riverdale in the Bronx,

         16  West Harlem, Cypress Hills, Flushing to Mott Haven,

         17  you know that New York is not West Cupcake East

         18  Dakota, it's a big city, we need a damn big bill to

         19  cover all the workers and to make a difference on

         20  them.

         21                 Two and a half millennia ago, a

         22  worker from Dakoa (phonetic) named Amos said, "let

         23  justice roll down like water, let righteousness

         24  flood like an ever-flowing stream," that's not

         25  trickle-down justice, it takes a bill which covers
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          2  enough workers to make a difference in this City,

          3  and that's another reason to support this bill.

          4                 And finally, one of your early

          5  witnesses I think said it best, perception is

          6  everything. There's one standard of cold, hard

          7  economic calculus. There's another standard, though,

          8  and that's a standard of justice. Perception is

          9  everything. When we perceive that no longer our

         10  substandard employment here in New York to be

         11  allowed, when we perceive that poverty wages are

         12  outlawed from New York, that beacon in New York

         13  Harbor held up by the Statue of Liberty will shine

         14  brighter. That perception will shine brighter for

         15  all the people of the City, for the people of this

         16  country, for the people of this world. Be strong and

         17  courageous on this bill. God bless you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you for

         19  your prayers.

         20                 Councilwoman Quinn.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I just want to

         22  say to the Reverend in the middle, I don't remember

         23  your name --

         24                 ARCHDEACON KENDALL: ArchDeacon

         25  Kendall.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Gee, I'm sorry.

          3  I demoted you. I didn't mean to.

          4                 ARCHDEACON KENDALL: That's fine.

          5  Mike.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: You said that,

          7  in your testimony kind of part of what you said was

          8  that we all need to do something --

          9                 ARCHDEACON KENDALL: Right.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And that

         11  religious institutions are in fact doing something.

         12  And this is slightly off topic, but nonetheless, I

         13  think there are, probably if not a member of your

         14  umbrella flock, then somebody's at this table, so I

         15  wanted to take a second to let you know that I work

         16  with a church in my district called the First

         17  Presbyterian.

         18                 ARCHDEACON KENDALL: Sure.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Your people?

         20  Okay, good.

         21                 ARCHDEACON KENDALL: Well, they're

         22  part of the Council of Churches.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay. Well, I

         24  just wanted, and I think this is an important story

         25  for everyone to know, the Administration has
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          2  proposed to close seven senior centers, two in my

          3  district, not that I'm taking it personally. One of

          4  them is at First Presbyterian, and the church had

          5  somebody come in and do a study of how much they

          6  could charge for their rent at the place, and they

          7  presently get $5,000 a year, and the study told them

          8  they could get $40,000 a year, so they had kind of

          9  proposed something around about $30,000 a year, and

         10  we went and I met and I said to the Reverend, we

         11  just can't do it, I can't fight to keep them open if

         12  your rent is going to be that high. And I had this

         13  huge meeting with all these people who were going to

         14  beat up on the Reverend to make sure he cracked and

         15  I was going to picket, because I was sure it was

         16  going to be hard, and he said okay, and now that

         17  church is going to take, you know, a small rent

         18  increase because they know it's hard times and

         19  they're going to make sure the seniors don't get

         20  kicked out into the street.

         21                 So, you know, I just wanted to tell

         22  that because that Reverend is going to have to find

         23  that money to pay the rent and to pay the heat and

         24  to pay the lights somewhere else, and those

         25  parishoners may have to give a little extra or
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          2  something like that, but he did it without thinking

          3  because it was the right thing to do for those

          4  seniors, and I think it's exactly that type of

          5  attitude that we should bring to this bill, and want

          6  to thank all of you for being here today to point

          7  that out, but also for the things that you all do in

          8  your churches and your parishes and your mosques and

          9  your synagogues every day that don't necessarily get

         10  attention like what Reverend Walton did that day, a

         11  week ago when we met with him.

         12                 ARCHDEACON KENDALL: Well, I just

         13  would like to say thank you for your testimony. We

         14  really appreciate that, because a lot of churches

         15  and synagogues and mosques are in doing that. I

         16  mean, we will do what we're asked to do. We will

         17  continue to. But as long as I have the mic, you know

         18  the other issue is affordable housing. We're going

         19  to come and talk to you about that, too.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I just wanted to

         21  thank all of you for coming to testify in front of

         22  us, because I've sat through all of the testimony,

         23  and clearly your testimony helps us to refocus and

         24  knowing that we have the support of all of the

         25  religious institutions in this City, and that's
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          2  very, very important. And I think one of the

          3  previous panelists, Jose Maldonado, I think he

          4  pointed to us that if we ever think we're going in

          5  the wrong direction, just look up and know what our

          6  forefathers wrote, and if we follow that judgment

          7  then we should be okay, because we're here to do the

          8  people's work and that's what we're going to try to

          9  do, our best.

         10                 So, thank you and I appreciate your

         11  coming.

         12                 ARCHDEACON KENDALL: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Let the church

         14  say amen.

         15                 Our next panel will be a panel of

         16  advocates. We might want to call it the ACORN panel.

         17                 Gloria Waldron. Elliott Roseboro.

         18  Eugene Dunn, and Bertha Lewis. With the Working

         19  Families Party, Wilfredo Larancuent.

         20                 MR. NEWMAN: Please raise your right

         21  hand.

         22                 Do you solemnly swear or affirm this

         23  testimony you're about to give is the truth, the

         24  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         25                 (Witness sworn.)
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          2                 MR. NEWMAN: Please state your name

          3  and affiliation for the record and begin your

          4  testimony.

          5                 MR. LARANCUENT: My name is Wilfredo

          6  Larancuent. I am a member of Executive Committee of

          7  the Working Families Party.

          8                 How are you?

          9                 First of all, I want to thank Chairs

         10  Jackson and Perkins for this opportunity to address

         11  this Committee. As I said before, my name is

         12  Wilfredo Larancuent, and although I serve as an

         13  international vice president of UNITE, that's the

         14  union of Needletrades, Industrial and Textile

         15  Employees, I'm here today in my capacity as a member

         16  of the Executive Committee of the Working Families

         17  Party.

         18                 For us at the Working Families Party,

         19  the fundamental issue before us, in this living wage

         20  legislation, is a moral one. And in many respects we

         21  pose it in the form of a question: Should the City

         22  of New York enhance our tax dollars, subsidize jobs

         23  that keep workers living in poverty. And for us, we

         24  believe that the answer should be a resounding no.

         25                 The impact of this bill on working
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          2  class New Yorkers is obvious. This bill will raise

          3  the wages of thousands of hard-working New Yorkers

          4  and will make sure that they can better provide for

          5  themselves and their families.

          6                 At the same time, this bill will

          7  provide resources for a much needed health insurance

          8  for that portion of the population which can

          9  ill-afford to be without it. We believe that this

         10  bill will help reduce family poverty in New York, as

         11  similar bills have done in other American cities.

         12                 The impact on small businessmen in

         13  our communities will be just as positive, in our

         14  opinion. By boosting the pay of low-income workers,

         15  workers who are more likely to spend their money for

         16  immediate needs right in their communities, this

         17  bill will increase the business of grocery stores,

         18  bodegas and retailers in the communities.

         19                 And while this bill will require

         20  increased cost for other businesses, for a few

         21  businesses, we want you to keep in mind that these

         22  businesses receive large amounts of City money,

         23  either as a subsidy or in the form of a contract.

         24                 Quite frankly, if they don't want to

         25  pay their workers a living wage, they shouldn't ask

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            216

          1  CONTRACTS AND GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  for public subsidy.

          3                 For the Working Family Party, we put

          4  particular emphasis and importance on the portion of

          5  the bill that deals with the recipients of these

          6  subsidies.

          7                 Ostensively, the City grants

          8  subsidies for one reason and one reason only, to

          9  keep jobs in New York City. But it does us little

         10  good if those jobs pay so little that those who work

         11  them still need public assistance to make ends meet.

         12                 If we are to spend hundreds of

         13  millions of dollars to retain these jobs in our

         14  City, it is only reasonable to insist that those

         15  jobs pay a living wage.

         16                 This is clearly more important in the

         17  aftermath of the September 11th situation, as

         18  subsidies will be a central part of our strategy to

         19  build our great City.

         20                 I want to thank you all again for

         21  inviting us to speak before you, and I'll be more

         22  than glad to answer any of your questions, if you

         23  have any.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I want to

         25  express our appreciation for your patience. I know
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          2  you've been here for quite a bit, and I know you've

          3  been working on this legislation for quite a bit.

          4  You've had an opportunity to hear some of the

          5  opposition?

          6                 MR. LARANCUENT: Yes, I have.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Do you have any

          8  observations you want to make, based on some of what

          9  you've heard?

         10                 MR. LARANCUENT: Well, I think Eddie

         11  Ott and others in the labor movement put it well

         12  when they talked about the opposition to what the

         13  City has said.

         14                 One more issue, though, you know, for

         15  many years we in the labor movement have heard

         16  Corporate American talk about minimum wages, and

         17  every time there is an increase in the minimum wage,

         18  every single time without exception, we get these

         19  stories of gloom and doom and destruction - the

         20  world is going to fall apart, unemployment is going

         21  to hit across the country like wildfire, people will

         22  be unable to live and businesses will go out of

         23  business. And I think the minimum wage, which I

         24  believe began in the early 1930s or late 1920s, has

         25  been going up, not fast enough, but going up every

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            218

          1  CONTRACTS AND GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  so often, and we're here. Unemployment has not cut

          3  across -- cut a path across the country like

          4  wildfire. Businesses have grown and prospered. In

          5  fact, the economy in the last ten years has been the

          6  greatest expanding economy in the history of the

          7  United States of America, and some say in the

          8  history of the world, and this, in spite of the

          9  fact, that the minimum wage went up, I believe the

         10  last time it was about three years ago, so in the

         11  midst of that expansion, nothing happened. In fact,

         12  good things happened in the midst of that situation,

         13  when the minimum wage went up.

         14                 I expect, Brother Chair, if I may

         15  call you Brother --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Why not?

         17                 MR. LARANCUENT: That the same

         18  situation is going to happen in New York City when

         19  the living wage legislation is passed.

         20                 There's a lot of predictions of

         21  gloom. There's a lot of predictions of loss of jobs

         22  across the river. And by the way, I want to remind

         23  you all that the minimum wage, I believe across the

         24  river in that direction, is at least 6.15, which is

         25  higher than what the minimum wage here in New York
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          2  State.

          3                 And in the other direction, in

          4  Connecticut, the minimum wage is 6.70. 6.70. And it

          5  is hard for them to find workers paying that minimum

          6  wage.

          7                 You know, the bottom line is we don't

          8  believe the stories of gloom and doom that the

          9  Administration is talking about now. We believe that

         10  this is a very reasonable bill, and we believe that

         11  the impacts will be very positive for most sectors

         12  of the community.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         14  much. I appreciate it.

         15                 MR. LARANCUENT: Thank you, Brother.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: ACORN.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I just want to

         18  say I earned my living wage today, I put in 12

         19  hours, Juanita Perkins, and I'm going to put in

         20  another five hours at another hearing at the

         21  Education Committee out in Queens. So, we will

         22  struggle and we will persevere.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: So, in the

         24  interest of time, we're going to ask you to -- we're

         25  going to give you one minute to summarize your
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          2  testimony.

          3                 We'll swear you in now.

          4                 MR. NEWMAN: Please raise your right

          5  hand.

          6                 Do you solemnly swear or affirm this

          7  testimony you're about to give is the truth, the

          8  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          9                 (Witnesses sworn.)

         10                 MR. NEWMAN: Please state your names

         11  and affiliations for the record.

         12                 MR. DUNN: My name is Eugene Dunn. I'm

         13  an ACORN member.

         14                 MS. WALDRON: My name is Gloria

         15  Waldron, I'm President of New York ACORN.

         16                 MS. LEWIS: My name is Bertha Lewis,

         17  I'm the Executive Director for New York ACORN and

         18  co-chair of the Working Families Party.

         19                 MR. ROSEBORO: My name is Elliott

         20  Roseboro, and I'm Vice President of New York ACORN.

         21                 MR. DUNN: Hello. My name is Eugene

         22  Dunn. I'm an ACORN member for almost five years. I'm

         23  here today to persuade you to vote yes for the

         24  living wage bill because there are many New Yorkers,

         25  including myself, who are barely surviving on what
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          2  we make on our jobs.

          3                 I work at Yankee Stadium during

          4  baseball season as a security guard. I've been there

          5  a couple of years and the work is important for the

          6  safety and comfort of the fans and families who come

          7  to the stadium.

          8                 When I started, I got $6.50 an hour,

          9  about $170 to $200 a week, depending on how many

         10  hours I put in. I barely get by with all of my

         11  bills, rent, groceries, utilities, et cetera. When

         12  the season is over, the work dries up, I go on

         13  unemployment. If the living wage bill is passed,

         14  people will have a sense of value and actually be

         15  able to live and not just survive. And business will

         16  benefit as well. Productivity will go up and so will

         17  morale.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Speak up so we

         20  can hear you now. You're not afraid, are you? Are

         21  you afraid?

         22                 MS. WALDRON: No.

         23                 My name is Gloria Waldron, and Mr.

         24  Speaker, in my next life I want to be rich so that I

         25  can sit here and be enormous sympathy for the Ms.
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          2  Perkins in the City, but tough, it's a bad time.

          3                 And ACORN of course is a 20-year-old

          4  grassroots community organization with over 20,000

          5  member households in New York City, organized into

          6  80 neighborhood groups in Bronx, Brooklyn,

          7  Manhattan, Queens. Nationally ACORN has over 135

          8  member families in 45 cities.

          9                 ACORN and the Living Wage Resource

         10  Center we founded have been involved in passing over

         11  30 of the 82 living wage statutes across the country

         12  and cities, including Boston, Chicago, Oakland,

         13  Minneapolis, St. Paul, Denver, Detroit among others.

         14  You see, ACORN has a history with the living wage.

         15                 We've been working with the New York

         16  Living Wage Coalition for over two years. We have

         17  visited churches, temples, synagogues, spoken with

         18  congregations of all faiths about the living wage.

         19  Of course, you saw some of them here.

         20                 We have met with other community

         21  groups, labor unions, non-profit organizations.

         22                 ACORN is an organization of

         23  low-income, poor people. The living wage is a bread

         24  and butter issue for low-income people.

         25                 ACORN members and their neighbors in
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          2  Bushwick, Brownsville and these other places, and

          3  want the living wage, because they are home care

          4  workers, day care providers, security guards,

          5  mailroom attendants, cleaners, clerks, and cashiers.

          6  Their families will benefit from this law.

          7                 But others will also benefit, not

          8  directly. Those that are not directly covered by the

          9  living wage, they work in neighborhoods where

         10  covered workers live. They work in local stores,

         11  restaurants, where people spend additional money

         12  that they earn from the living wage, they need a new

         13  pair of shoes, toy for their children, or taking

         14  their family out for dinner. What am I saying? The

         15  living wage will affect not just 75,000 individuals,

         16  as you heard about today, it will affect

         17  communities. The communities that many of you

         18  represent. The living wage will help to stabilize

         19  these communities and make them safer.

         20                 We will give, it will give parents

         21  more time to spend with their children, get involved

         22  with their education, children will get better

         23  nutrition and learn more in school.

         24                 It means that 75,000 New Yorkers will

         25  be much closer to the American dream.
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          2                 And, you know, the only people that

          3  are remembered after this life is over are the

          4  people who identify and help the poor, the Mother

          5  Theresas, the Martin Luther Kings, the Ghandi, the

          6  John and Robert Kennedy, the Abe Lincoln, but the

          7  rich and his money and his memory are soon

          8  forgotten.

          9                 So, we want you to support the living

         10  wage, work with the poor deferred, work with the

         11  prayful people, and when history is written of this

         12  Council, let the record show that this was the

         13  Council of the people, by the people, and for a

         14  change, for the people.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 MR. ROSEBORO: Before I give my

         17  testimony, I just want to make a quick comment on an

         18  earlier testimony where a significant part I found

         19  was missing.

         20                 In Deputy Mayor Doctoroff's

         21  testimony, he spoke of economic recovery, and I

         22  quote, he said the Mayor is contacting everyone. He

         23  mentioned that that included unions and non-profits

         24  and a litany of other people. But I didn't hear him

         25  speak of corporations and the rich.
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          2                 Now, I want to ask the Deputy Mayor

          3  and the Mayor and the City Council, that in this

          4  period of economic recovery and pulling together to

          5  rebuild the City, shouldn't corporations and the

          6  rich and those making all the profit be considered

          7  part of everyone?

          8                 Okay, now my testimony.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: But you know,

         10  you can write to him and ask him that question. And

         11  copy us on it. I'm curious as to what his answer is.

         12                 MR. ROSEBORO: Yes, I think I will.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Because that's

         14  what it is. I mean, you have to be able to

         15  communicate not only here in the hearing, but put

         16  your questions in writing to them and hopefully

         17  they'll get a response, and you could share that

         18  with us. We're interested also.

         19                 MR. ROSEBORO: It's a great point.

         20  Great point. I'm not looking forward to a positive

         21  response, but I think I will do it anyway.

         22                 Okay, good afternoon. My name is

         23  Elliott Roseboro. I am the Vice President of New

         24  York ACORN, and the Chairman of the ACORN's WEP

         25  Worker Organizing Committee. It is an honor to have
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          2  the opportunity to testify before you in support of

          3  the New York City Living Wage Bill.

          4                 Today we have heard some people

          5  testify that the City cannot afford the living wage

          6  bill. Well, I'd like to say that we cannot afford

          7  not to pass it.

          8                 For almost a decade, through the most

          9  prosperous times our city has ever seen, the working

         10  poor of New York City were told to wait, and we did.

         11  We watched the income gap between rich and poor

         12  grow. We watched as the previous Administration

         13  squandered opportunity after opportunity to bring

         14  prosperity to the neighborhoods in which we live. We

         15  watched as ACORN members found second and third jobs

         16  to provide for their families, and now we have

         17  watched as hundreds of thousands of our fellow New

         18  Yorkers have lost their jobs in the wake of

         19  September 11th attacks.

         20                 We see Fortune 500 companies jostling

         21  into position at the public trough for their

         22  subsidies and tax breaks. While programs for

         23  low-income New Yorkers are being slashed left and

         24  right.

         25                 Some New Yorkers have a problem with
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          2  welfare for the poor, while large multi-national

          3  corporations receive billions in various subsidies

          4  and tax breaks - essentially free money!

          5                 Well, it is time that we hold

          6  corporations accountable and that we ask them to

          7  create living wage jobs in return for those

          8  subsidies. It's time to put an end to corporate

          9  welfare and greed in our City.

         10                 People like myself who have been

         11  trying to move from welfare to work cannot do so if

         12  all that is out there for us are minimum wage, often

         13  part-time jobs with no benefits. How is a New Yorker

         14  supposed to support a family, or even just

         15  themselves, on $5.15 an hour. A full-time annual

         16  salary of $10,300, while the poverty level is

         17  $17,000. We cannot end welfare unless there are

         18  living wage jobs in our City for people to move

         19  into.

         20                 While the living wage won't lift all

         21  New Yorkers out of poverty, it will help 75,000 of

         22  them to earn a decent wage, to provide for their

         23  families. In turn, those 75,000 will have more money

         24  to spend in their communities - in our communities

         25  spurring the local economy from the bottom up.
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          2                 If we are truly concerned about

          3  rebuilding our City and its economy after the

          4  tragedy of 9/11, we cannot afford not to enact this

          5  living wage law now. I urge you to support it. I

          6  urge you to pass the living wage for your fellow New

          7  Yorkers. The City needs it now more than ever.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         10                 MS. LEWIS: My name is Bertha Lewis,

         11  and I'm Executive Director for New York ACORN, but

         12  my job today is to tell the truth about this law and

         13  cut through some of these myths I've been hearing up

         14  here today and people that set up this dynamic of an

         15  us and them.

         16                 I want to remind people and I can't

         17  do it more, you can't do it enough to remind people

         18  what this is really about. This is really about a

         19  parking lot attendant who in Alexandria Virginia

         20  whose got a $3.00 an hour raise and she was able to

         21  quit two of her three jobs. That's what this is

         22  about. This is about how that same worker's two

         23  daughters now went back to school, they don't have

         24  to work.

         25                 This is about home care workers in
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          2  Chicago who can now pay her medical bills, and you

          3  know what? Could buy a new pair of shoes.

          4                 This is what living wage is all

          5  about, and all across this country 80 some cities

          6  cannot be wrong. Eighty some cities cannot be wrong

          7  when business   consortiums sit around and discuss

          8  the poor and living wage, and think of ways to

          9  contradict themselves in opposition.

         10                 I think that the reasons for passing

         11  this ordinance are clear. I mean, let's face it, who

         12  could be opposed to a living wage? But there were

         13  some folks that were sitting here in this room today

         14  that are obviously opposed to the living wage but

         15  they won't say so.

         16                 I'm really sick and tired of hearing

         17  about these arguments. It is insulting, and it is

         18  paternalistic to say that a living wage would hurt

         19  the very people that would get it.

         20                 This was the same argument that was

         21  made for over 30 years, when people opposed

         22  apartheid, and here we are in 2002 and this argument

         23  is still being made.

         24                 The myth, number one, is that

         25  businesses are going to leave this City. This is a
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          2  hostile business climate. Well, poverty is a hostile

          3  climate for my members.

          4                 I'm going to read you something, and

          5  this will be brief, because you can read my entire

          6  testimony in print, but let's talk about something

          7  that people might be familiar with:

          8                 Bloomberg News. Bloomberg News wrote

          9  in an article last year that in Pedus County,

         10  Tucson, Arizona, absenteeism fell 80 percent,

         11  overtime hours fell to 50 a month, about 600 new

         12  employees were hired when the company was forced to

         13  raise its wages. Its wages went to $8 an hour from

         14  $6.25. The manager there, according to Bloomberg

         15  News, said now that these people have made a livable

         16  wage, we don't have as much turnover. We don't have

         17  any overtime. Their performance has been a lot

         18  better.

         19                 Living wages to not cause job loss.

         20  Living wages will not cost the City too much money.

         21  It is insulting to say that the Government should

         22  pick up the tab. I've heard people say that what's

         23  good for business is good for people. Well, let's

         24  think about this, what's good for people is good for

         25  business.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Repeat that,

          3  please.

          4                 MS. LEWIS: What's good for people is

          5  good for business.

          6                 A healthy economy is essential for us

          7  to maintain in New York City, the greatest City on

          8  the face of this earth, we have got to encourage

          9  businesses to take the high road. We have got to

         10  reward businesses that pay decent wages and

         11  benefits. And we've got to send a message to those

         12  who would undercut those businesses by bidding out

         13  and submitting proposals for low-wage jobs, they are

         14  not wanted here in New York City. If you want to go

         15  across the river, you can jump in the river, because

         16  in this City we will maintain a quality of life that

         17  is par to none, not only for the wealthiest segment,

         18  but for those New Yorkers that keep this City

         19  moving. A living wage let's us all win, and ladies

         20  and gentlemen, that is the truth.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I don't know if

         22  there's anything else to be said.

         23                 Are there any questions from the

         24  members?

         25                 Well, let me take a moment to express
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          2  my personal, I'm sure the Committee's appreciation

          3  for the work that ACORN and the Working Families

          4  Party have played in enlightening not only the

          5  Council but the City in general about the need for a

          6  dignified living wage.

          7                 I know that this has been a long

          8  struggle, at least two years, there has been many

          9  changes made to accommodate the various legal,

         10  technical, and even some political issues that the

         11  original bill had. But nevertheless, the movement

         12  persevered, ACORN has been very instrumental in this

         13  perseverance, in its organizing, in its mobilizing,

         14  and even in terms of the data, the facts, the

         15  figures that substantiate the reasons for and the

         16  economic viability of a living wage.

         17                 So, I want to thank you for that, and

         18  I want to let you know that this Council has 44

         19  members at the last count in support of this bill.

         20                 MS. LEWIS: Let's go to 51.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: That is not the

         22  living wage yet, but it's a very promising sign that

         23  this Council will make such a reality happen.

         24                 We understand that the Administration

         25  came here today in opposition up front to this bill
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          2  for maybe three reasons:

          3                 One, in terms of $100 million of cost

          4  that they claim to have discovered through the

          5  Office of Management and Budget, a claim which they

          6  did not substantiate by giving us the documents,

          7  and, in fact, a claim which upon review seemed to be

          8  based on misinformation at best, disinformation more

          9  than likely, meaning to say that a substantial

         10  amount of that cost is already being addressed in

         11  terms of a memorandum of understanding, and that

         12  amount is about $46 million.

         13                 Another part of that cost is being

         14  addressed in terms of prior contracts that date back

         15  to 1996, particularly related to the disabled, and

         16  another portion of that cost relates to health

         17  benefits that are already going to be taken care of

         18  by health care workers. So, right there we're down

         19  to about $25 million of the $75 million that were

         20  claimed.

         21                 And I want to raise this because

         22  their claim is shrinking by, you know, by the hour,

         23  so that I'm confident that at the end of the day

         24  their claim will be similar to ours which is a cost

         25  of about five- to seven-million dollars, which seems
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          2  to be the consensus of all the experts and others

          3  that are more or less involved.

          4                 Unfortunately, the other reason for

          5  their opposition related to something that

          6  apparently they would not quite reveal, and that is,

          7  upon being asked whether they could live with a $7

          8  million cost, they still seem to find it highly

          9  unacceptable. So, we are left with an opposition not

         10  based on cost, we're left with an opposition that

         11  has another reason, a reason that is not economic, a

         12  reason that is not administrative, because we

         13  already have a testimony from our Comptroller that

         14  indicates that this is a manageable program, this is

         15  an enforceable program, and even some of our

         16  business witnesses indicated that it was something

         17  that they could live with.

         18                 So, there's something else underlying

         19  their opposition, and it may be something that is

         20  not quite tangible, it may be something that is more

         21  political or ideological or philosophical, and has a

         22  history that has been identified and revealed in

         23  terms of arguments against the minimum wage and

         24  alluded to by my colleague, Ms. Clarke, with

         25  arguments against the ending of slavery even. So,
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          2  there seems to be a struggle here that goes beyond

          3  the economic struggle, that goes beyond the fiscal

          4  struggle, that goes more into the winning over of

          5  folks in a much more substantive way.

          6                 The Council is committed. We believe

          7  that we will have an opportunity to convince the

          8  Administration about where we're coming from, and we

          9  hope that you will continue to stay in the trenches

         10  and keep the movement going. We're confident that

         11  you will.

         12                 I want to thank you for your

         13  participation. If there are any closing remarks you

         14  want to make, you're welcome to do so.

         15                 MS. LEWIS: We do want to continue to

         16  revise this bill. We are so happy that this is a

         17  21st century City Council that has a 21st century

         18  outlook.

         19                 We have, through the Living Wage

         20  Resource Center, we can document to you chapter and

         21  verse the same arguments over and over again,

         22  whether it's boom time or not, we know that we can

         23  provide arguments to help you with the

         24  Administration that shows that a high road living

         25  wage atmosphere actually creates economic growth.
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          2  We're sure that this is something that the

          3  Administration wants to do. We know that it's

          4  something that the Speaker, Speaker Miller, and this

          5  Council wants to do. It is, I cannot tell you enough

          6  how proud we are of your bravery and it is going to

          7  take bravery in this time. Do not listen to the

          8  pundits and the editorial pages, there is more and

          9  more favorable print in favor of this living wage

         10  legislation, and not only will we be able to help

         11  you on paper, but you can best believe that between

         12  the labor unions and the ministers and community

         13  groups like ACORN, we're going to help you in the

         14  streets.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay.

         16                 Thank you very much. This meeting is

         17  adjourned.

         18                 (The following testimony was read

         19  into the record.)

         20

         21  Written Testimony Of:

         22  Hyeseung Song

         23  Policy Analyst

         24  United Neighborhood Houses.

         25
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          2

          3  Testimony before City Council Committee on Contracts

          4  on Intro. 66-A, the Living Wage Bill

          5

          6  Tuesday, April 23, 2002

          7

          8                 Good afternoon. My name is Hyeseung

          9  Song and I am a policy analyst at United

         10  Neighborhood Houses (UNH). UNH is the federation of

         11  36 settlement houses benefitting 500,000

         12  participants - from infants and youth to adults and

         13  seniors - through educational programs, employment

         14  assistance, human services, and cultural activities

         15  at 335 community-based sites throughout New York

         16  City.

         17                 I appreciate the opportunity today to

         18  testify on Intro. 66-A, the Living Wage bill, and to

         19  give you an idea of the bill's potential impact on

         20  the staff, the settlement houses, and the

         21  communities they serve.

         22                 The UNH network is comprised of more

         23  than 8,000 staff, some of whom deliver services

         24  through the City contracts specifically targeted in

         25  the Living Wage bill, such as early childhood
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          2  education and home care.

          3                 The settlement house staff work

          4  conscientiously, take on multiple assignments and

          5  work hard to stretch contract dollars without

          6  sacrificing quality of services.

          7                 As you are well aware, the nonprofit

          8  sector, however, is riddled with attrition and high

          9  turnover rates, due to low wages and government

         10  contracts not including cost-of-living adjustments

         11  (COLA) to pay staff adequately.

         12                 Consequently, low retention rates

         13  cost non-profits staff time to train new workers -

         14  costs which are also not covered in contracts. In an

         15  effort to improve human service workforce retention,

         16  UNH has been working in coalition on the State level

         17  to ensure that government provide staff with COLAs

         18  so that they are compensated with a livable wage for

         19  providing services for New York City families.

         20                 To that end, we strongly endorse the

         21  philosophy and purpose underlying the Living Wage

         22  legislation you have in front of you today: The City

         23  does indeed have a fundamental interest in ensuring

         24  that staff providing services to its residents and

         25  citizens are adequately compensated for quality

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            239

          1  CONTRACTS AND GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  work.

          3                 However, UNH urges the City council

          4  not to pass the living wage legislation until it is

          5  amended to guarantee that the City will provide the

          6  funding to support the cost of that living wage. The

          7  City must be financially accountable to providing

          8  cost increases within contracts to deliver services

          9  as well as to pay staff.

         10                 What is the consequence of passing

         11  the Living Wage legislation as written, without

         12  incorporating the City's financial responsibility to

         13  cover increased costs?

         14                 Devolving the responsibility to the

         15  non-profit sector to parce contracts and/or find

         16  other funds to support the increased wage, will

         17  inevitable (sic) result in reduced services to our

         18  communities and increased numbers of unemployed

         19  workers - this is the exact opposite effect that the

         20  legislation was meant to have.

         21                 While the bill is supposed to be

         22  cost-neutral, based on conversations with settlement

         23  house directors, an early assessment of the

         24  legislation shows that there may not be any impact

         25  on service delivery in the first and second years -
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          2  because wages for these specific staff are already

          3  in line with the mandated rates.

          4                 In the out years, however, settlement

          5  houses will struggle to provide the $10/hr wage

          6  rate. Non-profits cannot pass on the costs of

          7  increased wages to their clients since they are

          8  amongst the City's most economically vulnerable.

          9                 And most non-profit human service

         10  providers do not have funds in reserve to pay for

         11  increased wages. The legislation - well-intentioned

         12  as it is - sets a dangerous precedent for

         13  government-mandated wage rates for non-profits

         14  without government-mandated funding to cover those

         15  costs.

         16                 By passing this legislation without

         17  an identified funding source, without a safeguard

         18  for ensuring that the city pays the bill, we all

         19  risk leaving our community and the already

         20  vulnerable people we serve, at risk to lay-offs and

         21  service cuts.

         22                 We appreciate the amendments made to

         23  the bill earlier this month, but we urge the City

         24  Council to go further, and amend this bill with

         25  language that would guarantee that the City will
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          2  provide additional funding in their contracts to

          3  support the Living Wage standards outlined in the

          4  current legislation, and in future iterations.

          5                 Thank you.

          6

          7

          8  Written Testimony Of:

          9  Reverend Connis Mobley.

         10

         11  Living Wage Bill

         12  Draft

         13

         14  Introduction: Mr. Speaker; City Council Members; Mr.

         15  Chairman;

         16                 My name is Reverend Connis Mobley. I

         17  am the pastor of the United Community Baptist Church

         18  in the Coney Island section of Brooklyn, New York.

         19  As a minister of (21) twenty-one years and a pastor

         20  with (12) twelve years of experience leading a

         21  congregation of people, I found out that

         22  "leadership" is not a title - it is a function.

         23  With this function, there is always risk taking in

         24  making decisions which 9 times out of 10 has a

         25  domino effect not just on one but many. There is a
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          2  mandate which is to always be positive and

          3  purposeful for the better good of the whole.

          4                 The same applies to you as you hold a

          5  political position for the good of all those who has

          6  entrusted you to represent them in government. I

          7  first want to say thank you, Mr. Chairman, for

          8  having this important meeting and allowing a few

          9  concerned citizens to address the Council. It is not

         10  everyone's position to take a bold stand on such a

         11  critical issue. Therefore, I applaud your integrity.

         12  I am here to testify on behalf of the faith

         13  community that this is a moral issue. As a leader,

         14  you can change the course of the future if you don't

         15  give in to the pressures.

         16                 From the MAY/JUNE 2002 issue of

         17  INSIGHT (today's trends* current cultures* in the

         18  know), printed in the article "In the Know" - Just

         19  one in four Americans say their sleep quality is

         20  very good or excellent. What keeps us tossing and

         21  turning at night? Certainly the events and

         22  circumstances our country's dealt with. Our politics

         23  and our society have seen moral and spiritual

         24  erosion that has impacted our nation in the last

         25  century. Factors that hinder a restful night's
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          1  CONTRACTS AND GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  sleep, unearthed by Opinion Research Corp. for

          3  Simply Sleep:

          4                 - Jobs or finances - 46%.

          5                 - Aches and pains - 43%.

          6                 - Thoughts of war - 30%.

          7                 - Relationships - 22%.

          8                 I say again, this Living Wage Bill is

          9  a moral issue. The greater part of our happiness

         10  depends on our dispositions and not on our

         11  circumstances. I ask that you receive the essence of

         12  compassion. "Resolve to be tender with the young,

         13  compassionate with the aged, sympathetic with the

         14  striving, and tolerant with the weak and wrong...

         15  because sometime in your life you will have been all

         16  of these.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 (Hearing concluded at 5:50 p.m.)
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 23rd day of April 2002.

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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         24                 -----------------------
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